
High Peak Borough Council

CORPORATE SELECT COMMITTEE AGENDA

Date: Monday, 28 November 2016

Time: 6.30 pm

Venue: The Cafe, Pavilion Gardens, Buxton

18 November 2016

PART 1
1. Apologies for Absence 

2. To receive Disclosures of Interest on any matters before the Committee 
1. Disclosable Pecuniary Interests
2. Other Interests

3. Any matters referred to the Committee under the call-in procedure 

4. To approve the minutes of the last meeting (Pages 3 - 6)

5. 2nd Quarter Financial, Procurement and Performance Review 2016/17 (Pages 7 - 
50)

6. Medium Term Financial Plan Update (Pages 51 - 154)

7. Universal Credit Update (Pages 155 - 160)

8. Select Committee Work Programme (Pages 161 - 166)

9. Any questions referred to the Executive Member (Member Services to be advised of 
any questions at least 4 days prior to the meeting) 

10. Exclusion of Press and Public 
To resolve that the press and public be excluded from the meeting during 
consideration of the following items of business as there may be disclosure of 
exempt information as defined in Part I of Schedule 12A of the Local Government 
Act 1972

PART II
11. Exempt Minutes of the meeting held on 17 October 2016 (Pages 167 - 168)

(Paragraph 3, 4, 7 - Information relating to the financial or business affairs of 
any particular person (including the authority holding that information) 
Information relating to any consultations or negotiations, or contemplated 
consultations or negotiations, in connection with any labour relations matter 


Public Document Pack



arising between the authority or a Minister of the Crown and employees of, or 
office holders under the authority. 
Any action taken or to be taken in connection with the prevention, 
investigation or prosecution of crime. )

SIMON BAKER
CHIEF EXECUTIVE

Membership of Corporate Select Committee
Councillor A Barrow (Chair) Councillor J Douglas (Vice-Chair)
Councillor G Claff Councillor A Fox
Councillor L Grooby Councillor P Hardy
Councillor S Helliwell Councillor D Lomax
Councillor A McKeown Councillor R McKeown
Councillor K Sizeland Councillor J Wharmby



4.1 
 

                 
2140 
 
 
CORPORATE SELECT COMMITTEE  
 
 
Meeting: Monday 17 October 2016 in the Café Area, Pavilion Gardens, Buxton 
 
Present: Councillor Barrow (Chairman) 
 

Councillors Claff, Douglas, Fox, Grooby, Helliwell, A McKeown, Perkins 
(substitute for Hardy), Pritchard (substitute for Lomax), Siddall (substitute for 
R. McKeown), Sizeland and J Wharmby. 
 
Housing Select Members present for Agenda item 5: Councillor Kerr 
(substitute for Sloman), A McKeown (also on Corporate Select), Robins 
 
Councillors Ashton, Kemp and Thrane were also in attendance. 
 
Apologies for absence were received from Councillors Hardy, Lomax, 
McCabe, R McKeown and Sloman (Housing Select) 
 

17/33  MINUTES 
  (Agenda item 4) 
 
  RESOLVED: 
 

That subject to the inclusion of the words “Councillor Sizeland returned to the 
meeting” after agenda item 9, the Minutes of the meeting held on 19 
September be approved as a correct record. 

 
(Members of Housing Select Committee had been invited to attend this 
meeting for consideration of the following item of business, and the 
Chair vacated the Chair in favour of Councillor A McKeown, Chair of 
Housing Select Committee) 

 
17/34  FUTURE OF FAIRFIELD NEIGHBOURHOOD OFFICE 
  (Agenda item 5) 
 

Members considered a report which proposed closure of the Fairfield 
Neighbourhood Office by the target date of end of October.   
 
As set out within the report, footfall was much lower than at the other 
customer receptions and the costs of keeping the office open were significant.  
Buxton Town Hall is of easy reach of Fairfield should any resident have a 
query that can’t be dealt with other than by face to face contact, plus 
arrangements were being made with the local residents association for the 
Council to use its office on a surgery basis, and staff would be undertake visits 
if necessary. 
 
A number of concerns were expressed regarding the proposed closure, 
particularly around the limited amount of drop in sessions that would be 

 High Peak Borough Council 



Page 3

Agenda Item 4



Corporate Select Committee 
Monday 17 October2016 
 

 4.4 


available within the residents office, and it was queried whether there was 
space available within any of the local sheltered blocks that could also be 
used, which it was agreed would be investigated.  It was noted that during the 
consultation period, there were only 17 visits out of 122 in a four week period 
where an alternative method of communication could not be identified.  It was 
further noted that a new web site was to be launched during November which 
may make other means of communication more accessible.   
 
Regarding the accommodation at Buxton Town Hall, it was confirmed that 
there were a number of confidential meeting rooms available to customers 
should they be required. 
 
RESOLVED: 
 
That the Executive be recommended to approve the closure of Fairfield 
Neighbourhood Office by end of October 2016. 

 
  (Councillor Barrow in the Chair) 
 
17/35  SELECT COMMITTEE WORK PROGRAMME 
  (Agenda item 6) 
 

It was noted that there was to be a meeting of Asset Management Working 
Group on 25 October, and a meeting of the HRA Working Group would be 
convened during November. 
 
RESOLVED: 
 
That the Select Committees’ Work Programmes be noted. 

 
17/36  EXCLUSION OF PRESS AND PUBLIC 
  (Agenda item 8) 
 
  RESOLVED: 
 

That the press and public be excluded from the meeting during consideration 
of the following item of business as there may be disclosure of exempt 
information as defined in paragraphs 3, 4, and 7 of Part I of Schedule 12A of 
the Local Government Act 1972 

 
  SUMMARY OF EXEMPT ITEMS 
 
17/37  EXEMPT MINUTES 
  (Agenda item 9) 
 
  RESOLVED: 
 

That the exempt minutes of the meeting held on 19 September 2016 be 
approved as a correct record. 
 
 

 
Page 4



Corporate Select Committee 
Monday 17 October2016 
 

 4.4 


17/38  GLOSSOP HALLS AND VICTORIA PROJECT UPDATE 
  (Agenda item 10) 
 

The Committee considered an update on the Glossop Halls project and the 
future of the Victoria Hall, and recommended a number of the actions to the 
Executive to progress the projects. 

 
17/39 IMPROVING TRADING PERFORMANCE AT PAVILION GARDENS – 

UDPATE 
 (Agenda item 11) 
 
 The Committee considered options for improving the trading position at the 

Pavilion Gardens, and made recommendations to the Executive on how to 
progress, 

 
 
 The meeting concluded at 7.23 p.m. 
 
 
 
 CHAIR 

 
 
 

 
   

Page 5



This page is intentionally left blank



 5.1 

AGENDA ITEM 5 
 

HIGH PEAK BOROUGH COUNCIL 
 

Report to the Corporate Select Committee 
 

28th November 2016 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Appendices Attached 
• Appendix A (2016/17 – Second Quarter Financial Report) 
• Appendix B (2016/17 – Second Quarter Procurement Report)  
• Appendix C (2016/17 – Second Quarter Performance Report) 
 
 
1. Reason for the Report  
 
1.1 The purpose of this report is to inform members of the Council’s overall 

performance and financial position for the period ended 30th September  2016 
(“Second Quarter 2016/17”); and 

 
 
2. Recommendations 

2.1 It is recommended  
 

• That the Corporate Select Committee note the second quarter 2016/17 
financial, procurement and performance position detailed in Appendices A, 
B and C and summarised at 3.3 of this covering report. 

 
 
3. Executive Summary 
 
3.1 This report essentially summarises the Council’s financial, procurement and 

performance position after considering service activity up to the end of the 
second quarter (i.e. 30th September 2016).  

 
3.2 Detailed analysis is provided in Appendix A (Finance), Appendix B 

(Procurement) and Appendix C (Performance).  

TITLE: Second Quarter Financial, Procurement & 
Performance Review 2016/17 

 
PORTFOLIO HOLDER Cllr Emily Thrane – Executive Councillor for 

Corporate Services 
  
CONTACT OFFICERS: Claire Hazeldene - Finance  

Vanessa Higgins - Performance  
   
WARDS INVOLVED:  Non-Specific 

Page 7

Agenda Item 5

http://smdcintranet/committeeagendas/2012-13/Overview%20&%20Scrutiny/Resources/11Jul12/SMDC%20-%20Q4%20(Prov%20Out)%2011-12%20App%20A%20(11-07-12).doc
http://smdcintranet/committeeagendas/2012-13/Overview%20&%20Scrutiny/Resources/11Jul12/SMDC%20-%20Q4%20(Prov%20Out)%2011-12%20App%20B%20(11-07-12).doc
http://smdcintranet/committeeagendas/2012-13/Overview%20&%20Scrutiny/Resources/11Jul12/SMDC%20-%20Q4%20(Prov%20Out)%2011-12%20App%20C%20(11-07-12).doc


 5.2 

 
3.3 The position can be summarised as follows: 
 

Subject Headline Reference 
Finance The Finance headlines for the Second Quarter are: 

Performance against Budget 
• At the quarter two stage the General Fund budget for 2016/17 is 

forecast to be £215,100 overspent. This mainly relates to a forecast 
slippage in the Efficiency Programme. 

Efficiency Programme 
• The in-year savings requirement for 2016/17 amounts to £1,655,690 

and is made up of the efficiency target of £659,910 for 2016/17, 
together with the £995,780 of unachieved savings rolled forward from 
2015/16. At the quarter two stage this is projected to fall short by 
£445,000 due to slippage in the programme and associated costs of 
implementation. Any shortfall can be partially funded using the 
earmarked reserves established to meet such one-off/short-term 
costs. 

Housing Revenue Account 
• The Housing Revenue Account is forecast to be in surplus by 

£349,260 at the quarter two stage due to an increase in income and a 
reduction in the contribution to capital. 

Capital Programme 
• The General Fund Capital Programme budget for 2016/17 is £2.61m 

including the carry forward of capital underspends from 2015/16.  The 
projected outturn is £3.0m which represents an overspend of £203,640 
relating to ICT Strategy implementation. 

• The HRA Capital Programme for 2016/17 is £4.14m after being 
adjusted for the major works which were moved to the revenue repairs 
budget. Spend is forecast to be on target at the quarter two stage. 

Treasury Management 
• Cash investments held at 30th September 2016 totalled £22.7m. 
• Council borrowing at 30th September 2016 totalled £78.1m. 
• The Council’s net interest receipts budget is projected to be at budget 

overall – an underspend on borrowing costs due to delayed debt 
refinancing is offset by a shortfall on investment income as a result of 
the Base Rate reduction. 

Revenue Collection 
• 57.7% of Council Tax was collected by 30th September 2016, 

compared to 58.1% for the same period last year. 
• 58.5% of Business Rates was collected by 30th September 2016 

compared with 59.3% for the same period last year (2015/16 distorted 
by an upfront payment form a large hereditament payer). 

• At the end of quarter two the value of sundry debt over 60 days old 
was £266,876 compared to £236,704 at 30th September 2015. 

Appendix A 

Procurement The Procurement headlines for the Second Quarter are: 
• 20 procurement activities were completed (1 high value >£172k – 

related the supply of liquid fuels).  
• The procurement forward plan includes 54 procurement activities 

specifically for 2016/17 (either HPBC only or joint) with a further 178 
exercises brought forward from previous years. 

• At 30th September 2016, 58% of procurement activity undertaken was 
on the forward plan and the Council paid 94.41% of its invoices within 
30 days during the year. 

Appendix B  

Page 8



 5.3 

Performance The Performance headlines for the Second Quarter are: 
• 34% of the key performance indicators are on track, 25% off track and 

41% no target (contextual or baseline year). 
• Of the 18 Priority Actions within the Corporate Plan, five have been 

completed, two are rated ‘amber’, the remainder being classified as 
‘Green’. 

• The Council received 141 complaints, 80 comments and 85 
compliments in the Second Quarter. Repeat complaints and response 
times both on track. 

 

Appendix C 

 
 
4.       How this Report Links to Corporate Priorities  
 
4.1 The successful delivery of all corporate priorities is dependent upon the 

effective management of performance and financial resources, which is the 
subject of this report. 

 
 
5.       Options and Analysis 
 
5.1 Detailed analysis is contained within the appendices. 

 
 

6. Implications 
 
6.1 Community Safety - (Crime and Disorder Act 1998) 

None 
 

6.2 Workforce 
None 
 

6.3 Equality and Diversity/Equality Impact Assessment 
This report has been prepared in accordance with the Council's Equality 
and Diversity policies. 
 

6.4 Financial Considerations 
There are substantial financial considerations contained throughout the 
report. 

 
6.5 Legal 

None 
 

6.6 Sustainability 
None 
 

6.7 External Consultation 
None 

 

Page 9



 5.4 

6.8       Risk Assessment 
There are a number of risks to the financial position presented, which are 
identified and explained in the financial report attached at Appendix A. 
 
 
 
 
 

ANDREW P STOKES 
Executive Director (Transformation) & Chief Finance Officer 

 
 
Web Links and 
Background Papers 

Location Contact details 

 
Various background working papers 

 
Buxton Town Hall 

 
Claire Hazeldene 
01538 395400 Ext. 4191 
 
Vanessa Higgins  
01538 395400 Ext. 4195 
 
 

 

Page 10



5.5 
 

 
 

 
 

APPENDIX A 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

2016/17       
Second Quarter 

Financial 
Review 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 

Page 11



5.6 
 

 
1. Background and Introduction 
 
1.1  In accordance with the Council’s Financial Procedure Rules and recommended 

good practice, a quarterly financial report is presented to members. This is the 
second such report for 2016/17. 
 

1.2 The report summarises overall financial performance for 2016/17 with particular 
emphasis on the key sources of financial risk to the Council. Specific 
considerations are as follows: 

 

• General Fund Revenue Account (Section 2) – considers budgetary 
performance on the General Account by looking at variations in income and 
expenditure and the funding received by the Council.  
 

• Pavilion Gardens (Section 3) – highlights the financial performance of this 
key Council trading activity. 
 

• Efficiency and Rationalisation Programme (Section 4) – considers 
progress in achieving the efficiency and rationalisation savings forecast.  

 
• Housing Revenue Account (Section 5) – highlights the budgetary position in 

respect of the operation of the Council’s housing stock. 
 

• General Fund Capital Programme (Section 6) – provides an update to 
Members on progress against the Council’s General Fund capital plans. 

 
• HRA Capital Programme (Section 7) – provides an update to Members on 

progress against the Council’s HRA capital plans. 
 

• Treasury Management (Section 8) – sets out the key statistics in terms of 
investments and borrowings. 

 
• Revenue Collection (Section 9) – considers progress-to-date in collecting the 

Council Tax, Business Rates and Sundry Debts. 

Page 12



5.7 
 

2. General Fund Revenue Account 
 
2.1 This section of the report considers the financial performance of the General Fund 

Revenue Account against budget by looking at variations in income and 
expenditure and funding received by the Council. 

 

Service 2016/17 Budget 
Projected 
Outturn 
 2016/17 

Variance 

  £ £ £ 
Chief Executive 27,670 27,670 - 
Executive Directors 39,950 39,950 - 
Audit 9,990 9,990 - 
ICT 621,250 621,250 - 
Human Resources 112,580 90,580 (22,000) 
Member Services 187,940 184,940 (3,000) 
Property Services 1,325,050 1,307,050 (18,000) 
Revenue and Benefits (277,940) (265,500) 12,440 
Planning Applications (336,900) (333,670) 3,230 
Building Control (166,720) (76,720) 90,000 
Customer Services (49,430) (54,430) (5,000) 
Legal Services (47,830) (47,830) - 
Electoral Services 97,670 96,420 (1,250) 
Licensing and Land Charges (323,530) (303,530) 20,000 
Regeneration 211,640 175,640 (36,000) 
Communities and Cultural 258,800 249,450 (9,350) 
Housing Strategy 196,680 191,680 (5,000) 
Transformation (15,810) (13,810) 2,000 
Community Safety and Enforcement 137,360 135,360 (2,000) 
Finance and Procurement * 5,949,280 6,368,280 419,000 
Waste Collection 1,936,900 1,892,230 (44,670) 
Street Scene 5,030 1,180 (3,850) 
Leisure Services 472,930 429,830 (43,100) 
Horticulture (499,780) (506,920) (7,140) 
Visitor Services (1,034,710) (1,040,180) (5,470) 
Environmental Health (4,070) (4,070) - 
Housing ** - - - 
        
Net Total of Services 8,834,000 9,174,840 340,840 
        
Net Interest 1,417,310 1,418,310 1,000 
 10,251,310 10,593,150 341,840 
        
Funding   : external (9,490,040) (9,442,610) 47,430 
                 : reserves - contribution/(use) (761,270) (935,440) (174,170) 
        
Projected (Surplus)/Deficit - 215,100 215,100 
        

* Staff budgets are currently budgeted corporately and included within Finance and Procurement (except for Pavilion 
Gardens staff which for operational reasons is included within Visitor Services). 

** The Council’s Housing management costs are charged to the Housing Revenue Account 

 

Page 13



5.8 
 

2.2 The 2016/17 Revenue Account budget was originally set at £10,185,940. The 
Chief Financial Officer has, in accordance with Financial Procedure Rules, 
authorised the roll forward of £65,370 in unused budgets from 2015/16. 

 
• Property Services: £25,000 to repair a collapsed section of wall at Whaley 

Bridge. 
• Street Scene: £14,200 to enable 2015/16’s gully emptying schedule to be 

completed. 
• Regeneration: £14,110 to complete the remaining 50% of the Chapel Master 

Plan. 
• Finance: £12,060 towards risk reduction measures including extension of the 

Environment Agency water protection zone around the Crescent in Buxton. 
 

This brought the 2016/17 budget to £10,251,310 including a £761,270 net use of 
reserves. 
  

2.3 The quarter two projected outturn on the General Fund Revenue Account for 
2016/17 is £10,466,410.  This represents a projected deficit for the year of 
£215,100 after using £935,440 of reserves. 
 

2.4 There are two service areas with a projected significant overspend; 
 

• Building Control (£90,000 overspend) - a reduction in Building Control staff 
has resulted in alternative delivery utilising a third party on an interim basis 
which has impacted on income receipts.  Future delivery options are currently 
being explored.    

• Finance and Procurement (£419,000 overspend) – The majority of this 
overspend relates to an in-year shortfall in the savings arising out of the 
efficiency programme and associated implementation costs. It is assumed that 
£100,000 of this shortfall will be met by using the balance on the earmarked 
Efficiency and Rationalisation reserve; and £80,000 from the ICT Strategy 
reserve (section 2.6). 
 

2.5 There are two services with a projected significant underspend; 
 

• Waste Collection (£44,670 underspend): Savings of £13,000 against the 
budgeted contract and a £47,000 reduction in disposal costs should generate 
an overall underspend for the year. 

• Leisure Services (£43,100 underspend): Net Leisure Centre costs, anticipated 
at some £20,000 less than budgeted, are partially offset by £5,500 spend on 
events. The work of the service includes promoting sports and leisure 
activities that are jointly funded. Often the receipt and application of such 
funds does not take place within the same financial year.  It is anticipated that 
the service will receive some £30,000 more than will be spent.  This surplus 
will be moved into earmarked reserves for application in future years (2.6). 

 
 
 
 
 

Page 14



5.9 
 

2.6 The level of funding anticipated for the year is £126,740 above that budgeted due 
to the following: 

 
External Funding: 
 
• Transitional Support Grant (£31,210) - Government have awarded additional 

funding to ease the pace of reductions during the most difficult first two years 
of the four year settlement for those councils with the sharpest reductions in 
Revenue Support Grant. 

• Business Rates Retention - a shortfall of £78,640 is anticipated on the level of 
Business Rates retained in the year owing to the forecast collectable amount 
being greater than at budget setting stage which would result in a larger levy 
being payable on growth from the General Fund. The larger collectable amount 
would result in better Collection Fund Surplus/ Deficit position at the year end. 
This position is subject to change in the year with fluctuations in the business 
rates list and the effect of appeals lodged against ratings. 
 
It should be further noted that this forecast outturn assumes that the budgeted 
£200,000 of business rates income retained as a result of being part of the 
Derbyshire Business Rates Pool will be achieved. The forecasts for the Pool 
continue to be monitored by the Pool Lead; Derby City Council. The actual 
outturn will depend upon the performance of every member of the Pool. 
Therefore this element of the business rates retention income is subject to 
change.  
 

Use of Reserves: 
 
• Land Charges Earmarked Reserve (£20,000) – Personal searches litigation 

costs to be met out of reserve. 
• Efficiency and Rationalisation Reserve (£100,000) - the in-year shortfall in the 

Efficiency Plan arising out of programme slippage is to be partly offset by use 
of the earmarked reserve set up for this purpose. 

• ICT Strategy Reserve (£80,000) – IT system costs associated with the delivery 
of the Channel Shift efficiency project are to be met from the earmarked 
reserve previously set up for ICT development. 
 

Contribution to Reserves: 
 
• Leisure Services Earmarked Reserves (£25,830) – A net contribution to 

earmarked reserves is anticipated as income received for various activities is 
retained to support future projects (2.5). 

 

Page 15



5.10 
 

3.  Pavilion Gardens 
 
3.1 This section of the report details the financial performance of the trading activity at 

Pavilion Gardens. The Pavilion Gardens trading results are included in the 
General Fund Revenue Account. 

 
3.2 In the Medium Term Financial Plan, the 2016/17 budget for Pavilion Gardens was 

increased by £164,000 (reflecting the closure of the Octagon) to stand at a net 
cost of £361,690. At the end of the second quarter the projected outturn on the 
Pavilion Gardens Trading Statement for the year is a net cost of £335,730  

 
3.3 The table below summarises the financial performance of the six separate trading 

activities – Pavilion Café, Coffee Area, Tourist Information Centre (TIC) & Retail 
Area, Events, Outside Areas and Functions – in the Pavilion Garden 

Description 
 

Projected Outturn 2016/17 Projected 
Outturn 

2016/17 
 

Variance 
Pavilion 
Café 

Coffee 
Area 

TIC & 
Retail 

Events Outside Function Budget 

 
Income 
Expenditure 
 
Net Cost / 
(Contribution) 

 
(652,550) 
 750,720 

 
98,170 

 
(175,740) 
  295,300 

 
119,560 

 
(165,980) 
  241,370 

 
75,390 

 

 
(297,250) 
 269,380 

 
(27,870) 

 
  (33,460) 
   86,900 

 
53,440 

 
  (116,160) 

 133,200 
 

17,040 

 
(1,441,140) 
 1,776,870 

 
 335,730 

 

 
(1,290,550) 

1,652,240 
 

361,690 

 
(150,590) 
  124,630 

 
 (25,960) 

 

Description 
 

Outturn 2015/16 
 

 
Outturn 

2015/16 
 

Variance 
Pavilion 
Café 

Coffee 
Area 

TIC & 
Retail 

Events Outside Function Budget 

 
Income 
Expenditure 
 
Net Cost / 
(Contribution) 

 
(683,924) 

744,269 
 

60,345 

 
(242,119) 

294,941 
 

52,822 

 
(186,189) 

257,029 
 

70,840 

 
(256,552) 

305,169 
 

48,617 

 
(63,548) 

95,411 
 

31,863 

 
(139,213) 

150,580 
 

11,367 

 
(1,571,545) 

1,847,399 
 

275,854 

 
(1,696,885) 

1,843,995 
 

147,110 

 
125,340 

3,404 
 

128,744 

 
 

3.4 The following should be noted: 
• Pavilion Café – Trading activity derives from the Café during the normal 

opening hours of the business  
• Coffee Area – Trading Activity driven from the Coffee Bar. 
• Tourist Information Centre (TIC) and Retail Area – Trading activity driven 

from the Retail area (including gallery Rental and artists’ commission) and 
the Tourist Information Centre) 

• Events – Trading activity driven from room hire bookings in-house events 
and fairs 

• Outside - Trading activity driven from the miniature train and Lakeside Kiosk. 
• Functions –Trading activity in respect of food and drink driven from private 

bookings. 
 

Page 16



5.11 
 

4. Efficiency and Rationalisation Programme 
 
4.1 This section of the report considers the financial performance of the Council’s 

Efficiency and Rationalisation Programme in 2016/17. 
 
4.2 The Council’s Medium Term Financial Plan (MTFP) includes a three-year 

(2014/15 – 2016/17) Efficiency and Rationalisation Strategy targeting savings of 
£2.5m against General Fund activities and £0.3m against HRA activities. 

 
4.3 The 2016/17 budget provides for the achievement of £659,910 of such savings 

in the year. In addition, there is a requirement to realise £995,780 in savings, 
which were unachieved in 2014/15 and 2015/16 and consequently rolled forward 
into 2016/17. 

 
4.4 During 2016/17 staff budgets will be reduced in line with service review 

outcomes, with the majority of the £485,000 general fund targeted savings being 
achieved this financial year (with additional savings within the HRA).  
Additionally, £408,000 in procurement related savings (reduced spend as a 
result of procurement activity/expenditure being challenged/increased on 
contract spend etc.) were identified as part of the 2016/17 budget setting 
process.  These savings have been reviewed and taken to the benefit of the 
Efficiency Plan in quarter two. 

 
4.5 Focus is then turning to other efficiency projects for example income generation, 

asset management and further sharing of services to deliver the remaining 
savings. An exercise is being undertaken as part of the 2017/18 budget setting 
process to set a new Efficiency Plan and take into account the revised profile of 
savings delivery. 

 
4.6 At quarter two the Council is forecast to experience a £445,000 shortfall in the 

delivery of the Efficiency Plan savings in-year. This is due to slippage in some of 
the remaining projects and the payment of some short-term/one-off costs 
emerging out of the implementation of the Efficiency Programme (e.g. staff 
related costs and IT system costs etc.) 

 
4.7 The Authority carries a reserve of £100,000 earmarked to support the Strategy 

and at Quarter Two it is assumed that all of this reserve will be used in 2016/17 
to help offset the shortfall in the Efficiency Programme. A further £80,000 will be 
taken from the ICT Strategy Reserve to fund system costs associated with the 
delivery of the Efficiency Programme. 

 
 
 

Page 17



5.12 
 

5.   Housing Revenue Account (HRA) 

5.1 This section of the report considers the financial performance of the Council’s 
Housing Revenue Account and highlights the budgetary position in respect of 
the operation of the Council’s housing stock.  

 
5.2 The 2016/17 Housing Revenue Account budget was originally set to break even. 

The Chief Financial Officer has, in accordance with Financial Procedure Rules, 
authorised the roll forward of £89,000 in unused budgets from 2015/16 to 
facilitate delayed electrical testing in council housing.   
 

5.3 Projected expenditure on the Housing Revenue Account for 2016/17, at the 
Second Quarter stage, is £15,130,447 with estimated income at £15,390,710. 
This represents a projected outturn of £260,260 (i.e. £349,260 below budget). 

 

HOUSING REVENUE ACCOUNT 
  

2016-17 
Budget 

2016-17 
Projected 
Outturn 

2016-17 
Variance 

 £ £ £ 
INCOME       
Dwellings Rents (14,642,120) (14,739,180) (97,060) 
Non - Dwelling Rents & Other Income (614,870) (651,530) (36,660) 
Sub-total income (15,256,990) (15,390,710) (133,720) 
        
EXPENDITURE       
Repairs and Maintenance  3,944,040 3,944,040 - 
Supervision and Management 2,649,650 2,649,650 - 
Rents, rates, taxes and other charges 171,040 115,320 (55,720) 
Other Operating Expenditure 1,435,860 1,363,650 (72,210) 
Depreciation & Impairment Charges 1,432,000 1,550,000 118,000 
Interest & Debt Management Charges 3,416,430 3,428,820 12,390 
HRA Contribution to Capital Programme 2,296,970 2,078,970 (218,000) 
Sub-total expenditure 15,345,990 15,130,450 (215,540) 
        
Surplus (-) / Deficit for year 89,000 (260,260) (349,260) 

 
 
5.3 The Council has a duty, in accordance with Part VI (Section 74) of the Local 

Government and Housing Act 1989, to maintain a “Housing Revenue Account” 
(HRA).  By “ring -fencing’ the Housing Revenue Account, the Council ensures that 
the management and maintenance of the Council’s housing stock is funded from 
the income generated by rents and other related sources. The Council is required 
under Part VI (Section 76) to prevent a debit balance each year on the HRA by 
setting the appropriate budget and monitoring progress against that budget 
throughout the financial year. The Council is, as at this second quarter stage, on 
target to achieve a credit balance on the Housing Revenue Account in 2016/17. 

 
5.4 There are four significant under spend projected on the Housing Revenue 

Account at this stage to note; 
 

• Dwelling Rents (£97,060) – The majority of this underspend is driven by a 

Page 18



5.13 
 

reduction in anticipated void losses from 1.75% to 1% of rent collected. 
• Rents and other charges (£55,720) – The closure of Furness Vale Business 

Unit and the favourable renewal of the current mobile phone contract have 
resulted in savings. 

• Other Operating Expenditure (£72,210) – The majority of this underspend is in 
relation to a reduction in the provision for bad debts from 1.5% to 1.0% of rent 
collected 

• HRA Contribution to Capital Programme (£218,000) – There are two factors 
causing this underspend; Firstly funding from the Major Repairs Reserve has 
increased by £118,000 thereby reducing the direct HRA contribution required 
and secondly, £100,000 of the capital programme originally allocated for 
general external void repairs has been removed from the programme and set 
aside into a specific reserve. 
 

5.5 There is just one significant overspend projected on the Housing Revenue 
Account at this stage to note: 

 
• Depreciation and Impairment Charges (£118,000) – An increase in 

depreciation charge to the HRA is anticipated following the results of the 
latest asset valuations.  

 

Page 19



5.14 
 

6. General Fund Capital Programme 
 
6.1 This section of the report provides an update to Members on the Council’s 

General Fund Programme.  
 

6.2 The table below shows a high level (service) summary of the General Fund 
Capital Programme position at 30th September 2016. Further detail on a scheme 
by scheme basis is contained in Annex A. 
 

 
 

6.3 The 2016/17 General Fund Capital Budget as updated and approved by 
Executive on 22nd September 2016 was set at £2,611.720 - during the second 
quarter budget increases of £192,260 were included; resulting in a revised 2016-
17 budget of £2,803,980 

 
6.4 The changes made to the programme in quarter two are listed below. Two new 

play area projects were authorised by delegated approval on 27th October 2015 
and 24th November 2015 respectively and a budget increase applied to the 
Disabled Facility Grants Programme.  

    
• Burlow Road, Harpur Hill Road Buxton - £23,410 and Pyegrove, Glossop -

£17,710 for the improvement and upgrade of existing play provision; both 
commitments will be funded from the Council’s section 106 planning reserve. 

• Disabled Facilities – Increased funding of £151,140 has been assigned by 
Derbyshire County Council towards the delivery of mandatory disabled facility 
grants in 2016-17. The funding for these adaptations has previously been 
given directly to the Council but from 2015/16, the funding was incorporated 
into the Better Care Fund and paid to the County Council. Based on demand 
levels for grants so far this year it is anticipated that the 16-17 revised budget 
of £389,140 will be allocated.  

  
2016/17 
Latest 

Approved 
Budget  

Q2 
Changes 

2016/17 
Revised  
Budget 

Expected 
Outturn 
2016/17 

Expected 
Variance 
2016/17 

 £ £ £ £ £ 
Housing  241,960 - 241,960 241,960 - 
Housing Standards 287,700 151,140 438,840 438,840 - 
Property Services 1,582,190 - 1,582,190 1,582,190 - 
ICT 109,520 - 109,520 318,000 208,480 
Regeneration 215,710 - 215,710 215,710 - 
Horticulture 174,640 41,120 215,760 210,920 (4,840) 

 2,611,720 192,260 2,803,980 3,007,620 203,640 
            

Planning Obligations 266,960 41,120 308,080 308,080 - 
External Contributions 336,910 207,970 544,880 544,880 - 
Capital Receipts 679,000 - 679,000 679,000 - 
Borrowing  1,328,850 (56,830) 1,272,020 1,475,660 203,640 

 2,611,720 192,260 2,803,980 3,007,620 203,640 
      

Page 20



5.15 
 

 
6.5 There is one significant projected capital over spend to note:  

• ICT (£208,840 overspend) Implementation of the ICT Strategy is on-going, the 
latest phase - Infrastructure Upgrade and Microsoft Compliancy – has been 
accelerated resulting in a forecast overspend of £208,840.  The overspend will 
be met from re-profiling the overall ICT provision within the latest approved 4 
year Capital Programme. Further profiling of expenditure may be required 
dependent on prioritisation and progress of each ICT project. 

 

Page 21



5.16 
 

7.  Housing Revenue Account Capital Programme 
 
7.1 This section of the report provides an update to Members on the Council’s HRA 

capital spending. 
 

7.2 The table below shows a high level summary of the HRA Capital Programme 
position at 30th September 2016. Further detail on a scheme by scheme basis is 
contained in Annex B. 

 

Scheme 
2016/17 

Approved 
Budget per 

MTFP 

Q2 
Changes 

2016/17 
Revised 
Budget 

Q2 
Actual 
Spend 

2016/17 
Expected 
Outturn 

2016/17 
Expected 
Variance 

   £   £   £   £   £   £  
Asset Management Works 3,316,570 (97,600) 3,218,970 1,242,945 3,218,970 - 

Repairs Team Capital Works 895,000 (450,000) 445,000 77,450 445,000 - 

Professional /Commissioning Fees 280,000 - 280,000 2,518 280,000 - 

New Build  194,000 - 194,000 28,540 194,000 - 

  
4,685,570 (547,600) 4,137,970 1,351,453 4,137,970 - 

 
 

7.3 The 2016/17 HRA Capital Budget of £4,685,570 was approved in February (as 
part of the MTFP). £1,351,453 has been incurred on HRA capital schemes in the 
first half of the year, principally on roofing works, electrical rewires and the 
replacement of central heating boilers.   
 

7.4 A number of schemes (£447,600) within the capital programme relate to works 
considered to be revenue in nature – in line with accounting rules.  These 
schemes have been removed from the capital programme and added to the 
revenue repairs budget, with no overall financial impact to the HRA.  A further 
scheme relating to external void repairs has been removed from the capital 
programme and set aside into a specific reserve to be utilised when required. 
 

7.5 There are no significant capital underspends or capital overspends. There has 
been an increase in the anticipated funding from the Major Repairs Reserve by 
£118,000 during quarter two following the revaluation of assets, thereby reducing 
the contribution required by the HRA working balance.  
 

 

Page 22



5.17 
 

8. Treasury Management 
 
8.1 This section of the report sets out the key treasury management statistics in 

relation to the Council’s investments and borrowings. This report comprises a high 
level summary as the Audit and Regulatory Committee receives detailed 
operational updates on treasury management. 

 
Investments 

 
8.2 Cash investments held on the 30th September 2016 totalled £22.7 million.  

£62,360 interest was earned on these investments up to the end of quarter two. 
The average level of funds available for investment during this period totalled 
£22.0million. 

 
8.3 The Council has budgeted to receive £130,660 in investment income in 2016/17. 

The interest which can be earned on investments for the remainder of the year 
has been adversely affected by the reduction in the Base Rate at the Bank of 
England to 0.25% on 4th August. Therefore it is anticipated that there will be a 
shortfall of £28,000 on this budget at the end of the year. 

 
Borrowing 

 
8.4 Outstanding borrowing at 30th September 2016 totalled £78.1 million, including 

£556,000 which relates to finance lease facilities.  
 
8.5 The Council has budgeted to incur £1,547,970 in interest charges and other 

financing costs in 2016/17.  A £27,000 underspend is anticipated on this budget as 
the refinancing of maturing loans is now expected to take place later in the year 
than was assumed in the budget. 

 
 
 

Page 23



5.18 
 

9. Revenue Collection 

9.1 This section of the report details progress to date in collecting the Council Tax, 
Business Rates and Sundry Debt. 

9.2 The collection rate outturn for Quarter Two 2016/17 was as follows: 
 

• Council Tax – 57.5% of Council Tax was collected by 30th September 2016, 
compared to 58.1% for the same period last year. 

 
• Business Rates – 58.5% of Business Rates was collected by 30th September 

2016, compared with 59.3% for the same period last year. 
- NB: A particularly large hereditament payer paid the 2015/16 liability in full in April 

2015, but during 2016/17 they are paying in accordance with the 10 month 
instalment plan. This has affected the comparative collection rate by 0.9%. 
 

• Sundry Debts - The value of sundry debts over 60 days old at the end of 
Quarter Two was £266,876 which compares with £237,704 at 30th September 
2015.  

 
 
 

Page 24



5.19 
 

Annex A 
     

                General Fund Capital Programme Update - 30th September 2016 
 

Scheme 
2016/17 
Latest 

Approved 
Budget  

Q2 
Changes 

2016/17 
Revised  
Budget 

Expected 
Outturn 
2016/17 

Expected 
Variance 
2016/17 

  £ £ £ £ £ 
Housing & Housing Standards           
Affordable Housing Project  241,960 - 241,960 241,960 - 
Disabled Facilities Grants 238,000 151,140 389,140 389,140 - 
Landlord Accreditation Grant Scheme 49,700 - 49,700 49,700 - 
  529,660 151,140 680,800 680,800 - 
Property Services           
Asset Management Programme 1,582,190 - 1,582,190 1,582,190 - 
  1,582,190 - 1,582,190 1,582,190 - 
ICT 109,520 - 109,520 318,000 208,480 
  109,520 - 109,520 318,000 208,480 
Regeneration           
Heritage Regeneration Grants 54,650 -  54,650 54,650 - 
Buxton Crescent & Spa 161,060  - 161,060 161,060 - 
  215,710 - 215,710 215,710 - 
Horticulture           
Whaley Bridge Memorial Park 64,450  - 64,450 64,450 - 
Allotments 36,100  - 36,100 36,100 - 
Play Areas 74,090 41,120 115,210 110,370 (4,840) 
  174,640 41,120 215,760 210,920 (4,840) 
            
Total General Fund 2,611,720 192,260 2,803,980 3,007,620 203,640 

 
 
 

Page 25



5.20 
 

Annex B 
 

Housing Revenue Account Capital Programme Update 30th September 2016 
 

Scheme 

 2016/17 
Revised 
Budget  

 Q2 
Changes  

 Revised 
Budget 
2016/17  

Q2 
Actual 
Spend 

 2016/17 
Expected 
Outturn  

 2016/17 
Expected 
Variance  

ASSET MANAGEMENT WORKS:  £       £   £   £  
Roofing & External Works 672,280 - 672,280 431,393 672,280 - 
Kitchens 16/17 233,670 - 233,670 172,724 233,670 - 
Bathrooms 16/17 77,240 - 77,240 54,238 77,240 - 
Central Heating 16/17 987,180 - 987,180 255,960 986,180 - 
Rewires 16/17 401,610 - 401,610 241,982 401,610 - 
Health & Safety 16/17 87,500 - 87,500 - 87,500 - 
Aids & Adaptations 16/17 435,670 - 435,670 48,116 435,670 - 
Sheltered Schemes Lightning 
Protection 72,500 - 72,500 - 72,500 - 
HRA Shop Works 76,000 - 76,000 34,032 76,000 - 
Damp Surveys 17,600 (17,600) - - - - 
Mullions Fair Dr 40,000 - 40,000 - 40,000 - 
Fire Risk Works (Including Upland 
Doors) 45,320 - 45,320 - 45,320 - 
Retaining Wall at ALMA Square 20,000 - 20,000 - 20,000 - 
Sheltered Schemes Fire Risk 35,000 (35,000) - - - - 
Radon Fan Installation 45,000 (45,000) - - - - 
Gladstone Street External Repairs 70,000 - 70,000 - 70,000 - 
  3,316,570 (97,600) 3,218,970 1,238,445 3,218,970 - 
REPAIRS TEAM CAPITAL WORKS             
Major Voids 16/17  100,000 (100,000) - - - - 
Major Repairs 16/17 300,000 (300,000) - - - - 
Void Rewires  - 16/17 35,000 - 35,000 17,100 35,000 - 
Void Kitchens  16/17 350,000 - 350,000 54,050 350,000 - 
Void Bathrooms  16/17 60,000 - 60,000 6,300 60,000 - 
Void Damp Works 16/17 50,000 (50,000) 0 0 0 - 
  895,000 (450,000) 445,000 77,450 445,000 - 
PROFESSIONAL FEES            
Professional Fees 125,000 - 125,000 2,518 125,000 - 
Staffing Recharges/ 
Commissioning Costs 155,000 - 155,000 0 155,000 - 
  280,000 - 280,000 2,518 280,000 - 
NEW BUILD            
New Build - Housing 194,000 - 194,000 28,540 194,000 - 
  194,000 - 194,000 28,540 194,000 - 
TOTAL SPEND 4,685,570 (547,600) 4,137,970 1,346,953 4,137,970 - 
 
 
 

Page 26



5.21 
 

 

 
APPENDIX B 

 

 
 

2016/17 
 

Second Quarter 
 Procurement  

Review 
 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 27



5.22 
 

1. Introduction 
 

1.1 A key element of the financial savings included in the Council’s Efficiency & 
Rationalisation Strategy is being met from the implementation of the 
Procurement Strategy which was  agreed by Councillors in April 2014.  

 
1.2 The strategy was developed to ensure that its objectives link closely with the 

Council’s overall strategic vision and aims and objectives. The key actions in 
in the strategy included: 

 
• Delivery of cashable efficiency savings to support the Efficiency & 

Rationalisation Strategy by tendering, retendering and renegotiating of 
contracts. 

• Development and embedding a professional procurement unit of 
excellence to deliver on going efficiency savings for the Councils 

• Revising Financial and Procurement Procedure Rules to support 
transparency, timeliness of contract award and greater control 

• Expanding the usage of electronic procurement systems for works as 
appropriate 

• Increasing the levels of spend covered by the contract 
• Implementation of e-tendering 
• Supporting the local economy by increasing the number of procurement 

opportunities advertised and adoption of a local business concordat 
 
1.3 Significant progress has been made since April 2014, in conjunction with the 

external support of the Alliance transformation partner Northgate Information 
Solutions. The reliance on this external support has now ended as the new 
procurement staffing structure has been implemented as part of the service 
review process. This has enabled new working initiatives to be implemented 
including the integration of the creditors function into procurement which will 
ensure the ‘Purchase to Pay Cycle’ is robust and able to meet the demands of 
efficiency and performance targets. 

 
1.4 Additionally, the introduction of new systems and electronic processes now 

enables the Council to be fully compliant in accordance with Transparency 
Code and Public Contract Regulations requirements – with all procurement 
opportunities over £5,000 now openly advertised. 
 
 

  

Page 28



5.23 
 

2. Second Quarter Completed Procurements 

2.1 The activity supported by the procurement function for the second quarter July 
to September 2016 is summarised below: 

Second Quarter   
High Value  

(> 
£172,000) 

Low Value 

 (< 
£172,000) 

Total 

HPBC Only - 13 13 
JOINT (HP/SM) 1 6 7 
TOTAL 1 19 20 

 

2.2 Annex A provides details of the 20 procurements completed during Quarter 2.  
The high value procurement relates to: 
 
• The supply of liquid fuels (automotive)   

 
2.3 During the 2016/17 budget setting process, historical spend was analysed and 

where spend had been consistently lower than budget, this was highlighted for 
review. Subsequently, £408,000 in savings have now been offset against the 
efficiency programme in Quarter 2  

 
2.4 Additionally, a further £76,340 in cashable savings have been achieved from 

procurement activity during 2016/17 to date – which has also been offset 
against the efficiency programme.  This relates primarily to contract renewals. 

 
2.5 A number of one-off procurement exercised have also taken place – which 

may result in savings against overall budget.  This will be assessed when 
setting the 2017/18 budget and undertaking a comparison of expenditure 
against budget to identify where budgets can be reduced due to procurement 
activity.    

 

  

Page 29



5.24 
 

3. 2016/17 Procurement Forward Plan 

3.1 The 2016/17 procurement plan includes 54 remaining procurement 
opportunities to be delivered across the Alliance.  The table below details the 
number of exercises which fall into either low or high value (profiled over full 
contract term). 

2016/17 

Activity 

High Value  

(> 
£172,000k) 

 Low Value 

 (< 
£172,000k) 

Total 

HPBC 7 28 35 
JOINT (HP/SM) 1 18 19 
TOTAL 8 46 54 

  
In addition to the above, there are 178 exercises brought forward from 14/15 
and 15/16 for review and completion for both HPBC and SMDC. 

 
3.2 Some of the more significant ‘high level’ procurement activity to be delivered in 

2016/17 includes:- 
 

• Capital Programme works (HP/SM) 
• Repairs to the Octagon Hall Pavilion Gardens(HPBC) 
• Facilities and Management Services – Council Buildings (HP/SM) 
• Waste and Recycling Services (HPBC) 
• CCTV System Maintenance Contract (HP/SM) 
• Disabled Aids and Adaptations (Private and HPBC Housing Stock)  
• General Building Materials Supplies and Civils Works Frameworks 

(HP/SM) 
• Planning Consultancy and Professional Legal Services Framework 

(HP/SM) 
• Outbound Mail / Print rationalisation Transformation Project (HP/SM) 
• Pavilion Gardens Supplies – Food and Beverages (HPBC) 

 
  

Page 30



5.25 
 

4. Procurement Performance 

4.1 This section reports on the Council performance in terms of procurement 
activity and the payment of suppliers. 
 

4.2 Performance for the first quarter is highlighted below: 
 

Performance Indicator Target 
Performance at 
30th September 

2016 
% of Alliance Procurement 
Activity on Forward Plan 60% 58% 

Annual contract spend as % 
of gross expenditure budget 

75%                                
(Annual 5% 

improvement) 
63% 

% of invoices paid within 30 
days 

95% 94.41% 

 
 

4.3 Through the implementation of the Business Partner working and the 
Procurement web-form system, an improvement has been achieved in terms of 
the percentage of procurement activity that is on the forward plan in quarter 2. 
 

4.4 There has been an improvement in invoice payment performance compared to 
2015/16 as a result of the changes that have been implemented within the 
creditors function around streamlining processes and identifying staff and user 
training requirements. As process review recommendations continue to 
progress, performance should improve further as a consequence. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

Page 31



5.26 
 

ANNEX A 

Second Quarter Procurement Activity Completed 

Auth Contract 
name 

Contract Description 
 

Recurring 
or One-off 
contracts 

Service Area Contract 
Awarded To 

Term / 
Duration 
(years) 

Total 
Contract 

Value 
(inc 

exts) 
High Value (>172,000) 

Joint Liquid Fuel - 
Depots 

New contract for the Supply of 
Liquid Fuels (Automotive Fuels 
- Ultra Low Sulphur Diesel and 

Heating Oils - Gas Oil and 
Kerosene) 

Recurring 
Operational 
Services - 

Fleet 

Certas 
Energy Ltd 2 650,000 

Low Value (<172,000) 

Joint 

Personal 
Protective 
Equipment 

(PPE) 

Provision of PPE and 
corporate work clothing Recurring Operational 

Services ARCO 4 165,000 

Joint 

Banking 
Services 
Contract 

(Exemption 
2016-2019) 

Provision of Banking Services Recurring Finance - 
Mainstream Natwest 3 90,000 

HPBC Pye Grove 
Play Area 

Removal of current equipment 
and surfacing and installation 

of new equipment and 
associated works 

One off 
Operational 
Services - 

Horticulture 
Horticon Ltd 1 23,650 

HPBC 

Improvements 
to Burlow 
Road Play 

Area 

Improvements to Burlow road 
play area One-off 

Operational 
Services - 

Horticulture 
Horticon 1 17,304 

HPBC 
Electoral 

Registration 
Canvass 

Electoral Reform Service - 
Independent supplier of Ballot 

and Election Services 
Recurring 

Legal & 
Election 
Services 

Electoral 
Reform 
Services 

1 16,491 

HPBC 

Refurbishment 
of the One 

Stop Shop at 
Gamesley 

Internal Refurbishment to 
enable the property to be re let One-off 

Assets 
Housing 
Capital 

NSJ 
Contractors 1 10,619 

HPBC 

Watercourses 
- Urgent 
enabling 

works 

Warm Brook, Chapel en le 
Frith - urgent temporary works 
to protect the riverbank from 
further erosion, to protect the 

footpath and public safety. 

One-off Assets 
Whitehouse 
Construction 

Co Ltd 
n/a 9,921 

JOINT Energy 
Surveys 

Carry out energy surveys for 
display energy certificates and 
air conditioning assessments 

One-off Assets ESOS 
Energy Ltd 1 6,480 

Page 32



5.27 
 

HPBC 
Uniforms - 

Pav Gardens 
and TIC 

Uniforms - annual cycle Recurring 

Visitor 
Services - 
Pavilion 
Gardens 

ARCO 4 6,000 

HPBC Manor Park 
works 

Additional works to tendered 
works T2014-005.  Original 

contractor appointed 
One-off Assets Capital 

Projects 
Bethell 

Construction 1 5,000 

HPBC 

Aids and 
Adaptions - 

Bespoke 
Stairlift 

equipment 
(one property 

Buxton) 

One off specialist curved stair 
lift equipment One-off 

Assets 
Housing 
Capital 

HandiCare 1 4,741 

HPBC 
Installation of 
Basket Ball 

Hoop 

Installation of Hoop at Whaley 
Bridge One-off 

Operational 
Services - 

Horticulture 
Horticon 1 4,660 

HPBC 

Electrcial 
Work at 
housing 
property 

(Environmental 
Health) 

recharging for 
service 

Property in Batham Gate 
require to be re wired under 

environmental health 
legislation 

One-off 

Regulatory 
Services - 

Environmental 
Health 

High Peak 
Electricians 1 3,400 

HPBC 

The 
Serpentine 

Park Health & 
Safety Works 

To carry out various repairs to 
existing wall and also footpath One-off 

Operational 
Services - 

Horticulture 
NSJ 1 2,822 

HPBC 
Washing 
Machine 
Purchase 

Washing machine purchase 
required to replace failed 
machine at Alma Square 

One-off 

Customer 
Services - 
Housing 
Tenancy 
Services 

Goodman 
Sparks 1 2,052 

JOINT Headsets for 
Call centre 

New headsets required due to 
old headsets not being 
compatible with new 

technologies 

One-off 

Customer 
Services - 
Customer 
Services 

Best for 
systems 1  

Joint IT - Pericles 
Licence 

Pericles licence to cover old 
R&B system used for archived 

records only - both councils 
Recurring 

Organisational 
Development 

& 
Transformation 

- ICT 

N/A - not to 
be renewed   

Joint 
Job 

Evaluation 
software 

Annual subscription fee for the 
gauge element of the job 

evaluation software 
Recurring 

Organisational 
Development 

& 
Transformation 

- HR 

N/A - not to 
be renewed   

Page 33



5.28 
 

HPBC 

Hydrogeologist 
Professional 
Services - 

Buxton Spa 
Crescent 
Project 

Provision of professional 
hydrogeology consultancy 
advice for the council, in 
particular to support the 

Buxton Spa Crescent Project 

Recurring Regeneration N/A - not to 
be renewed   

Joint 
Legal 

Services 
Framework 

Legal Services Framework Recurring 
Legal & 
Election 
Services 

Not to be 
renewed   

 

Page 34



5.29 
 

 

High Peak Performance and Customer Feedback Report: April to September 2016 (Q2) 

  

P
age 35



5.30 
 

High Peak Q2 Summary  

The following report provides Councillors with an overview of performance at High Peak for the period April to September 2016 in relation to 
the Council’s corporate plan priorities and the associated performance targets and projects. The 2016/17 reports are the first in an agreed new 
style, which better reflects the Council’s paperless approach to meetings with greater use of tablet-friendly reports. There is no longer an 
analysis against a ‘dashboard’ of measures but rather against the wider performance framework as a whole. The report also provides an 
overview of the results from the Council’s customer feedback system in terms of how we handle complaints and the level of comments and 
compliments.       

Performance Overview  

There are 61 ‘monthly’ and ‘quarterly’ reported performance measures at High Peak and the chart below shows the results for quarter two. 
The ‘N/A’ column includes those measures that are designed to provide contextual information only or are new for 2016/17 and therefore 
have no target for this year. The actions being taken to address the ‘off track’ measures are detailed at the end of this report. 

The report also provides an update on the progress of key projects that contribute to the priority actions outlined in the Corporate Plan. The 
table below right explains the colour coding used to describe the current status.  

    

  

 

 

 

 

 Project off Track 

 Project in danger of going off Track 

 Project on Track 

 Awaiting Decision / Project Initiation 
Documentation 

 Complete / Closed 

34% 

25% 

41% 

0

10

20

30

40

50

On track Off track N/A

P
age 36



5.31 
 

Customer Feedback Overview  

The targets for repeat complaints and responding to complaints are both on track but we have seen an increase in the number of stage 1 
complaints, compared to last year. This is particularly noticeable in Housing but many of the complaints were unjustified upon investigation.    

 

Aim 1: Help create a safer and healthier environment for our residents to live and work   

 

The large proportion of N/A measures reflects a raft of new measures for 2016/17 for which a baseline is being collected in order to set a 
target in 2017/18, where relevant.  

Celebrating Success: As the reporting year progresses we will highlight successful performance under each of our aims.    

In September the following performance indicators outstripped their targets: 

 Benefits processing times for new claims and change of circumstances  
 Prevention of homelessness 

0%

10%

20%

30%

40%

50%

60%

70%

On track Off Track N/A

HP Aim 1: Q2 2016 Results  

P
age 37



5.32 
 

Corporate Priority Actions – Progress Highlights 

Project / Rating Priority Action Progress – September 
HRA Business Plan 
Review Project 

Complete and Implement a Housing Management and 
Revenue Plan 

Housing review emerging recommendations being collated and 
savings incorporated into MTFP Feb 17. Analysis of task and 
functions underway. External support engaged focusing on 
processes/sources of income and rent policy. Systems review 
underway including OHMS/Keystone. Member workshop 
arranged Oct/Nov to look at lettings/voids/sheltered. Pay to Stay 
- awaiting DCLG regulations, working group focusing on economic 
test. 

Combined 
Authority Project 
– Closed  

Work with our Combined Authority partners and the Local 
Enterprise Partnership to bring  funding to the High Peak 

In the light of the Council’s decision not to join the proposed 
North Midlands Combined Authority and the uncertainties 
relating to the future of that proposal, seeking to external funding 
will now continue as usual through the LEP and other appropriate 
organisations. 

Strategic 
Partnerships 
Project 

• Secure better health and care services through 
commissioners and providers 

• Review and Improve our relationships with Strategic 
Partners 

• Influence the provision of  accessible health and social 
care 

• Influence the outcomes around dealing with Anti- Social 
Behaviour  

The partnership definition has been presented to the project 
board and the initial process for identifying the list of partners has 
been agreed. A partnership audit will then take place to identify 
resource commitments and outcomes achieved from the 
partnership which will link to this action. The initial identification 
stage has slipped by one month but is expected to return to 'on 
track' later in the year. 

 
 

 

 

 

P
age 38



5.33 
 

Aim 2: Meet financial challenges and provide value for money 

 
        

The issue of non-returns for indicators supporting Aim Two identified in Q1 have now been resolved. However, both the repairs measures are 
off track and have contributed to the increase in off track performance for High Peak.   

Celebrating Success: As the reporting year progresses we will highlight successful performance under each of our aims.    

In September the following performance indicators outstripped their targets: 

 Complaints dealt with within 10 working days 
 Repeat complaints  
 Internal audit recommendations implemented on time 

 
 
 
 

0%

10%

20%

30%

40%

50%

60%

70%

On track Off Track N/A

HP Aim 2: Q2 2016 Results 

P
age 39



5.34 
 

Corporate Priority Actions – Progress Highlights 

Project / Rating Priority Action Progress – September  
Channel Shift 
Programme 

• Improve customer service 
• Communicate more effectively with residents 

 

The status has changed to amber as the revenues e-
forms will not be ready until the end of November. The 
revenues back log currently stands at 6-8 weeks. This 
has impacted on the localisation of forms, assessor 
training and SPD reviews. At the October Channel Shift 
project board it was agreed that Revenues should use 
Civica on Demand in the short term to alleviate the back 
log. All milestones are on track for the launch of the 
new website. The launch is set for w/c 5th December, 
which is a revised milestone that has been agreed. 

Information 
Governance 
Group 

Develop a plan to ensure better sharing of information between 
services and with partners 
 

Assured framework launched through KYI outlining our 
approach. Action plan progressing well. Draft Data 
Protection Policies and overarching Information 
Governance Policy almost complete. New PIA forms 
developed and integrated into project methodology. 
Incident reporting form developed. Work has begun on 
a classification framework. 

Income 
Generation 
Project 

Develop and implement a plan to identify new and innovative ways of 
generating income  
 

All income generation challenge meetings have been 
completed. Summary report produced for review at 
next Board meeting. The next step is to categorise the 
suggestions to include fees and 
charges/costs/benefits/timescales. 

Various Bring additional funding into the Borough 
 

Linked to various regeneration-based projects 

Various Continually review and implement an efficiency and rationalisation 
programme 
 

The E&R Strategy is covered by a number of projects 
(income generation, service reviews, AMP, 3rd sector, 
etc.,), and the vast majority are progressing to plan.    

 

 

P
age 40



5.35 
 

 

Aim 3: Support economic development and regeneration  

 

The indicators listed as N/A refer to those measures for which 2016/17 has been set as a baseline year for gathering data or the measure is for 
contextual purposes only.   

 

Celebrating Success: As the reporting year progresses we will highlight successful performance under each of our aims.    

In September the following performance indicators outstripped their targets: 

 Major, Minor and other planning applications processed on time 
 Customer satisfaction with the planning process 

 

 

0%

10%

20%

30%

40%

50%

60%

70%

On track Off Track N/A

HP Aim 3: Q2 2016 Results  

P
age 41



5.36 
 

 

Corporate Priority Actions – Progress Highlights 

Project / Rating Priority Action Progress – September  
Local Plan – 
Completed  

Adopt an approved Local Plan which will be kept under review 
 

Plan adopted in April 2016. Action Completed.  

Tourism  Review the Tourist Information Centre and tourism service 
 

The review is ongoing and different options are being 
considered to reduce the cost of the service along with 
other projects to increase income in the retail area.  

Trans Pennine  Press for more regular and faster rail links and road infrastructure 
 

An interim report was due to be published in July which 
will identify and shortlist options for a strategic route. 
Assuming there is a viable case for the options, they will 
be evaluated and a final report published in October 
2016. 

Crescent Together with partners work for the delivery of the Buxton Crescent 
development 

The main contract work has begun. Work on the pump 
room has been completed following a slight delay.  
 

Open 4 Business Create an “Open for Business” environment in High Peak 
 

Work is now underway to build the Business pages of 
the new website ready for go-live. Scope of project will 
be evaluated in the coming weeks and the board is due 
to meet again in November, once objectives have been 
finalised. 

Woods Mill- 
Completed 

Support the development of the Woods Mill area, Glossop 
 

Action Completed. Woods Mill has been removed from 
the project list as it is now in the hands of the developer 
to deliver the project. We are however still working with 
the developer to bring about a timely start to the work 
on site. 

Glossop Halls Support the development of Glossop Halls The outline project definition has been approved by 
Executive. Report to be completed for September cycle, 
PID received. 
 

Torr Vale Mill Support the development of Torr Vale Mill Still in discussion regarding the memorandum of 
understanding. 
 

 

P
age 42



5.37 
 

 

 

Aim 4: Protect and Improve the Environment 

 
The contaminated recyclables measure has now risen above the 5% target, taking it off track.  

 

Celebrating Success: As the reporting year progresses we will highlight successful performance under each of our aims.    

In September the following performance indicators outstripped their targets: 

 Recycling rates are estimated to be ahead of target  

 

 

 

0%
10%
20%
30%
40%
50%
60%
70%

On track Off Track N/A

HP Aim 4: Q2 2016 Results 

P
age 43



5.38 
 

 

Corporate Priority Actions – Progress Highlights 

Project / Rating Priority Action Progress – September  
Parks and Open 
Spaces 

Work with local residents to improve our parks 
 

Green Flag award retained for Whaley Bridge Memorial 
Park for 2016/17.  

Local Plan - 
Completed 

Establish a developer open space contributions plan 
 

High Peak local plan has been adopted of which this will 
be a part. Action completed.  

Asset 
Management Plan 

Supporting project for the efficiency and rationalisation programme 
 

A meeting has taken place to review the entire asset 
management plan and the financial consequences. 
Condition information has been presented.  

Car Parking / 
Residents 
Concessions - 
Completed 

Review car parking provision and extend resident concessionary 
parking  
 

Project completed.  

Enforcement 
Arrangements 

Take steps to reduce dog fouling and littering 
 

Reporting arrangements are being reviewed to better 
allow Councillors to ‘self serve’ updates. Portfolio 
holders receiving regular updates on no.s of FPN’s 
served and enforcement patrols undertaken. Greater 
involvement of corporate communications officer to 
publicise the enforcement approach. Official launch 
date is due soon. Communication plans are being 
produced and further training is taking place. 

Service Reviews – 
action completed 

Effective snow clearance Considered as part of the Operational Services 
structures / Service Plan.  

 

 

 

P
age 44



5.39 
 

 

P
age 45



5.40 
  

P
age 46



5.41 
 

 

Areas for Improvement: September 2016  

Measure of Success (PI)  Aim / Objective Service Lead Target 
2016/17 

 Result 
September 

2016 
Reasons for performance / SMART actions to improve 

Number of households in 
temporary accommodation 

Aim 1: Fit for purpose 
housing stock that meets 

the needs of tenants  

Head of 
Customer 
Services 

10 16 Void turnover has slowed which impacts on ability to 
accommodate. Review has revealed two households 
eligible for secure tenancies. A further two temporary 
tenancies were due to decants from secure tenancies to 
allow repair work to take place.  

% RTB applications 
completed within statutory 

timescales (RTB2). 

Aim 1: Fit for purpose 
housing stock that meets 

the needs of tenants 

Legal and 
Elections 
Manager 

100% 97% 1 application went over the time limit as research had to 
be done to establish if a person living at the property was 
eligible to be included when there had been a succession 
of tenancy in the past. 

Average days sickness 
absence per FTE 

Aim 2:  
A high performing and 

well motivated workforce 

OD & 
Transformation 

Manager 

7 days 4.03 days HR business partners are working with managers to 
improve their understanding of trends and issues, to 
support staff which will help reduce sickness levels. 

Average time taken to 
answer calls 

Aim 2: Ensure our 
services are easily 
available to all our 

residents in the 
appropriate channels and 
provided 'right first time' 

Operations 
Manager 
Frontline 

100 
seconds 

125 
seconds 

High volumes of revenues calls particularly at peak 
periods have impacted on wait times, the introduction of 
self serve forms due to be rolled out in the next 6 weeks 
will reduce the number of incoming calls. We are 
recruiting to some of the vacant posts to assist with 
customer wait times and the implementation of the self 
serve functions. Call duration has increased as we assist 
customers to get it right first time and reduce repeat 
calls. 

P
age 47



5.42 
 

Measure of Success (PI)  Aim / Objective Service Lead Target 
2016/17 

 Result 
September 

2016 
Reasons for performance / SMART actions to improve 

Average time from request 
to repair (DLO) 

Aim 2: More effective use 
of Council assets 

 

Operations 
Manager Direct 

Services 

12 days 16.87 days The KPI is off target due to a significant delay in obtaining 
meter door replacements. During September 74 
outstanding jobs were completed. The average of these 
jobs was 261 days since the request to repair was 
received. The main backlog has now been resolved and 
an improvement in this KPI is expected, although it is not 
expected to meet its target for the year. 

% of responsive repairs for 
which an appointment was 

made and kept 

Aim 2: More effective use 
of Council assets 

 

Operations 
Manager Direct 

Services 

99%  94.93% Issues in retrieving data for Apr, May, June & July has led 
to the % being lower than target. The actual return for 
Aug is 98.48% and Sept 99.28%.  

% Rent loss due to vacant 
stock 

Aim 2: More effective use 
of Council assets 

Head of 
Customer 
Services 

0.86% 1.21% Please note that excluding held properties this figure is 
0.37%. There are a number of properties on the disposal 
list and long term sheltered voids which has affected the 
result. We are making every effort to resolve the 
situation. 

Average time taken to re-let 
Council homes 

 

Aim 2: More effective use 
of Council assets 

Head of 
Customer 
Services 

35 days 37.2 days The in-month figure is 27.1 days, which is well within 
target. The year to date result has been affected by 
letting of long term voids earlier in the year.  

Collection rates: Rent  Aim 2: Effective use of 
financial and other 

resources to ensure value 
for money 

Finance and 
Procurement 

Manager 

98.85% 94.69% Performance remains off track but the gap is continuing 
to close month on month. There is a combination of 
issues contributing to a reduction in performance, for 
example, an increase in court costs consequently 
increasing workload prior to getting to that stage, a 
reduction in supporting  people funding, benefit caps 
increasing the amount of collectable rent.  

P
age 48



5.43 
 

Measure of Success (PI)  Aim / Objective Service Lead Target 
2016/17 

 Result 
September 

2016 
Reasons for performance / SMART actions to improve 

Invoices paid on time Aim 2: Effective use of 
financial and other 

resources to ensure value 
for money 

Finance and 
Procurement 

Manager 

 

95% 94.41% Absences within Operational Services has affected the 
approval rate and slowed down the process outside of 
creditors. A review meeting needs to be held with 
Operational Services to mitigate this happening again. 

% of appeals successfully 
defended 

Aim 3:  
High quality development 
and building control with 

an open for business 
approach 

Operations 
Manager 

Development 
Services 

80% 74% Of the two decisions received this month, one was 
upheld and has led to the drop in our performance result 
for the year to date.  

Pavilion Gardens - Trip 
Advisor ratings (% good / 

excellent) 

Aim 3: Flourishing town 
centres 

Visitor Services 
Manager 

95% 94% Slight increase on Q1.  

Pavilion Gardens - footfall   Aim 3: Promote tourism  Visitor Services 
Manager 

217,000 213,000 Although footfall has remained largely consistent with 
the same period last year, the protracted inclement 
weather over the summer adversely affect business 
levels and the performance against target is slightly off-
track. The presence of the marquee has also changed the 
flow and amount of footfall entering the main building.  

Residual waste per 
household 

Aim 4: Effective recycling 
and waste management  

Head of 
Operational 

Services 

480kg 244kg Waste minimisation projects have been ongoing in 
conjunction with DCC.   

P
age 49



5.44 
 

Measure of Success (PI)  Aim / Objective Service Lead Target 
2016/17 

 Result 
September 

2016 
Reasons for performance / SMART actions to improve 

% of contamination amongst 
dry recyclables 

 

Aim 4: Effective recycling 
and waste management 

Head of 
Operational 

Services 

<5% 7.6% This PI is new for 2016/17. The contamination rate is 
likely to be below 10% for the year. Targeted publicity 
campaigns aimed at waste minimisation and decreasing 
contamination are underway with partners from DCC. 
Individual contact is made to residents that have 
contaminated their bins highlighting why the bin was 
rejected. 

 

For a full list of all performance measures and the September 2016 results please visit the Performance Management page on the Intranet or click on this 
link. http://hpbc.alliance-online.org/transformation/performance-management   

P
age 50

http://hpbc.alliance-online.org/transformation/performance-management


6.1 
 

AGENDA ITEM 6 
 

HIGH PEAK BOROUGH COUNCIL 
 

Report to the Corporate Select Committee 
 

28th November 2016 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Appendices Attached 

• Appendix A (Medium Term Financial Plan 2017/18 to 2020/21) 
 
 
1. Reason for the Report 
 
1.1 This report presents the Council’s updated Medium Term Financial Plan 

(MTFP). The MTFP presents the Council’s priorities in the context of the likely 
resources available, providing a financial context to future decision-making. 

 
 
2. Recommendations 
 
2.1 That members of the Committee endorse the updated Medium Term Financial 

Plan (Appendix A) with the recommendation that it should proceed to 
Executive for approval  

 
 
3. Executive Summary 
 
3.1 The medium term financial planning process provides the Council with the 

opportunity to plan its delivery of public services in accordance with local 
priorities and against the backdrop of unprecedented public sector financial 
constraint 

 
3.2 The Medium Term Financial Plan (MTFP) is updated in accordance with the 

budget cycle. This version of the MTFP presents the Council’s finances over a 
four-year period, namely 2017/18 to 2020/21. It sets the context for the 

TITLE: Updated Medium Term Financial Plan 2017/18 
to 2020/21 

 
EXECUTIVE COUNCILLOR: Cllr Emily Thrane – Executive Councillor for 

Corporate Services   
 
CONTACT OFFICERS: Claire Hazeldene – Finance & Procurement 

Manager 
   
WARDS INVOLVED:  Non-Specific 

Page 51

Agenda Item 6

http://smdcintranet/committeeagendas/2012-13/Overview%20&%20Scrutiny/Resources/10Oct12/SMDC%20-%20MTFP%20Oct%202012%20(2)Agenda%20Item%207.doc


6.2 
 

preparation of the 2017/18 budget which will need to be approved by the 
Council in February 2017.   

 
3.3 The Plan provides:  
 

• Details of local spending influences in the context of the Corporate Plan  
• A focus on the transformation programme and the consequential financial 

implications, including the capital programme, housing revenue account 
review and efficiency & rationalisation plan  

• Updated inflation and interest assumptions using the latest forecasts and 
the impact of any budgetary demand 

• An update on any national issues that will impact on the Council’s financial 
position, including core Government funding forecasts and the Business 
Rates retention scheme 

 
3.4 The previous version of the MTFP was agreed by the Council in February 

2016 when setting the budget for the current financial year. The Plan identified 
a £1,969,590 budget shortfall over the four year period on the general fund.  
This was primarily as a result of the reduction in Government funding 
including the phasing out of Revenue Support Grant by 2019/20 and changes 
to the New Homes Bonus funding system.   
 

3.5 The shortfall of £659,910 by the end of 2016/17 was to be offset through the 
Council’s current efficiency and rationalisation strategy.  With the remaining 
£1,309,680 to be met from future efficiency programmes focusing on the 
operation of waste, streets and leisure and the implementation of the channel 
shift project. 
 

3.6 This latest MTFP update highlights a cumulative deficit of £1,760,220 for the 
General Fund which assumes the current efficiency programme is achieved 
(with 2016/17 being the last year of the current plan). The increased deficit is 
primarily as a result of inflation, pension and revised New Homes Bonus 
assumptions. 

 
3.7 The ability to limit the impact of the reduction in central government support is 

underpinned by three major sources of income: 
 

• Retained Business Rates through economic growth  
• Maintaining the level of new homes bonus through a commitment to 

housing growth; and 
• Reviewing fees and charges and identifying new sources of income 

generation  
 
3.8 The MTFP also assumes an annual 1.9% increase in Council Tax over the life 

of the plan. 
 

3.9 The Housing Revenue Account (HRA) was balanced in 2016/17 with the 
inclusion of a £500,000 reduction to the capital programme, with a £2,467,880 
cumulative budget shortfall over the period 2017/18 – 2019/20 as a result of 

Page 52



6.3 
 

the 1% annual rent reduction (over a four year period) announced by 
Government.  

 
3.10 This latest MTFP update highlights a cumulative deficit of £3,569,270 for the 

HRA at the end of the plan period i.e. 31st March 2021.  The financial position 
is based on current capital and revenue forecasts which are currently being 
reviewed. The increased deficit is primarily as a result of inflation, increased 
pension contributions and the overall reduction in income.  Although a rent 
increase of 1.5% has been assumed in 2020/21, the impact of the four year 
1% reductions consequently results in income remaining lower than current 
levels of expenditure. The deficit will be reduced by £500,000 if the level of 
annual capital investment is maintained at the current year level.     
 

3.11 A review of the HRA is currently underway, with a working group established. 
Some of the recommendations in terms of savings and income generation 
opportunities from this will be incorporated into the February 2017 version of 
the MTFP.    

 
3.12 Achieving a balanced budget in the medium-term relies upon delivery of the 

Council's approved efficiency & rationalisation strategy. The outstanding 
current efficiency programme will be re-profiled or reallocated as necessary as 
part of the February MTFP update to ensure the remaining savings can be 
achieved.  A new efficiency plan will then be developed to address the MTFP 
cumulative budget shortfall.  It is essential that the Council continues to 
implement this strategy. 

 
3.13 There are a number of principles that underpin the efficiency plans in order to 

ensure that they are focussed in the right areas and are deliverable. These 
are: 

 
• Individual service structures will be properly combined across the strategic 

alliance with Staffordshire Moorlands D.C.; 
• There will be continued protection of front-line services 
• Non-priorities will be identified in discretionary services and targeted for 

savings if possible 
• Mandatory services will be developed to ensure that they are efficient 

when compared with the best local authorities 
• Transactional services will be delivered around the needs of customers 

and development of “channel shift”  
• There will be strong focus on corporate efficiencies e.g. procurement and 

asset management to minimise the impact on staffing levels  
 
3.14 As previously stated, this version of the MTFP sets the context for the 

development of the 2017/18 Budget.  Members will receive a further update of 
the MTFP when considering the final budget proposals in February 2017. The 
following actions will need to be completed to ensure that these proposals are 
robust:    

 
• Complete review of the Council's transformation programme and produce 

revised forecasts as required  

Page 53



6.4 
 

• Further development of the HRA Business Plan incorporating HRA review 
recommendations 

• Assess the impact of the Autumn statement announcement in November 
2016 

• Development of detailed budget plans for 2017/18 
• Development of detailed proposals for Fees and Charges increases  
• Complete review of reserves and balances 
• Development of a new Efficiency & Rationalisation Strategy 
• Continue to monitor the ongoing issues arising from the retention of 

business rates and the associated financial implications for the Council  
 
 
4.       How this Report Links to Corporate Priorities  
 
4.1 The successful delivery of all corporate priorities is dependent upon the 

effective management of financial resources, which is the subject of this 
report. 

 
 

5.       Options and Analysis 
 
5.1 There are no options to consider at this stage. Options will be need to be 

developed in order to close the financial deficits highlighted in this updated 
plan. 

 
 
6. Implications 
 
6.1 Community Safety - (Crime and Disorder Act 1998) 

None. 
 

6.2 Workforce 
None. 
 

6.3 Equality and Diversity/Equality Impact Assessment 
This report has been prepared in accordance with the Council's Equality and 
Diversity policies. 
 
An Equalities Impact Assessment (EIA) has been undertaken on the 
Corporate Plan, which feeds into budget plans. 
 

6.4 Financial Considerations 
There are substantial financial considerations contained throughout the 
report. 
 

6.5 Legal 
None. 
 

6.6 Sustainability 
None. 

Page 54



6.5 
 

 
6.7 External Consultation 

The Council’s budget plans are the subject of an annual public consultation 
exercise. Full details are contained within the plan 

 
6.8     Risk Assessment 

A full risk analysis has been undertaken which is contained within the plan 
 
 

 
ANDREW P STOKES 

Executive Director (Transformation) & Chief Finance Officer 
 
Background Papers Location Contact details 

 
Various background working papers 

 
Buxton Town Hall 

 
Claire Hazeldene  
Finance & Procurement 
Manager 
01538 395400 Ext. 4191 
 
Keith Pointon  
Principal Finance Officer 
(Financial Planning) 
01538 395400 Ext. 4193 

 

Page 55



6.6 
 

 
APPENDIX A 

 
 

HIGH PEAK BOROUGH COUNCIL 
 
 
 
 
 
MEDIUM TERM FINANCIAL PLAN 2017/18 to 2020/21 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
November 2016 

Page 56



6.7 
 

INDEX 
 
 
1 Introduction 

 
2 Strategic Priorities 
 
3      Current Spending Levels  
 
4 Transformation Programme 
 4.1 Introduction 
 4.2 Capital Programme 
 4.3 Housing Revenue Account Review  
 4.4 Efficiency and Rationalisation Strategy 

4.5 Service Reviews  
4.6 Member Priority Projects 
4.7 Other Projects 

 
5 Financial Forecasts 

5.1 Interest Rates 
5.2 Inflationary Projections 
5.3 Budgetary Demand 
5.4 Budget Growth 
5.5 Pensions 
5.6 HRA - Other Operating Expenditure 

 
6 Funding & Income Generation 

6.1 Council Tax  
6.2 Business Rates Retention  

        6.3    Collection Fund 
6.4 Income from Government Grants 
6.5 Fees & Charges 

 
7  Risks, Contingencies & Use of Reserves  
 
8 Revenue Financial Projections  

8.1 General Fund Revenue Position 
8.2 HRA Revenue Position 

 
9 Consultation 
 
 
Annex A Proposed Capital Programme 
Annex B Efficiency & Rationalisation Strategy   
Annex C  MTFP Principal Risks 
Annex D Proposed Revenue Budget (General Fund & HRA) 
Annex E Efficiency Plan Submission (4 Year Settlement)   

Page 57



6.8 
 

1. INTRODUCTION 
 

1.1. The Medium Term Financial Plan (MTFP) is a key element of the Council’s 
budget and policy frameworks. It aims to ensure that resources are directed 
effectively and efficiently towards delivery of the Council’s Corporate Plan. It 
describes the financial direction of the Council for planning purposes and 
outlines the financial pressures the Council is likely to experience over the next 
4 years.   
 

1.2. The medium-term financial planning process establishes how available 
resources will be allocated to services in line with the Council’s priorities which 
have been determined following consultation with residents, councillors and 
other stakeholders. The process facilitates the Council in planning the prudent 
management of its finances, in building resilience and in providing for the needs 
of residents over the long term.   
 

1.3. The MTFP is updated regularly to fit in with the budget cycle. This review of the 
MTFP builds on the existing plan and updates assumptions to reflect known 
changes to income, costs and funding. The plan incorporates revenue and 
capital financial projections over the four years 2017/18 to 2020/21.  It also 
includes an assessment of key risks and a presentation of longer-term financial 
issues which have the potential to impact on the Council.  
 

1.4. The Council will demonstrate economy, efficiency and effectiveness in the 
application of its resources. Value for Money (VFM) is maximised when there is 
an optimum balance between economy, efficiency and effectiveness. 

 
• Economy: the price the Council pays for providing its services  
• Efficiency: how much the Council gets out of what’s put in (productivity)  
• Effectiveness: value of the impact achieved (quantitative or qualitative)  
 
 

2. STRATEGIC PRIORITIES 
 

2.1. The Medium Term Financial Plan is driven by local priorities. The Council’s 
spending strategy is set out in the Corporate Plan formally adopted by 
members of the Council. 
 

2.2. Following the elections in May 2015, there was a fundamental review of the 
Corporate Plan focussing on the period 2015-2019 (up to the end of the current 
political administration). 
 

2.3. The purpose of a Corporate Plan is to establish the Council’s vision, corporate 
objectives and key priorities for the medium term.  It in effect determines the 
Council’s commitments in the delivery of services and community leadership to 
the citizens of High Peak. 

 
 
 

Page 58



6.9 
 

2.4. The Council’s Corporate Plan has been developed after taking into account the 
views and aspirations of High Peak citizens and having come to a clear 
understanding of empirical evidence. The plan has taken due recognition of the 
national and regional policy framework.  It has taken on board learning from the 
progress made by the Council and has benefitted from input from Members at a 
priority setting event which was held in July 2015. 
 

2.5. The Council’s vision is expressed as:    
 

“Delivering excellent services to High Peak residents and demonstrating value 
for money” 

 
 This vision is articulated further by four aims: 

 
• Help create a safer and healthier environment for our residents to live and 

work 
• Meet financial challenges & provide value for money 
• Support economic development & regeneration 
• Protect and improve the environment 

 
2.6. These aims are supported by a number of objectives which also provide the 

framework for the delivery of service plans. The Council’s objectives are 
summarised below:  

 

 Aim Objectives 
 

1 
 
Help create a safer and 
healthier environment 
for our residents to live 
and work 
 

• Effective relationship with strategic partners 
• Fit for purpose housing stock that meets the needs of 

tenants 
• Effective support of community safety arrangements 
• Provision of high quality leisure facilities 

 
2 

 
Meet its financial 
challenges and provide 
value for money 
 
 
 

• Effective use of financial and other resources to ensure 
value for money 

• Ensure our services are easily available to all our 
residents in the appropriate channels and provided ‘right 
first time’ 

• A high performing and highly motivated workforce 
• More effective use of Council assets 

 
3 

 
Support economic 
development and 
regeneration 
 

• Encourage business start-ups and enterprises 
• Flourishing town centres that support the local economy 
• Promote tourism 
• High quality development and building control with an 

‘open for business approach’ 
 
4 

 
Protect and improve 
the environment  
 

• Effective recycling and waste management 
• Provision of high quality public amenities, clean streets 

and environmental health 
• Provision of quality parks and open spaces 
• Car parking arrangements that meet the needs of 

residents, businesses and visitors 
 

Page 59



6.10 
 

 
2.7. The Council is committed to playing the lead role in championing the local area. 

In so doing the Council recognises its community leadership role. Fulfilling this 
role effectively means influencing partners in a number of key areas in order to 
ensure that services are shaped and delivered around the needs and 
aspirations of citizens. The priorities for the Council’s influencing role will be 
focused in the following areas: 

 
• Work with the private sector on regeneration schemes including: The 

Crescent, Woods Mill and Torr Vale Mill 
• Press for more regular and faster rail links and road infrastructure 
• Provision of accessible health and social care 
• Effective snow clearance 
• Support the police in dealing with anti social behaviour 
• Work with partners to bring additional funding into the borough 

 
2.8. The Plan identifies key priority outcomes, which will be the highest priority in the 

development of performance targets and key actions.  A significant proportion 
of the Council’s resources will be directed towards achieving them:  

 

 Aim Priority Outcomes 
 

1 
 
Help create a safer and 
healthier environment for our 
residents to live and work 

• Good quality social housing provision 
• Improved health 

 
2 

 
Meet financial challenges and 
provide value for money 
 
 

• Balanced and sustainable medium 
term financial position 

• Council services provide value for 
money 

• High level of resident and customer 
satisfaction 

 
3 

 
Support economic 
development and 
regeneration 
 

• Sustainable towns and rural 
communities 

• Increased economic growth 

 
4 

 
Protect and improve the 
environment  
 

• High recycling rates 
• Quality parks and open spaces and 

clean streets 

 
2.9. The Council maintains a Strategic Alliance with Staffordshire Moorlands District 

Council, formed around the principle of shared services in the pursuit of 
efficiency and realisation of savings. The Strategic Alliance has enabled the 
implementation and transformation of a joint management structure and 
services, consequently realising significant efficiency savings.  
 

2.10. The Council intends to continue to drive savings and service improvements 
through collaboration with its Alliance partner. 
 

Page 60



6.11 
 

3. CURRENT SPENDING LEVELS 
 

3.1. The starting point for the development of the MTFP is the current level of 
spending and the approved capital expenditure commitments. 

 
General Fund Revenue Budget   

 
3.2. The Council’s current year (2016/17) General Fund budget can be summarised 

as follows: 
 

Income and Expenditure 2016/17 
Budget 

  £ 
Employees 11,783,380 
Premises 3,432,170 
Transport 696,310 
Supplies & Services 9,831,890 
Benefits 28,960 
Borrowing 1,547,970 
Parish Grant 51,320 
Financing Costs 191,000 
  
Total Expenditure 27,563,000 
   
Fees and Charges / Other Income (10,817,340) 
Interest Receipts (130,660) 
Capital Recharges (231,240) 
HRA Recharges (6,197,820) 
   
Net Expenditure 10,185,940 
   

 
3.3. The net expenditure is financed as follows:  

 

Financing 2016/17 
Budget 

  £ 
Council Tax (5,270,520) 
Government Funding (1,124,580) 
New Homes Bonus (773,320) 
Business Rates Retention (2,851,190) 
Collection Fund Deficit 529,570 
Contribution to / (from) Reserves & Balances (695,900) 
  
Total Financing (10,185,940) 
   

  
 
 
 

 

Page 61



6.12 
 

Housing Revenue Account Budget   
 

3.4. The Housing Revenue Account (HRA) is a ‘ring-fenced’ account that ensures 
the management and maintenance of the Council’s housing stock is funded 
from the income generated by rents and other related sources.  
 

3.5. The Council’s current year (2016/17) Housing Revenue Account budget can be 
summarised as follows:  

 
Budget Heading 2016/17 

Budget 
  £ 
Repairs & Maintenance 3,096,290 
Supervision & Management 3,001,070 
Rates, Rents, Taxes, Charges 130,770 
Other Operating Expenditure 1,435,860 
Depreciation & Impairment Charges 1,432,000 
Interest & Debt Management Charges 3,416,430 
HRA Contribution to Capital Programme 2,744,570 
Total Expenditure 15,256,990 
  Dwellings Rents (14,642,120) 
Non - Dwelling Rents & Other Income (614,870) 
Total Income (15,256,990) 
  (Surplus) / Deficit for year - 

 
General Fund Capital Budget 

 
3.6. The medium-term projection for General Fund capital commitments approved 

by Council in February 2016 is detailed below: 
 

Service Area  2015/16 2016/17 2017/18 2018/19 2019/20 Total  
  £ £ £ £ £ £ 
Housing  241,960 - - - - 241,960 
Asset Management Plan 313,060 1,474,350 2,215,460 2,970,130 1,104,000  8,077,000 
Growth Fund - - - - - - 
Housing Grants 250,000 238,000 238,000    238,000     238,000  1,202,000 
ICT Strategy 124,710 100,000 100,000    100,000     100,000  524,710 
Other Schemes 569,250 275,600    244,130  - - 1,088,980 
Total Programme  1,498,980 2,087,950 2,797,590 3,308,130 1,442,000 11,134,650 
Financed by:             
External Contributions  305,360 284,250 238,000 238,000 238,000 1,303,610 
Capital Receipts  -    679,000     138,000     845,000     240,000  1,902,000 
Capital Reserve    750,000  - - - - 750,000 
S106 Planning Obligations    291,960       25,000  - - - 316,960 
Borrowing 151,660 1,099,700 2,421,590 2,225,130 964,000 6,862,080 
Total  Financing  1,498,980 2,087,950 2,797,590 3,308,130 1,442,000 11,134,650 

Page 62



6.13 
 

 
Housing Revenue Account Capital Budget 

 
3.7. The medium-term projection for Housing Revenue Account capital 

commitments approved by Council in February 2016 was as follows: 
 
  

2015/16 2016/17 2017/18 2018/19 2019/20 Total 

  £ £ £ £ £ £ 
Planned Maintenance 2,967,180 3,121,000 3,220,000 3,220,000 3,220,000 15,748,180 
Responsive Works 815,750 1,340,000 1,290,000 1,290,000 1,290,000 6,025,750 
Aids & Adaptations 319,230 380,000 300,000 300,000 300,000 1,599,230 
Environmental Improvements 150,000 - - - - 150,000 
New Build Projects - 194,000 142,000 287,410 200,000 823,410 
Commissioning Costs 155,000 155,000 155,000 155,000 155,000 775,000 
Efficiency Programme - (504,430) - - - (504,430) 
Total Programme 4,407,160 4,685,570 5,107,000 5,252,410 5,165,000 24,617,140 
             
HRA Contribution 2,218,850 2,246,570 3,144,000 3,212,000 3,218,000 14,039,420 
Major Repairs Reserve 1,421,000 1,432,000 1,432,000 1,432,000 1,432,000 7,149,000 
Capital Receipts 30,000 509,000 531,000 608,410 515,000 2,193,410 
Capital Investment Fund 737,310 498,000 - - - 1,235,310 
Total Financing 4,407,160 4,685,570 5,107,000 5,252,410 5,165,000 24,617,140 
              

 

 
4. TRANSFORMATION PROGRAMME 
 
4.1. Introduction 

 
4.1.1. The Council’s ‘transformation programme’ incorporates all major projects 

which meet the strategic priorities of the Authority and have significant 
financial implications, including: 

 

• The capital programme 
• Housing Revenue Account review 
• The efficiency and rationalisation strategy 
• Service reviews 
• Member priority projects 
• Other large scale projects 

 
4.1.2. The delivery of transformation programme projects is monitored by a 

Transformation Board made up of Directors, Heads of Service along with key 
Corporate Service Managers and officers. A director is allocated as ‘project 
executive’ and a full business case appraisal is completed for each project. 
 

4.1.3. The progress and current financial projections of the transformation 
programme is explored below along with any potential revenue 
consequences.  Any further work required to identify the financial implications 
of the programme are discussed and will feed into the 2017/18 budget setting 
process. 

Page 63



6.14 
 

 
4.2. General Fund Capital Programme  

 
4.2.1. The General Fund Capital Programme approved by members in February 

2016 has been reviewed, re-profiled and updated to reflect the latest position 
in terms of capital projections to 31st March 2021.  
 

4.2.2. The latest capital projections, specifically identifying the major schemes, are 
summarised in the table below. Full detail is attached in Annex A. 

  

Service Area  2016/17 201718 2018/19 2019/20 2020/20 Total  
  £ £ £ £ £ £ 
Housing  241,960 - - - - 241,960 
Asset Management Plan 1,582,190 2,215,460 2,970,130 1,104,000 254,870 8,126,650 
Housing Grants 438,840 238,000 238,000    238,000     238,000  1,390,840 
ICT Strategy 318,000 50,000 50,000    50,000     41,520  509,520 
Other Schemes 426,630 254,130    45,000  45,000 45,000 815,760 
Total Programme  3,007,620 2,757,590 3,303,130 1,437,000 579,390 11,084,730 
Financed by:             
External Contributions  544,880 238,000 238,000 238,000 238,000 1,496,880 
Capital Receipts  679,000    138,000  845,000     240,000  - 1,902,000 
Capital Reserve - - - - - - 
S106 Planning Obligations    308,080       10,000  - - - 318,080 
Borrowing 1,475,660 2,371,590 2,220,130 959,000 341,390 7,367,770 
Total  Financing  3,007,620 2,757,590 3,303,130 1,437,000 579,390 11,084,730 

 
4.2.3. The capital projections above include the carry forward of £523,770 capital 

budgets from 2015/16 as approved by Members. 
 
Housing Revenue Account Capital Programme 
 

4.2.4. The Housing Revenue Account Capital Programme approved by members in 
February 2016 is largely unchanged at this stage with further work to be 
undertaken prior to February 2017.  However, an additional year has been 
added based on the current HRA business plan and the allocation of capital 
receipts has been updated. 

  

Page 64



6.15 
 

 
  

2016/17 2017/18 2018/19 2019/20 2020/21 Total 

  £ £ £ £ £ £ 
Planned Maintenance 2,908,300 3,220,000 3,220,000 3,220,000 3,220,000 15,788,300 
Responsive Works 445,000 940,000 940,000 940,000 940,000 4,205,000 
Aids & Adaptations 435,670 300,000 300,000 300,000 300,000 1,685,670 
New Build Projects 194,000 142,000 301,050 454,000 454,000 1,545,050 
Commissioning Costs 155,000 155,000 155,000 155,000 155,000 775,000 
Total Programme 4,137,970 4,757,000 4,916,050 5,069,000 5,069,000 23,949,020 
             
HRA Contribution 1,580,970 2,676,000 2,757,640 3,004,000 3,065,000 13,083,610 
Major Repairs Reserve 1,550,000 1,550,000 1,550,000 1,550,000 1,550,000 7,750,000 
Capital Receipts 509,000 531,000 608,410 515,000 454,000 1,860,050 
Capital Investment Fund 498,000 - - - - 498,000 
Total Financing 4,137,970 4,757,000 4,916,050 5,069,000 5,069,000 23,949,020 
              
 
4.2.5. The capital projections above include a £547,600 reduction to the 2016/17 

programme relating to a transfer to revenue for specific items of expenditure 
which should be classified as revenue expenditure rather than capital as per 
accounting regulations (as reported to the HRA Member working group in 
September). This has also been applied to any planned expenditure in 
2017/18 – 2020/21 which should be classed as revenue. 

 
  Asset Management Plan (AMP) – General Fund 

 
4.2.6 It is essential that the Council maintains an asset base, which delivers the 

ambitions of the Corporate Plan – however, this needs to be affordable.  This 
is becoming increasingly difficult due to the age of a number of the Council’s 
key buildings and the shrinking amount of financial resources available to 
support service delivery. 

 
4.2.7 A stock condition survey has been undertaken on the Council’s property 

assets.  A report detailing the outcomes and actions emerging was presented 
to Executive in July 2016. This includes the potential capital and revenue 
financial implications of maintaining the Council’s current property assets over 
a 30-year period.   

 
4.2.8 The surveys have confirmed that a number of the Council’s operational assets 

are dated in appearance, have structural issues or urgent health and safety 
work requirements or the electrical and mechanical infrastructure require 
updating.  The investment required to ensure the assets remain fit for purpose 
is significant over the 30 year period and would consequently impact on future 
revenue budgets.   

 
4.2.9 Therefore, the report discusses the options to either reduce the amount of 

capital expenditure or reduce the impact on revenue of the necessary capital 
spending: 

 

Page 65



6.16 
 

• Asset rationalisation 
• Shared use of assets 
• Reduction in specification and functionality 
• Generate additional capital receipts 
• Identify grants to support investment 
• Generate additional revenue from asset holdings  

 
4.2.10 Additionally, it also recommended the review of: 
  

• Public conveniences and car parks provision, with a view to disposal of 
assets that are surplus to requirements. 

• Leisure asset portfolio in the context of the expiry of the existing leisure 
management contract with a view to reducing the on-going assets and 
operating costs 

• Operational depot asset portfolio in the context of a potential new 
operating model with a view to reducing overall costs 

• Strategic land holdings with a view to developing options to either 
generate additional capital receipts or opportunities to generate ongoing 
financial returns 

 
4.2.11 The current capital programme costs of the AMP include approved carry 

forwards from 2015/16, and the additional estimated costs of maintaining the 
asset portfolio in 2020/21. The 2017/18 – 2019/20 AMP remains as approved 
in February 2016 in this iteration. The current programme includes significant 
early investment in key public buildings: Pavilion Gardens, Buxton Town Hall 
and Glossop Halls  

 
4.2.12  In preparation for the MTFP to be presented in February, the Council will 

assess and confirm the approach for asset investment in key buildings over 
the period 2017/18 – 2020/21. Any positive revenue implications of the asset 
management plan, for example, reduced annual maintenance and utility costs 
due to fewer and/or more efficient buildings and income receipts from shared 
accommodation partners will be taken towards the efficiency programme. 

  
Asset Management Plan (AMP) - Housing 

 
4.2.13 The Executive has agreed to complete a full condition survey on the Council’s 

portfolio of housing properties by March 2019.  The last stock condition survey 
was undertaken in 2012 and was based on a 20% sample of properties.  It is 
recognised that reliable and up-to-date stock condition data is critical for 
investment planning and consequently it was agreed to undertake a phased 
prioritised approach to assessing the condition of the stock to validate the data 
currently held.  This will be based on property type and phased in the following 
way: 
• Phase 1 – Non Traditional properties (to be completed during 2016/17) 
• Phase 2 – Sheltered Accommodation (to be completed during 2016/17) 
• Phase 3 – Large town concentrations of stock (to be completed during 

2017/18) 
• Phase 4 – Rural Stock (to be completed by 2018/19) 

Page 66



6.17 
 

 
4.2.14 Stock condition requirements will then be considered in line with the 

affordability of the HRA Business Plan. The results of the stock condition 
surveys will emerge during 2017, which will then feed into the 2018/19-
2021/22 MTFP. The HRA capital programme proposed within this update is 
based on existing stock condition information.  The 2017/18 programme will 
be reviewed prior to the February report, using existing internal data and 
prioritising schemes pending the stock condition information being completed.     

 
Buxton Crescent 

 
4.2.15  The Buxton Crescent Hotel and Thermal Spa has made a step change since 

the last report given that both construction contracts have now started.  The 
smaller contract to refurbish the Pump Room is now virtually complete.  This 
will eventually become the hub for the proposed visitor centre.  The main 
contract to convert the Crescent and the Natural Baths into the hotel and spa 
is progressing well with a programmed completion in 2018. 
 

4.2.16 Funding arrangements are in place for the project.  It is, however, still 
necessary to identify the potential financial risks to the Council if the project 
failed to complete. The corresponding financial risks relate to mothballing 
costs and ongoing maintenance requirements of the building over a 5-year 
period (the estimated time to end the current project, procure a new partner, 
design and develop to the point of starting on site). Estimated costs are shown 
below: 

 

Costs 
HPBC Liability 

Cost over 5 
years 

 £ 
Mothballing costs (security, insurance, utilities) 257,500 
Work to the Nestle pipe* 200,000 
Maintenance Costs 1,600,000 
  
TOTAL 2,057,500 
  *Work to Nestle pipe, as part of phase one. The water pipe from the natural baths running to George 

Street is suspended on steel girders. This is a temporary measure pending phase 2 construction works. 
If the project was cancelled an immediate measure would be to relay the water pipe underground 

 
4.2.17  The above costs are not included in the MTFP at this stage, but flagged as a 

risk. 
 
  Housing Grants 

 
4.2.18. The Borough Council is the duty holder under the Housing Grants, 

Construction and Regeneration Act 1996 for the mandatory Disabled Facilities 
Grant and this status remains despite changes to funding arrangements. All 
eligible applicants are entitled to receive mandatory funding for certain major 
adaptations to their properties. The funding for these adaptations has 
previously been given directly to the Council but from 2015/16, the funding 
was incorporated into the Better Care Fund and paid to the County Council.  

Page 67



6.18 
 

 
4.2.19 The Better Care Fund is a single pooled fund for all health and social care 

provision and covers the whole range of services including public health, 
social care services and clinical commissioning groups. The 2015/16 provision 
for Disabled Facilities Grants was ring-fenced within the Better Care Fund, 
and was received from the County Council.  

 
4.2.20  It is not clear however what the level of funding or the payment mechanism 

might be for future years. The County Council has launched a review of DFG 
provision in partnership with the district authorities which intends to re-
engineer the delivery of adaptation services and this will subsequently inform 
the allocation of funding and the performance and delivery targets. There is a 
risk that High Peak will need to increase its level of funding contribution in 
future years depending on levels of demand and any revised funding 
regime.  - Further updates will be provided as this becomes clear. 

 
  ICT Strategy 
 

4.6.21. The framework for a new 3 year ICT Strategy was established in 2014/15.  
The key drivers of which are to support delivery of the Efficiency and 
Rationalisation Plan (£100,000 revenue saving targeted), provide the 
infrastructure to support joint working, support new ways of working and 
improve access to services for our customers. 

 
4.6.22. Implementation of the Strategy has commenced, involving discussions with 

service areas to ascertain requirements and with a view to finding an Alliance 
wide solution in regard to IT provision. The aim of which is to reduce the 
number of applications and software and consequently pressure on server 
space. The capital provision for this project has been reprofiled to account for 
the acceleration of the infrastructure and Microsoft compliancy phase of the 
project resulting in higher than originally anticipated expenditure in 2016/17.  
An additional £100,000 has been added to the ICT capital programme overall 
to account for an additional years expenditure.  

 
4.2.23  Capital investment is required to establish the infrastructure required to meet 

the key drivers. This in turn will identify the revenue consequences of capital 
purchases – increased costs including maintenance, updates and annual 
licence purchases, offset by savings resulting from better usage and 
consolidation of the Council's suite of systems. 

 
   Funding the Capital Programme 
 
4.2.24  The capital programme can be funded from a number of options which include 

external grants and contributions from third parties, comprising of Government 
and lottery funding streams; capital receipts from asset sales as part of the 
asset management plan and sale of council dwellings; earmarked revenue 
reserves and a planned annual contribution from the Housing Revenue 
Account to finance construction of and improvements to council dwellings. 
 

Page 68



6.19 
 

4.2.25  Borrowing is undertaken to fund the shortfall after the other capital resources 
have been used. The current programme includes estimates of external 
funding of £1.497m towards General Fund projects; capital receipts of 
£3.762m (£1.902m General Fund + £1.860m HRA); Housing Revenue 
Reserves of £3.629m are forecast to be applied in full in 2016/17 and a further 
£18.460m of Housing Revenue Reserves over the following four years 
(subject to review – see 4.3). Borrowing is the main funding option for the 
General Fund programme at £7.368m. The Treasury Management Strategy 
then considers whether this is funded externally or internally - both options 
have a consequence on revenue either through reduced investment income or 
increased external interest liability as highlighted in the table below. 

 
4.2.26  The capital receipts applied to the HRA include the one-for-one right-to-buy 

element used to fund capital expenditure on new housing properties.  Under 
Government guidelines, these receipts can only represent 30% of overall 
expenditure, with a further 70% being required to be allocated.  The current 
strategy is to fund this via a third party, i.e. a social housing landlord or 
developer, with the third party organisation providing the additional 70% 
expenditure. The HRA can also apply capital receipts which are not subject to 
the same restrictions to the overall capital programme.  A review will be 
undertaken prior to February as to the allocation of these receipts; whether to 
wait for the stock condition information or apply in the interim.    

 
4.2.27 There remains a balance of £100,000 within the general fund earmarked 

reserve established specifically to fund capital projects.  It is proposed to use 
this fund where an options appraisal on the acquisition of vehicles, plant and 
equipment has been carried out and suggests that the most financially viable 
option is to outright purchase.  Similarly, an increase in the contribution to 
capital is proposed where it is best value to do so for the HRA.       

 
  Revenue Consequences of the Capital Programme 
 

4.2.28 The capital investment proposals above will result in estimated revenue 
consequences as follows: 

 
 

Revenue Consequences 
 

 
2017/18 

 
2018/19 

 
2019/20 

 
2020/21 

 £ £ £ £ 
Borrowing Costs 27,180 52,910 57,450 39,790 
Other (Income)/Expenditure - - - - 
General Fund 27,180 52,910 57,450 39,790 
     
HRA contribution to Capital (68,570) 81,640 246,360 61,000 
Borrowing Costs (88,660) (124,120) (63,870) (35,600) 
Housing Revenue Account (157,230) (42,480) 182,490 25,400 
     
Total (130,050) 10,430 239,940 65,190 
      
 
 

Page 69



6.20 
 

4.3.  Housing Revenue Account review 
 
 The Reforms 

 
4.3.1. The Government announced in July 2015 far reaching legislative and financial 

changes for the social housing sector, which will have significant implications 
for High Peak Borough Council and in particular a negative impact on the 
Housing Revenue Account. 
 

4.3.2. The July 2015 Budget announcement included: 
 

• Social housing rents to reduce by 1% per annum from April 2016 for 4 
years. 

• Included a provision for high-income (£30k household income) tenants to 
be charged a market or near market rent (‘Pay to Stay’) with the additional 
rent raised by local authorities to be returned to the Treasury. 

• A review of lifetime tenancies in social housing to limit their use and 
ensure tenancies match household needs and make better use of the 
stock. 

 
4.3.3. In October, the Government outlined within the Housing Bill that local 

authorities will have to make a fixed payment to government each year, based 
on an estimate for the income from selling high-value vacant homes. The bill 
requires Councils to consider selling all high-value property as it becomes 
vacant.  There is no definition of high value at this stage, the Bill proposes that 
this will be done by ministers through regulation and for which it says could 
vary for different areas. 

 
  Impact on the HRA Income Streams 

 
4.3.4. The reductions in rental income have had a significant impact on the Council’s 

Housing Revenue Account (HRA) and the resources available to deliver 
services, property improvements and development plans. 
 

4.3.5. The announced reduction in rents by 1% per year for four years resulted in a 
decrease of £2.4m by 2019/20 (compared to the 3% increase the business 
plan was assuming)  

 
4.3.6. It has recently been announced that the proposed pay-to-stay scheme will not 

be mandatory for individual authorities to implement. At this stage there is no 
detail as to whether there will be any remaining obligations for the Council.  

 
  Impact on Development Plans 

4.3.7. The current HRA provides for:  
 
• An annual Repairs & Maintenance budget of £3 million; and 
• An annual capital programme of approximately £5 million the majority of 

which is financed directly from revenue 
 

Page 70



6.21 
 

4.3.8. The 30-year HRA business plan is based upon capital expenditure that is 
derived from the existing stock condition information.  The plan also currently 
makes provision to repay outstanding debt at £1.2 million per annum.   

 
4.3.9. The financial implications of the recent reforms have resulted in the need to 

fundamentally review all of the current assumptions. The current annual 
repairs and capital programme budget are not sustainable going forward as 
this level of expenditure would create an annual deficit, requiring reserves to 
be applied and in time creating a borrowing requirement which would exceed 
the debt cap. In addition there will be no headroom available for the 
development of new stock in the future.   

 
4.3.10. Therefore, a full stock condition survey has been commissioned to assess the 

level of expenditure required to maintain the housing stock over the life of the 
business plan.  The MTFP reflects the current repairs and capital programme 
budget, the 2017/18 budget allocation will be reviewed prior to February using 
existing sources of information and prioritising schemes, then stock condition 
information will feed into the 2018/19 budget setting process.       

 

  HRA Review 

4.3.11. The introduction of Housing Revenue Account (HRA) self-financing means 
that it is vital that local authorities have effective governance and financial 
management frameworks in place. In order to support local authorities in 
assessing and developing these frameworks, the Chartered Institute of Public 
Finance Accountancy and Chartered Institute of Housing have worked 
together to produce a voluntary code of practice for the sector. The principles 
and provisions of this voluntary code are intended to:  

 
• Assist housing authorities in ensuring effective governance, finance and 

business planning;   
• Provide transparency to tenants, members and officers on how the housing 

business is being managed. The code will give tenants and members a 
framework against which to hold the authority to account;   

• Allow housing authorities to assess where they may need further support 
and assistance. 

 
4.3.12. The Council has used the Code to formulate an agenda for the review and 

development of the HRA.  A member-working group has been established and 
has begun to review proposals for the devlopment of the HRA Business Plan. 

 
4.3.13. Given the significance of the financial position there has been an early focus 

on areas where reductions in financial provisions in the HRA can be made or 
additional income can be generated in order to ensure that the longer term 
financial position can be brought into balance.  

 
4.3.14. The HRA review schedule is illustrated below: 
  

Page 71



6.22 
 

 
Meeting 

Date 
Agenda Items Actions 

June 2016 Stock Condition • Full stock condition survey 
underway 

• Option to vary annual debt 
repayment – further 
comparative work to be 
carried out 

Financing Transactions 
Housing & Planning Bill 
Implications 

August 
2016 

Capital Programme • 2017/18 capital programme 
under review with schemes to 
be included on a priority basis 
pending stock data 

• Rent Policy currently being 
written, focus on additional 
income streams  

Rent Policy 
Carelink / Other Support 

October 
2016 

Lettings • Review of voids/tenancies 
underway to reduce loss of 
income and streamline 
processes 

• Options analysis for the 
operation of sheltered 
accommodation to ensure 
service is affordable 

Voids 
Sheltered Accommodation 

December 
2016 

Tenancy & Neighbourhood 
Management 

 

Repairs 
Other Policy Changes 

February 
2017 

Revised HRA Business 
Plan 

 

Tenant Engagement 
April 2017 Housing Need & Supply  

Future Development 
 

 
4.4.   Efficiency & Rationalisation Programme  

 
4.4.1. The current Efficiency and Rationalisation Strategy was approved by 

Members in April 2014, which identified a programme of £2.8million in savings 
to be made over the period 2014/15 – 2016/17, of which £300,000 relates to 
the HRA.   
 

4.4.2. In establishing the current Efficiency & Rationalisation plan, importance was 
placed on ensuring the programme of savings was well focussed and 
recognised the capacity constraints on the organisation following the 
departure of a significant number of staff under voluntary redundancy. 
Therefore, external challenge work was commissioned to assist in identifying 
areas which have the greatest potential for further savings. 

 

Page 72



6.23 
 

4.4.3. A number of principles were developed in order to ensure that the plans are 
focussed in the right areas and are deliverable. These are: 

 
• Service reviews will be completed on a structured basis  
• Individual service structures will be properly combined across the Alliance 
• There will be continued protection of front-line services 
• Non-priorities will be identified in discretionary services and targeted for 

savings if possible 
• Mandatory services will be developed to ensure that they are efficient when 

compared with the best local authorities 
• Transactional services to be delivered around the needs of customers and 

development of “channel shift”  
• There will be strong focus on corporate efficiencies e.g. procurement, asset 

management to minimise the impact on staffing levels  
 

4.4.4. After taking into account these principles a framework was developed to 
inform the finalisation of the Efficiency and Rationalisation Strategy. The 
programme is focused upon six areas: 

 

1. Enhancing Income and Improving Trading  
Focussed upon increasing the income generated from Council Services 
including, by identifying and generating new income streams, improving the 
effectiveness of services that compete with other service providers, and 
improving the yield from fees and charges through increased activity. 
 

2. Extending Shared Services 
Looking at new partners such as Staffordshire County Council, Peak National 
Park and other neighbouring Councils 
 

3. Corporate Efficiency Projects 
Targeting savings that do not directly impact on front line service provision 
including; implementation of the procurement strategy, further development of 
the Asset Management Plan, a review of administrative support, agreement of 
a longer term approach to workforce pay and benefits, a comprehensive review 
of the ICT strategy, finalisation of the current management review, more cost 
effective arrangements around utilisation of the third sector and development of 
alternative service delivery models. 

 

4. Service Reviews 
Structured and comprehensive review of all of the Council’s services – 
removing service silos in order to realise savings from new approaches to 
delivery including exploiting channel shift, combining similar functions such as 
enforcement, and taking a joined up approach to corporate support services.   

 
5. Innovation and Growth 
Creation of a Development Fund on an “invest to save” basis 
 

 

6. Housing Revenue Account 
           Saving from the integration of the housing management function 
 
 
 

Page 73



6.24 
 

4.4.5. The current profile of the financial savings proposed in the Strategy are 
summarised below (see ANNEX B for more detail on the current plan).  The 
below table illustrates progress to date and re-profiles the outstanding target 
efficiencies where required.  It also identifies new efficiencies required over 
the next four years. 

 
Efficiency Strategy 2014/15 2015/16 2016/17 2017/18 2018/19 2019/20 2020/21 TOTAL 

  £ £ £ £ £ £  £ 
ORIGINAL PROGRAMME: 1,078,560 1,061,530 659,910 - - -  2,800,000 

Enhancing Income & Improving Trading 93,560 141,530 120,910 - - -  356,000 

Extending Shared Services 25,000 50,000 50,000 - - -  125,000 

Corporate Efficiency Projects 510,000 540,000 334,000 - - -  1,384,000 

Service Reviews 150,000 230,000 105,000 - - -  485,000 

Innovation & Growth 50,000 50,000 50,000 - - -  150,000 

General Fund Efficiency Plan 828,560 1,011,530 659,910 - - -  2,500,000 

HRA Efficiency Plan 250,000 50,000 - - - -  300,000 

Total 1,078,560 1,061,530 659,910 - - -  2,800,000 

         REPROFILED PROGRAMME:         
Existing Programme - General Fund 482,980 361,330 1,655,690 - -   2,500,000 
Existing Programme - HRA 250,000 50,000 - - -   300,000 
         
Shortfall – General Fund* - - - 495,740 740,940 334,100 189,440 1,760,220 
Shortfall – HRA    522,320 715,870 1,008,920 1,322,160 3,569,270 
         
Total 732,980 411,330 1,655,690 1,018,060 1,456,810 1,343,020 1,511,600 8,129,490 
         *Incorporates the saving assumed from Pavilion Gardens to offset additional cost of capital as a result 

of increased expenditure on the Octagon works.   
 
4.4.6. £995,780 in unachieved efficiencies in 2014/15 and 2015/16 have been rolled 

forward into 2016/17. The shortfall is primarily as a consequence of the short-
term and one-off costs of the implementation of the service review process. The 
2015/16 shortfall was met by service underspends and additional income 
(partly by utilisation of the earmarked reserve set up specifically for this 
purpose). 
 

4.4.7. As the service review process has been completed (with the exception of some 
outstanding mini-reviews currently taking place within Housing and Benefits) 
the majority of the £485,000 targeted savings will be achieved in 2016/17.  
Additionally, £408,000 in Procurement related savings (reduced spend as a 
result of procurement activity being challenged/increased on contract spend 
etc) were identified as part of the 2016/17 budget setting process.  These will 
be offset against the efficiency programme in 2016/17. 
 

4.4.8. This would leave approximately £763,000 to be achieved – with focus then 
turning to other efficiency projects for example income generation, asset 
management, growth projects and further sharing of services to deliver the 
remaining savings.  A review of these remaining projects and the viability of the 
savings targets will be assessed prior to the February Budget and MTFP, with 
consideration to reprofiling or reallocation of efficiency targets. 

 

Page 74



6.25 
 

4.4.9. In addition to the existing efficiency programme, in order to balance the general 
fund budget in 2017/18, 2018/19, 2019/20 and 2020/21, there is a new savings 
requirement of £1,760,220.   

 
4.4.10. A proportion of this will potentially be met from the new localised Business 

Rates retention system (see paragraph 6.2). However there is uncertainly 
around what impact this will have on the Council at present and the new system 
is unlikely to be in place until 2019-20 / 2020-21.  There are also potential 
savings that will generate from the significant projects taking place over the life 
of the MTFP relating to Channel Shift, and the procurement and review of the 
current provision of Waste Collection, Leisure Centre Management and 
Facilities Management (see paragraph 4.7). 
 

4.4.11. There is also a saving requirement of £3,569,270 over the four years in respect 
of the HRA. This will be met from savings and additional income identified from 
the HRA review and service review outcomes. 
 

4.4.12. A further exercise reviewing the revenue underspends of recent years will also 
take place during the 2017/18 budget setting process. The review will identify 
areas, which have consistently underspent against the base budget, with a view 
to removing the excess provision. Any budget adjustments will be used to 
support the Efficiency & Rationalisation Strategy. 

 
4.5. Service Reviews  

 
4.5.1. In agreeing the Efficiency Strategy, members approved the principle of 

conducting a programme of service reviews. These reviews ensure the services 
provided by the Council can be operated with a reduced level of financial 
resources.  
 

4.5.2. The programme began during 2014/15, when all staff were given the 
opportunity to put forward their ideas on service improvement and efficiencies 
via ‘Hearts and Minds’ sessions.  The service reviews progressed in line with 
the SHAPE Review methodology and have now reached the implementation 
stage. 
 

4.5.3. A report was presented to Corporate Select in September 2015, which 
summarised the service review outcomes, the financial and staffing implications 
that result from the proposals, and details of the implementation process. 
 

4.5.4. The achievement of efficiency savings in respect of the service review process 
have been deferred as a result of the one off costs associated with 
implementation for example, the cost of redundancy, pay protection and 
temporary staff arrangements.  However, it is anticipated that the majority of the 
£485,000 targeted efficiency will be achieved during 2016/17 
 

4.5.5. The salary estimates are currently being updated in line with service review 
structures, the savings will then be realised against the Efficiency Programme 
and reported in the February MTFP and Quarter 3 financial update report.     
 

Page 75



6.26 
 

4.6. Member Priority Projects  
 

4.6.1. During the development of the Corporate Plan a number of priority actions have 
been identified and prioritised by members. These are as follows:  

 

 
 

Financial Implications 

Member Priority Projects (y/n) Firm - in 
plans 

Costs 
understood - 
not in plans 

Costs not 
known 

Leader       

Adopt an approved Local Plan which will be kept under review  Y    

Communicate more effectively with residents  N    
Review and improve our relationships with Strategic Partners  N    
Work with our Combined Authority partners and the Local 
Enterprise Partnership to bring funding to High Peak  Y    
Use our influence to secure better health and care services 
through commissioners and from providers  N    

Parks, Leisure & Recycling       

Establish a developer open space contributions plan   Y    
Work with local residents to improve our parks   N    
Take steps to reduce dog fouling and littering  Y    
Finance & Corporate Services       
Continually review and implement an efficiency and 
rationalisation programme   Y    

Improve customer service   Y    
Review car parking provision and extend resident concessionary 
parking   Y    

Tourism, Regeneration & Licensing       
Review TIC and tourism service   Y    
Together with partners work for the delivery of the Crescent 
development   Y    

Support the development of the Woods Mill area, Glossop Halls 
and Torr Vale Mill   Y    

Create an “Open for Business” environment in High Peak  N     

       
Housing       
Complete and implement a Housing Management and Revenue 
Plan  Y    

 
4.6.2. Any costs or revenue associated with these actions will need to be included in 

the MTFP. The impact of a number of them is already included in this iteration 
of the plan but additional work will need to be undertaken to develop a number 
of the actions further and at the same time identify any financial implications. 

 
 
 
 
 

Page 76



6.27 
 

4.7. Other Projects 
 

Channel Shift 
 
4.7.1. In addition to the above, the Council is progressing the ‘channel shift’ project, 

which focuses on changing the way in which our customers interact with the 
Council with the enhanced use of technology.  The aim of which is not only to 
achieve financial savings but also to improve the customer experience and 
streamline internal processes. 
 

4.7.2. This project will potentially impact on the capital programme (investment as part 
of the ICT Strategy) with the savings generated from the project covering the 
cost of borrowing and supporting the efficiency programme.   
 

4.7.3. The business case for this project has been developed, with a timeline for 
implementation in place. The first phase concentrates on the update of the 
website and the use of e-forms to channel applications for Housing Benefit and 
Council Tax discounts and exemptions, and the use of credit information to 
apply risk-based verification and assist with the review of eligibility for discounts 
and exemptions.    

   
 Significant Procurement Activity 
 
4.7.4. During the life of the MTFP, there will be a number of large scale procurement 

projects that will either be completed or the initial review work will be 
commenced.  These exercises will potentially have a significant financial impact 
on the Authority, and therefore further updates will be provided as the projects 
progress: 
 

• Waste and Streets Service Delivery - The Council is currently developing the 
business case for a joint delivery model for the provision of Waste and Street 
services.  The service is currently outsourced with the contract expiring during 
2017/18 -, whilst the Council’s Alliance partner Staffordshire Moorlands D.C. 
have an internally delivered service. Therefore, the two Authorities will be 
focusing on the delivery of a jointly operated service in order to avoid 
duplication and realise efficiencies. 
 

• Leisure Centre Operation - Both High Peak B.C. and Staffordshire Moorlands 
D.C. outsource the operation of Leisure Centres to a private sector contractor.   
Both contracts expire during 2018/19, therefore similar to the delivery of Waste 
and Streets, the Authorities will be looking to potentially work together on the 
future operation of the Leisure Centres.  Consideration will also be given to the 
future asset management costs of maintaining the buildings and the delivery 
models going forward in order to achieve value for money.  
 

• Asset Management Plan & Facilities Management - The Council has a joint 
contract with Staffordshire Moorlands D.C. for the facilities management of the 
buildings – currently undertaken by Derbyshire County Council.  The contract 
has delivered savings to each Authority and is due to expire at the end of 
2016/17.  The two Authorities, working together, will aim to drive further savings 
from the re-procurement of the contract.  

Page 77



6.28 
 

 
5. FINANCIAL FORECASTS 
 
5.1. Interest Rates  

 
5.1.1. The Bank of England Base Rate was cut from 0.50% to 0.25% following the 

Monetary Policy Committee (MPC) meeting of 4th August 2016. Latest interest 
rate forecasts (from the Council’s treasury advisors, Capita) include the 
likelihood that a further cut to near zero at 0.10% will take place if data comes 
in as forecast, but do not project the possibility of negative rates. 
 

5.1.2. The tentative forecast is for increases in Bank Rate in May 2018 to 0.25% and 
to 0.50% in May 2019, but these will very much depend on how strongly, and 
how soon, the UK economy makes a gradual recovery and so start a process 
of very gradual increases in Bank Rate over a prolonged period. The mix of 
extreme political and economic uncertainties over this time period continue to 
make it very likely that these forecasts will be subject to significant updating as 
events evolve. 
 

5.1.3. Borrowing commentary reports that yields are at historic lows and borrowing 
should be considered where appropriate to the strategy. The general 
expectation for an eventual trend of gently rising gilt yields and PWLB rates 
remains. 
 

5.1.4. Based on the current forecasts, changes in investment income and borrowing 
costs are highlighted below: 

 
 
 2017/18 2018/19 2019/20 2020//21 

 £ £ £ £ 
Changes in Investment Income 74,410 (19,060) (68,450) (68,410) 
Changes in Borrowing Costs (144,240) 74,960 10,420 57,950 

     
 
 
5.2. Inflationary Projections 

 
5.2.1. The Retail Price Index (RPI) and Consumer Price Index (CPI) 12 month rate, 

as at August 2016, stood at 1.8% and 0.6% respectively. Inflation forecasts 
are made reflecting the composition of the Council’s expenditure, resulting in 
an inflation rate specific to the Council. 
 

5.2.2. The MTFP presented to members in February 2016 was premised on inflation 
assumptions at that time. Those inflationary assumptions have now been 
rolled forward a further 12 months to incorporate the 2020/21 financial year 
and have been updated to reflect the latest available information from 
authoritative sources such as the Office for National Statistics (ONS). The 
additional costs to the Council arising from inflation are forecast in the table 
below. 

  

Page 78



6.29 
 

 
          

Inflationary Changes 2017/18 2018/19 2019/20 2020/21 
          
  £ £ £ £ 

Employee Costs 427,450 365,100 370,810 366,500 
Premises Costs 50,270 57,750 65,000 70,000 
Transport 1,540 3,850 8,680 8,800 
Supplies and Services 93,660 122,090 127,130 128,820 
In-Year Inflation Pressure 572,920 548,790 571,620 574,120 
          
General Fund 443,400 429,110 446,780 453,740 
Housing Revenue Account 129,520 119,680 124,840 120,380 
  572,920 548,790 571,620 574,120 

 
5.3. Budgetary Demand 

 
5.3.1. The Medium Term Financial Plan presented to Council in February 2016 

analysed and projected forward both income and expenditure.  This has been 
revised to reflect known increases and decreases in budgetary demand. 
 

5.3.2. The current known changes in budgetary demand are highlighted below:-  
 

Increased / (Reduced) Budget Demand 2017/18 2018/19 2019/20 2020/21 

  £ £ £ £ 

Cemetery wall and paths backlog maintenance (20,000) - - - 
HRA pension past service deficit costs (67,000) (67,000) (69,000) (70,000) 
Uniforms – Customer Services (cyclical) (2,500) 2,500 (2,500) 2,500 
Supported Housing – subsidy loss arising out of increase 75,000 - - - 
Pavilion Gardens – Octagon closure (50,000) (59,000) (59,000) - 
Internal Audit – 5 yearly external review (2,500) - - - 
MMI Second levy (funded from earmarked reserve) (61,700) - - - 
Pension Fund Deficit Repair – budget adjustment                          50,000 - - - 
Hathersage Pool – Access grant increase 2,220    
Building Control – service change 90,000 - - - 
Recharge to HRA re: Buxton Town Hall (50,000) - - - 
     
 Total – General Fund (36,480) (123,500) (130,500) (67,500) 
     
Major works transfer to revenue from capital* 300,000 - - - 
Survey and related minor works transfer to revenue 147,600 (147,600) - - 
Vacating of Furness Vale (90,310) - - - 
Reduction in mobile phone costs (15,410)    
Radon Monitoring Programme (funded by HRA savings) (149,760) - - - 
Recharge to HRA re: Buxton Town Hall 50,000 - - - 
     
Total – Housing Revenue Account 242,120 (147,600) - - 
        

*offset by reduction in revenue contribution to capital 

Page 79



6.30 
 

5.4. Budget Growth 
 

5.4.1. In previous years, few additions in respect of budget growth have been 
included in the MTFP. It was assumed in light of the financial pressures faced 
by the Council, that any local issues that necessitate budget growth will be 
financed by internal spending reductions elsewhere.  
 

5.4.2. No new items of budget growth have been included in this version of the 
Medium Term Financial Plan. 

 
5.5. Pensions 

 
5.5.1. The Derbyshire Pension Fund underwent a triennial actuarial valuation in 

2016 to determine the level of future contributions necessary to achieve a 
balanced position. The final outcome is expected later in November, 
whereupon contribution rates will be agreed covering the next 3 years 
commencing in 2017/18. 
 

5.5.2. At the last valuation, the Derbyshire Fund had a funding level (the ratio of 
assets to liabilities) of 82.5% and a scheme deficit of £663 million. The revised 
position, as at 2016, will be confirmed later in November 
 

5.5.3. The High Peak Borough Council portion of the Fund had a funding level of 
69% at the 2013 valuation and a deficit of £25.9 million. Since this valuation 
the Council has budgeted to make contributions into the Fund of £2.51 million 
in 2014/15, £2.61 million in 2015/16, and £2.67 million in 2016/17.  The 
updated position as at 31st March 2016 will again be confirmed later in 
November. 

 
5.5.4. The outcome of the 2016 revaluation will set contributions to be made in 

2017/18, 2018/19 and 2019/20. In anticipation of the outcome of the actuary’s 
revaluation; allowance for an increase in contributions of £375,000 has been 
included in the Medium Term Financial Plan to cover these years. 

 
5.5.5. In year 4 of the MTFP (2020/21) the contributions necessary will be 

determined by a further revaluation scheduled to take place in 2019. Provision 
for an increase in contributions of £125,000 has been included in this iteration. 

 
5.5.6. These additional pension costs are included in the employee inflation element 

of the Plan. 
 

5.6. Housing Revenue Account – Other Operating Expenditure  
 

5.6.1. There are a number of items that relate only to the HRA. They include some 
direct elements of income and expenditure as well as notional charges for 
asset depreciation and debt impairment. 
 

5.6.2. Increase in Other Operating Expenditure - The updated HRA plan provides for 
a number of changes to operating expenditure as set out in the table below: 

 

Page 80



6.31 
 

 

         
Expenditure / (Income) 2017/18 2018/19 2019/20 2020/21 

          
  £ £ £ £ 

Provision for Irrecoverable Debts (74,670) (2,180) 560 (1,320) 

Charges for Depreciation 118,000                    
-    

                   
-    

                      
-    

Interest Receipts 53,860 (13,450) (22,420) (22,420) 
Past Service Pension Deficit Contribution 67,000 67,000 69,000 70,000 
          
Increased / (Reduced) Other Operating 
Expenditure 164,190 51,370 47,140 46,260 

          
 

6.   FUNDING & INCOME GENERATION 
  

6.1. Council Tax 
 

6.1.1. The 2010 settlement heralded the introduction of 0% Council Tax increases, 
restricting the capacity of Local Authorities to raise council tax to meet budget 
pressures and cuts in Central Government funding. Government initially 
provided funding to mitigate the shortfall in local authority income between 
2011/12 and 2015/16. 
 

6.1.2. The Council has the capacity to vary Council Tax levels, following the abolition 
of capping.  However the Council’s ability to increase Council Tax by more 
than 1.99% is subject to referendum. In 2016/17 the Council raised the 
Council Tax applying a 1.9% increase. 

 
6.1.3. At this stage it is assumed the Authority will increase its share of Council Tax 

by 1.9% in each year of the 4 years covered by this Plan. 
 

6.1.4. Provision for tax base growth remains unchanged from the levels assumed in 
February. Further work will be carried out in the course of the next few months 
to recalculate likely changes in the tax base. Updated figures will be included 
in the February iteration of the MTFP..  

 
6.1.5. The table below sets out the additional yield from Council Tax as assumed in 

the Medium Term Financial Plan:  
 

Increased Council Tax Income 2017/18 2018/19 2019/20 2020/21 

 £ £ £ £ 
Revenue from increased Council Tax (100,140) (103,030) (105,960) (107,970) 
Revenue from Tax Base growth (51,800) (51,120) (50,070) (51,020) 
     
Total (151,940) (154,150) (156,030) (158,990) 
 
 
 
 

     
 
 
 

Page 81



6.32 
 

6.2.   Business Rates Retention  
 

6.2.1. The 2013/14 Local Government Finance Settlement saw the introduction of 
the new business rates retention system, replacing the previous system of 
financing with a system based on the retention of business rates.  
 

6.2.2. Under the current system, the Authority retains 40% of Business Rates less a 
tariff that is payable in to a pool of Derbyshire Authorities. This amount is then 
compared to a Funding Baseline (estimated at £2,209,510 for 2017/18): any 
amount in excess of this Baseline is subject to levy, or conversely if the 
amount of retained Business Rates is below this Baseline, the loss is capped 
by a safety net payment. The MTFP does not anticipate the Council falling 
below the Baseline. 

 
6.2.3. As part of the Derbyshire Pool, the levy is made to the Pool instead of Central 

Government. If the Council was not in the Derbyshire Pool it would have to 
pay 50p in the £1 to the Government as a levy, effectively limiting the income 
the Council can gain from business rates growth. However, as part of the 
Pool, the Council is able to retain some of this levy. Under the Pool 
agreement, this amount will depend on the amount all members of the Pool 
pay in at the end of the year, and the proportional success of the Council 
against its own baseline. 

 
6.2.4. In October 2015, the Government announced a forthcoming package of 

reforms to the Business Rates Retention System including a move to local 
government retaining 100% of the rates that they received with an end to 
RSG. 

 
6.2.5. In outline the proposals for reform are as follows:  
 

• Local authorities will retain 100% of BR to fund local spending on services;  
• The new system will be in place by the end of the current Parliament 
• Local authorities with be able to retain income from growth – i.e. there will 

be no levy;  
• The reform will be fiscally neutral and local authorities will have new 

responsibilities and / or central government grants will be phased out;  
• Local authorities will have the ability to reduce rates – there will be the 

ability to increase for combined authority mayors; and  
• The new system will retain a system of tariffs and top ups subject to a 

fundamental review of needs.  
 

6.2.6. In July 2016 the Department for Communities and Local Government (DCLG) 
published two consultation papers:  

 
• Self-sufficient local government: 100% BR Retention; and  
• BR Reform - Fair Funding Review: Call for evidence on Needs and 

Redistribution.  
 

6.2.7. The Council responded to the consultation documents, detail of which was 
reported to Executive on 22nd September 2016. 

Page 82



6.33 
 

 
6.2.8. There remains uncertainly surrounding how the new system will be phased in 

and in what form. Further updates will be presented as more information is 
released.  For the purpose of the MTFP, no financial assumptions have been 
included based on the proposed new system, these will be fed into the plans 
once we have more certainty around how the new system will operate. 

 
6.2.9. The MTFP anticipates that Business Rates retention will be above the 

baseline, but is somewhat suppressed due to the extension of reliefs including 
increased small business rate relief, multiplier cap relief, re-occupied long-
term empty property relief, and newly built empty relief.  To compensate for 
the loss of business rates income resulting from the reliefs, funding has to 
date  been made available to Councils under Section 31 of the Local 
Government Act 2003. The MTFP assumes both the extension of reliefs and 
Section 31 grants will continue. 

 
6.2.10. Changes in the level of the Council’s business rates will be impacted by a 

range of factors, including the Staffordshire Pool’s success in generating new 
and retaining existing business within its area. At this stage, predicted levels 
of business rates income are based on known and expected changes to the 
business rates listing.  

 

Business Rates Retention 2017/18 2018/19 2019/20 2020/21 

 £ £ £ £ 
In year:     
      Baseline Funding (2,209,510) (2,274,700) (2,347,400) (2,422,430) 
      Achievement against Baseline (223,830) (179,240) (120,250) (58,200) 
      Section 31 Grant (617,170) (628,510) (639,780) (651,230) 
 (3,050,510) (3,082,450) (3,107,430) (3,131,860) 
Change between years:     
      Business Rates retained  (178,748) (20,600) (13,710) (12,980) 
      Section 31 Grant (20,572) (11,340) (11,270) (11,450) 
 (199,320) (31,940) (24,980) (24,430) 
      
6.3. Collection Fund 

 
6.3.1. The Council maintains a Collection Fund to record the receipt of Council Tax 

and Business Rates and their distribution to precepting authorities. Any 
surplus or deficit generated is distributed or recovered from the preceptors in 
subsequent years. 
 

6.3.2. The collection fund assumptions regarding Council Tax remain unaltered from 
the previous version of the MTFP presented in February 2016. Further work 
will be carried out over the next few months to update these assumptions and 
revised figures will be included in the February 2017 MTFP. At this stage, it is 
expected that the High Peak’s share of a deficit, in respect of Council Tax, will 
be £1,030 in 2017/18. 

Page 83



6.34 
 

 
6.3.3. It is assumed that a surplus, after providing for appeals, of £80,410 will be 

distributed in 2017/18 in respect of retained Business Rates generated in the 
current and previous years. It is assumed the Business Rates element of the 
collection fund will break even in future years, leaving no surplus or deficit for 
distribution. 

 
6.3.4. These and future year movements are set out in the table below: 

 
 

Changes in Collection Fund Income 
 

 
2017/18 

 
2018/19 

 
2019/20 

 
2020/21 

 £ £ £ £ 
Council Tax  1,030 (1,330) (1,350) (1,350) 
Business Rates  (667,180) 80,410 - - 
     
Total (666,150) 79,080 (1,350) (1,350) 
     

 
6.4.   Income from Government Grants 
 
   Revenue Support Grant 
 
6.4.1. The current MTFP, reported to Council in February 2016, includes the phased 

elimination of Revenue Support Grant (RSG) announced by the Government 
in October 2015. 
 

6.4.2. This revision of the MTFP maintains the profile of RSG reduction proposed by 
the Government as part of the 4 year settlement in February 2016. Reductions 
of £544,480 (33%), £334,340 (21%) and £245,760 (15%) in 2017/18, 2018/19 
and 2019/20 respectively are included. This results in no RSG being included 
in the Authority’s funding by 2019/20. 

 
6.4.3. Local Authorities were required to submit an efficiency plan to Government by 

14th October 2016 if they wanted to accept the 4 year settlement.  The plan 
should set out what the Council intends to do in order to address the 
challenge of financial sustainability.  If the four-year offer is not accepted the 
Council would be subject to the existing annual process for determining the 
local government finance settlement. Allocations could be subject to additional 
reductions dependent on the fiscal climate and the need to make further 
savings to reduce the deficit.  

 
6.4.4. The Council accepted the 4 year settlement and submitted an efficiency plan – 

this is attached as ANNEX E. 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 84



6.35 
 

  New Homes Bonus 
 

6.4.5. New Homes Bonus (NHB) is aimed at encouraging local authorities to grant 
planning permission for the building of new houses, in return for additional 
revenue. 
 

6.4.6. Consultation on the future format of New Homes Bonus was carried out earlier 
in the year with a closing date of March 2016. Details on the outcome have yet 
to emerge, but proposed changes being consulted  on included  the following:- 

 
• Proposals for reductions in the number of years for which the Bonus is paid 

from the current 6 years to 4 years;  
• Withholding the Bonus from areas where an authority does not have a Local 

Plan in place;  
• Abating the Bonus in circumstances where planning permission for a new 

development has only been granted on appeal;  
• Potentially adjusting the Bonus to reflect estimates of deadweight (expected 

development) 
 

6.4.7. New Homes Bonus continues to represent a significant element of the 
Authority’s funding. Historically, the Council has been awarded £0 (2011/12), 
£147,410 (2012/13), £170,950 (2013/14), £132,600 (2014/15), £159,360 
(2015/16) and £163,000 (2016/17) in New Homes Bonus.  
 

6.4.8. The changes are proposed for 2017/18 onwards and would have a significant 
impact on the amount of grant received by the Authority. The MTFP presented 
in February 2016, assumed the scheme would reduce to a 4 year format with 
effect from 2018/19 and included the financial consequences of this change. 

 
6.4.9. This MTFP brings forward the impact of this change to 2017/18, but in line 

with the consultation, assumes that the reduction would be to a 5 year scheme 
initially, followed by a change to a 4 year format in 2018/19. 

 
6.4.10. New Homes Bonus receipts of £104,000 have been anticipated in the MTFP 

for 2017/18; 2018/19; 2019/20 and 2020/21. Further liaison with Regeneration 
will take place to ensure the forecasts included in the MTFP are as robust as 
possible, with an update included in February. 

 
6.4.11. The building of new homes also has the effect of generating additional 

revenue from an increase in the council tax base. However, increased costs 
are also incurred in servicing the needs of the additional properties. 

 
  Local Council Tax Support Scheme 

 
6.4.12. The Council operates a scheme whereby funding received from central 

Government in respect of Local Council Tax Support is passed onto the 
parishes by means of an annual grant. The allocation of this grant is based on 
the eligibility of parish residents for council tax discounts.  
 

Page 85



6.36 
 

6.4.13. The level of resources made available for this grant has remained constant in 
spite of reductions in overall Government funding. The MTFP assumes that 
this approach will continue. This comes at a cost to the Council, which in 
2017/18 equates to £16,930. 

 
  Summary of Income from Government Grants 

 
6.4.14. The table below summarises the assumed level of and movement in 

Government funding:  
 

Government Grant 2014/15 
(baseline) 

2015/16 
(actual) 

2016/17 
(actual) 

2017/18 
(forecast) 

2018/19 
(forecast) 

2019/20 
(forecast) 

2020/21 
(forecast) 

  £ £ £ £ £ £ £ 
Revenue Support 
Grant 

(2,371,010) 738,550 507,880 544,480 334,340 245,760 - 

Council Tax Freeze (113,630) (62,040) 175,670 - - - - 
New Homes Bonus (450,960) (159,360) (163,000) 43,050 199,190 55,000 58,640 
        
Change in Govt 
Funding  

(2,935,600) 517,150 520,550 587,530 533,530 300,760 58,640 

 
6.5.  Fees and Charges 

 
 General Fees and Charges 

 
6.5.1. Charging for local services makes a significant contribution to the Council’s 

finances. The Council also uses charging to influence individual choices and 
behaviour, and to bring other benefits to local communities.  The Council’s 
Charging Policy sets out the following principles for establishing the level of 
fees and charges:   

 
• The cost of providing services should be fully met by income 
• There is a standard approach to concessions for those on low incomes 
• Where a subsidy is agreed, this should be used to support the 

development of Council services in accordance with priorities 
• Subsidies should be reconfirmed annually 

 
6.5.2. The annual revision of the Council’s fees and charges will take place over the 

next few months, which will also incorporate some of the work undertaken as 
part of the Income Generation project.  The outcome of which will be reported 
in February. 

 
6.5.3. The Medium Term Financial Plan currently projects that the Council will 

increase fees and charges (and other income) broadly in line with inflation.  
However, it is also recognised that certain income streams (such as car 
parking, planning receipts) may not increase each year and that other income 
streams (such as grants and rental income) are fixed or subject to periodic 
review. 

Page 86



6.37 
 

 
6.5.4. The projected revenue from increased fees and charges (and other income) is 

summarised in the table below: 
 

Increased Fees and Changes 2017/18 2018/19 2019/20 2020/21 

 £ £ £ £ 
Revenue from increased Fees and Charges (100,000) (100,000) (100,000) (100,000) 
     
Total (100,000) (100,000) (100,000) (100,000) 
     
  
   Housing Revenue Account – Rent Charges  
 
6.5.5. As detailed in section 4.3, the Government announced in July 2015 far 

reaching legislative and financial changes for the social housing sector, the 
most significant financially being the announcement to reduce by 1% per 
annum from April 2016 for 4 years. 
 

6.5.6. Therefore, the HRA Plan projects an average rent decrease on dwellings 
1.0% in 2017/18 – 2019/20, with a 1.5% increase assumed from 2020/21.  It is 
also assumes that ‘Other Charges’, including garages and sheltered housing 
service, will increase in 2017/18.  However, the rent policy review currently 
being undertaken will potentially update these assumptions and will feed into 
the February MTFP.    

 
 

Reduced Rental Income 
 

2017/18 
 

 
2018/19 

 

 
2019/20* 

 

 
2020/21 

 
 £ £ £ £ 
Reduced revenue from Rental Income and 
Other Charges 143,720 212,580 (61,420) 121,200 

     
*53 week rent year 

 
 
7. RISKS, CONTINGENCIES & USE OF RESERVES 

 
7.1. Risks and Contingencies 

 
7.1.1. The early identification and management of risks is critical to the Medium 

Term Financial Planning process. Risks to the MTFP are assessed, mitigated 
and actively managed to ensure that the Council delivers its services 
effectively within the funding at its disposal. The principal risks to the Medium 
Term Financial Plan are summarised in ANNEX C. 
 

7.1.2. The table below highlights specific financial risks that are embedded within 
this Medium Term Financial Plan:  

 
 

Page 87



6.38 
 

 
Revenue Risks 

 
Capital Risks 

 

• Inflationary assumptions 
• Interest rates 
• Housing benefits 
• Fees and charges 
• Universal Credit 
• Business Rates  
• Council Tax collection 
• Housing Rent levels (HRA 

affordability) 
• Government grants 
• Financial benefits from partnerships 

/ shared services 
• Pension costs 
• Outsourced waste contract 
• Outsourced leisure contract 

• Interest rates  
• External funding 
• Capital receipts 
• Capacity to deliver capital 

programme 
• Project overspend 
• Project overrun 
• External factors (e.g. planning 

objections, judicial reviews etc. 
leading to project delay) 

• Housing finance  
• Weather  
 

 
 
7.2.   Contingencies 

 
7.2.1. The Medium Term Financial Plan is underpinned by a number of assumptions. 

These assumptions have been made in the light of currently available 
information. New information, when it emerges, may require the Council to 
alter its assumptions with a consequential effect on the Council’s financial 
position. 
 

7.2.2. Key risk areas will be closely monitored and reviewed on an ongoing basis 
and remedial action taken.  Members will receive quarterly updates on 
performance against the budget. The Council will carry adequate reserves as 
a contingency against risks that cannot be fully mitigated. 

 
7.2.3. The Council carries reserves as a contingency for situations where risks 

cannot be fully mitigated. Section 25 of the Local Government Act 2003 
requires the Chief Finance Officer (CFO) to report on the robustness of the 
estimates included in the budget and the adequacy of the reserves that the 
budget provides. The Council is currently required to hold a general 
(contingency) reserve of £1,300,000 to meet unforeseen expenditure. 

 
7.3.   Use of Reserves and Balances    

 
  General Fund Reserves and Balances 
 

7.3.1. The February Medium Term Financial Plan included a £68,250 contribution 
from General Fund Reserves in 2016/17. This reflected usage of the Section 
106 (Commuted Sum) Reserve (£6,550) and usage of the Insurance Fund to 
meet the costs of the Council’s obligations under the Municipal Mutual 
Insurance (MMI) scheme of arrangement (£61,700). The MMI obligation is a 
one-off payment, at this stage, affecting 2016/17 only. The level of Section 
106 reserve usage is assumed to continue throughout the life of this Plan.  

Page 88



6.39 
 

 
7.3.2. The February MTFP also included a contribution of £627,650 from General 

Fund contingency reserve in 2016/17, made possible by the anticipated levels 
of Business Rates Retention. 

 
7.3.3. At this stage no movement to or from balances has been included in the 

financial projections for 2017/18, 2018/19, 2019/20 and 2020/21 apart from 
the £26,200 which is planned to be drawn from the S106 reserve over the 4 
years. This position will be reviewed in preparation for the February iteration of 
the MTFP. 

 
  HRA Reserves and Balances 

 
7.3.4. The HRA balance is made up of surpluses that have accumulated over a 

number of years.  The Council retains a minimum of £1 million (approximately 
£250 per property) in order to cover unexpected events that could - if realised 
– trigger financial pressures. 
 

7.3.5. Due to the strict ring-fencing rules that apply to the HRA, any funds set aside 
form part of HRA reserves. The table below summarises the projected HRA 
reserves position for the duration of this MTFP. 

 
• HRA Working Balance – this reserve is the excess of income after 

expenditure in any given year and is set aside to provide for capital 
expenditure demands in the future and to provide a contingency against 
unforeseen costs. 

• Housing Reform / contingency reserve – this reserve was set aside to fund 
potential additional unforeseen costs of housing reform and self-financing.  

• Stock Condition Reserve – this reserve has been set aside to fund the cost 
of providing a stock condition survey. 

• Major Void Reserve – this reserve is a contingency against the costs of 
Void properties requiring external or structural major works. 

• Capital Investment Fund – this reserve is used to smooth the cost of 
borrowing required to fund any capital expenditure.   

  2016/17 2017/18 2018/19 2019/20 2020/21 
  £ £ £ £ £ 
HRA Reserves Brought Forward 7,490,742 7,849,005 7,326,685 6,610,815 5,601,895 
Surplus/(Loss) for the year  260,263 (522,320) (715,870) (1,008,920) (1,322,160) 
Transfers to / from reserves 98,000 - - - - 

HRA Working Balance 7,849,005 7,326,685 6,610,815 5,601,895 4,279,735 
Housing Reform / Contingency 
Reserves 457,560 457,560 457,560 457,560 457,560 

Stock Condition Reserve 300,000 300,000 300,000 300,000 300,000 
Major Void Reserve 100,000 100,000 100,000 100,000 100,000 

Total Working Balance carried forward 8,706,565 8,184,245 7,468,375 6,459,455 5,137,295 
Capital Investment Fund carried forward  446,872     446,872       446,872       446,872       446,872  
Total HRA Reserves carried forward 9,153,437 8,631,117 7,915,247 6,906,327 5,584,167 

 

Page 89



6.40 
 

7.3.6. It can be seen from the table above that the HRA balance is projected to 
exceed its £1 million contingency minimum over the next four years.  
However, due to the 1% reduction in rental income per annum over the next 
four years, the HRA balances are significantly reducing based on current 
expenditure assumptions.   

 
8.   MTFP REVENUE POSITION 

 
8.1.   General Fund Revenue Position 

 
8.1.1. The medium term General Fund revenue position is as set out in the table 

below: 
 

          
Summary Revenue Position 2017/18 2018/19 2019/20 2020/21 

          
  £ £ £ £ 

Revenue Consequences of Capital Spend (section 4.2) 27,180 
        

52,910      57,450 39,790 

Interest Rate Changes (section 5.1)     74,410 
    

(19,060)    (68,450) (68,410) 

Borrowing Costs (section 5.1) 
    

(144,240)      74,960      10,420 57,950 

Inflation Pressures (section 5.2) 
     

443,400 
     

429,110 
    

446,780 453,740 

Increased / (Reduced) Budget Demand (section 5.3)    (36,480) 
   

(123,500) 
   

(130,500) (67,500) 
     
Budget Growth (section 5.4) - - - - 

Increased Council Tax Income (section 6.1) 
   

(151,940) 
   

(154,150) 
  

(156,030) (158,990) 

Business Rates Retention (section 6.2) 
           

(199,320) 
    

(31,940)    (24,980) (24,430) 

Changes in Collection Fund (section 6.3) 
   

(666,150) 
      

79,080      (1,350) (1,350) 

Reduction in Government Grant (section 6.4) 
     

587,530 
     

533,530 
    

300,760 58,640 

Additional Fees and Charges (section 6.5) 
   

(100,000) 
   

(100,000) 
  

(100,000) (100,000) 

Contribution to Reserves & Balances (section 7) 
     

689,350               - - - 
         
In Year Change in Position 523,740 740,940 334,100 189,440 
     
Efficiency & Rationalisation Plan (section 4.3) (28,000)    
Shortfall to be Identified (Section 4.3)     
         
Budget (Surplus) / Deficit 495,740 740,940 334,100 189,440 
Cumulative (Surplus) / Deficit 495,740 1,236,680 1,570,780 1,760,220 

 
8.1.2. Annex D shows the projected General Fund revenue position in detail. 

 
 
 

Page 90



6.41 
 

8.2.   Housing Revenue Account Revenue Position 
 

8.2.1. The medium term Housing Revenue Account revenue position is as set out in 
the table below. 
 

 

Summary Revenue Position 2017/18 2018/19 2019/20 2020/21 
  £ £ £ £ 

Budget deficit brought forward                   -    522,320 715,870 1,008,920 
     
Revenue consequence of Capital spend (section 4.2) (157,230) (42,480) 182,490 25,400 
     
Inflation pressures (section 5.2) 129,520 119,680 124,840 120,380 
     
Increased / reduced budget demand  (section 5.3) 242,120 (147,600)               -                 -    
     
Increased / reduced budget growth  (section 5.4)                  -    -   -  - 
     
Increase in Other Operating Expenditure (section 
5.6) 164,190 51,370 47,140 46,260 

     
Reduction in Rent and Other Charges  (section 6.5) 143,720 212,580 (61,420) 121,200 
         
In Year Change in Position 522,320 715,870 1,008,920 1,322,160 
     
Budget (Surplus) / Deficit 522,320 1,238,190 2,247,110 3,569,270 
     

 
8.2.2. Annex D shows the projected Housing Revenue Account revenue position in 

detail. 
 

9.   CONSULTATION 
 

9.1. The Council is committed to consulting with residents and other stakeholders 
to help inform the budget setting process and spending priorities/non-priorities. 
A variety of techniques have been used and the approaches have been 
iterative, building year on year on what has gone before. The Council already 
holds comprehensive information gathered about residents’ spending priorities. 
Much of this information was gathered in times of rising expenditure. The 
financial challenges for the Council are now very different.  
 

9.2. The consultation process for 2017/18 will be undertaken via an online 
communication available on the Council’s website, which summarises the 
financial challenges and invites comment on the plan.   There will also be 
reference included within the next e-newsletter issued by Regeneration to local 
businesses.  There will also be tenant consultation undertaken in respect of 
changes to the Rent Policy. 

 
9.3. It will be particularly important that the Council, as it makes difficult budgetary 

decisions, is able to evidence that it has considered the impact of its decisions 
on groups with ‘protected characteristics’. 

Page 91



6.42 
 

 
9.4. Going forward, the Council will be developing a timetable of consultation, 

which will focus on specific emerging issues that will potentially have a 
significant impact on the Council’s finances over the medium term. 

 

Page 92



6.43 
 

ANNEX A 
 

Proposed Capital Projections (2016/17 to 2020/21) – General Fund  
 

 

Capital Schemes 2016/17 2017/18 2018/19 2019/20 2020/21 Total 
  £ £ £ £ £ £ 

Asset Management Plan(AMP)             

Council Offices/Public Buildings  
 

1,442,560  
 

1,696,500  
 

2,449,000  
    

454,000  
    

129,870   6,171,930  

Car Parks  
    

135,000  
    

135,000  
    

150,000  
    

350,000              -        770,000  

Infrastructure         1,690  
      

18,960  
    

271,130  
    

300,000  
    

125,000      716,780  

Leisure Centres         2,940  
    

365,000  
    

100,000              -                -        467,940  

  1,582,190 2,215,460 2,970,130 1,104,000 
    

254,870  8,126,650 

              

Affordable Housing Projects 
    

241,960              -                -                -                -        241,960  

              

Private Sector Housing Grants 438,840 238,000 238,000 238,000 
    

238,000  1,390,840 
              
ICT 318,000 50,000 50,000 

      
50,000  

      
41,520  509,520 

Other Schemes              

Play Facilities 
    

110,370  
      

10,000              -                -                -        120,370  

Country Parks & Allotments 
    

100,550              -                -                -                -        100,550  

Conservation/Heritage 54,650 45,000 
      

45,000  
      

45,000  
      

45,000      234,650  

Market Town Regeneration  161,060 
    

199,130              -                -                -        360,190  

  426,630 254,130 
      

45,000  
      

45,000  
      

45,000  815,760 

              

Total Programme  3,007,620 2,757,590 3,303,130 1,437,000 579,390 11,084,730 

Funding of Programme              

External Contributions 544,880 238,000 238,000 238,000 
    

238,000  1,496,880 

Planning Obligations 
    

308,080  
      

10,000              -                -                -    318,080 

Capital Receipts 
    

679,000  
    

138,000  
    

845,000  
    

240,000              -    1,902,000 

Borrowing  1,475,660 2,371,590 2,220,130 959,000 
    

341,390  7,367,770 

  3,007,620 2,757,590 3,303,130 1,437,000 579,390 11,084,730 
 

Page 93



6.44 
 

ANNEX A 
 

Proposed Capital Projections (2016/17 to 2020/21) – Council Dwellings (HRA) 
 

Capital Schemes  2016/17 2017/18 2018/19 2019/20 2020/21 Total 
  £ £ £ £ £ £ 
ASSET MANAGEMENT WORKS:            
Roofing & External Works 672,280 475,000 475,000 475,000 475,000 2,572,280 
Kitchens Programme 233,670 290,000 290,000 290,000 290,000 1,393,670 
Bathroom Programme 77,240 580,000 580,000 580,000 580,000 2,397,240 
Central Heating Programme 987,180 605,000 605,000 605,000 605,000 3,407,180 
Electrical Works 401,610 165,000 165,000 165,000 165,000 1,061,610 
Health & Safety Works 132,820 150,000 150,000 150,000 150,000 732,820 
Aids & Adaptations  435,670 300,000 300,000 300,000 300,000 1,635,670 
HRA Shop Works 76,000             -                -                -                -    76,000 
Sheltered Schemes Various Works 132,500             -                -                -                -    132,500 
External & Structural Works 70,000             -                -                -                -    70,000 
General Insulation Works           -    75,000 75,000 75,000 75,000 300,000 
Replacement Windows & Doors           -    550,000 550,000 550,000 550,000 2,200,000 
Work to Communal Areas           -    150,000 150,000 150,000 150,000 600,000 
REPAIRS TEAM CAPITAL WORKS             
Void Rewires  35,000 35,000 35,000 35,000 35,000 175,000 
Void Kitchens  350,000 350,000 350,000 350,000 350,000 1,750,000 
Void Bathrooms  60,000 60,000 60,000 60,000 60,000 300,000 
Void Central Heating           -    495,000 495,000 495,000 495,000 1,980,000 
OTHER CAPITAL WORKS:            
Professional Fees 125,000 180,000 180,000 180,000 180,000 845,000 
Commissioning Costs 155,000 155,000 155,000 155,000 155,000 775,000 
New Build Project 194,000 142,000 301,050 454,000 454,000 1,545,050 

  4,137,970 4,757,000 4,916,050 5,069,000 5,069,000 23,949,020 
Funding:              
Major Repairs Reserve 1,550,000 1,550,000 1,550,000 1,550,000 1,550,000 7,750,000 
Capital Receipts 509,000 531,000 608,410 515,000 454,000 2,617,410 
HRA Contribution 1,580,970 2,676,000 2,757,640 3,004,000 3,065,000 13,083,610 
Capital Investment Fund 498,000           -              -                -                -    498,000 
  4,137,970 4,757,000 4,916,050 5,069,000 5,069,000 23,949,020 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

Page 94



6.45 
 

 ANNEX B 
 

Efficiency and Rationalisation Strategy (April 2014) 
 

Efficiency Strategy 2014/15 2015/16 2016/17 TOTAL 
  £ £ £ £ 
ENHANCING INCOME & IMPROVING TRADING         
Income Generation 18,000 75,000 57,000 150,000 
Trading Effectiveness 50,000 50,000 50,000 150,000 
Improving Yield from Fees and Charges 25,560 16,530 13,910 56,000 
  93,560 141,530 120,910 356,000 
EXTENDING SHARED SERVICES         
Further Sharing with Local Authorities & Partners 25,000 50,000 50,000 125,000 
  25,000 50,000 50,000 125,000 
CORPORATE EFFICIENCY PROJECTS         
Procurement 160,000 200,000 90,000 450,000 
Asset Management 130,000 130,000 125,000 385,000 
Workforce Planning, Pay & Other Benefits 10,000 20,000 20,000 50,000 
Administration 20,000 30,000 - 50,000 
ICT Strategy 20,000 50,000 30,000 100,000 
Management Savings 100,000 - - 100,000 
Third Sector Commissioning - 20,000 30,000 50,000 
Development of Trusts / Social Enterprises 70,000 60,000 20,000 150,000 
Development of Alternative Service Delivery Models - 30,000 19,000 49,000 
  510,000 540,000 334,000 1,384,000 
SERVICE REVIEWS         
Customer Services 30,000 65,000 40,000 135,000 
Regulatory Services 40,000 75,000 35,000 150,000 
Operational Services 30,000 40,000 30,000 100,000 
Corporate Services 50,000 50,000 - 100,000 
  150,000 230,000 105,000 485,000 
INNOVATION & GROWTH         
Growth Fund 50,000 50,000 50,000 150,000 
  50,000 50,000 50,000 150,000 
HOUSING REVENUE ACCOUNT     
 HRA  250,000 50,000   -  300,000 
 250,000 50,000 - 300,000 
     
TOTAL 1,078,560 1,061,530 659,910 2,800,000 
          

 

Page 95



6.46 
 

ANNEX C 
 

Medium Term Financial Plan – Principal Risks 
 
Risk Category Risk Mitigation and Controls 

 
Financial 
Implications 

 
Robustness of financial 
assumptions within Efficiency 
and Rationalisation Strategy 
 

 
Structured project management 
arrangements have been put in place with 
detailed business cases for each initiative – 
these will be strengthened in the service 
review process 
 

 
Financial 
Implications 

 
Additional financial pressures 
emerge – cost & income  

 
The strategy is kept under constant review 
and adjustments will be made where 
necessary 
 

 
Service 
Continuity 

 
Interruptions to key services or 
performance standards 
 

 
Resource implications and impact are 
identified as part of the business case 
process. Service continuity and 
maintenance of standards of service are 
key requirements of any new proposals 
 

 
Corporate 
Governance 

 
Maintaining stakeholder 
confidence; lack of clarity on 
accountability 

 
Ongoing review of standards of internal 
control (e.g. Financial Procedure Rules 
reviewed and updated). Internal Audit Plan 
will be reviewed to account for the new 
approach proposed in the efficiency & 
Rationalisation Strategy 
 

 
Management of 
Change 

 
Management of corporate and 
local, cultural change; 
behavioural risks; residual 
effects of aggregation; 
proposed changes to 
organisational structure, roles 
& responsibilities 
 

 
Progress with achievement of aims will be 
monitored through an effective performance 
management structure. Investment has 
been made in a new approach to 
Organisational Development. 
 

 
People Risks 

 
Impact of cultural changes; 
assessment of skills; 
recruitment & retention; 
capacity issues 
 

 
Continuing communications process for the 
delivery of transformation programme 
 

 
Key Projects & 
Partnerships 

 
Managing changes to shared 
service delivery arrangements 
 

 
The project management methodology 
provides for an adequate transition where 
there are changes in service delivery 
   

Page 96



6.47 
 

Risk Category Risk Mitigation and Controls 
 
Performance 
Management 

 
Adequacy of framework to 
monitor transition 

 
Risk management processes are 
embedded 
 

 
Reputation and 
Relationship 
Risks 
 

 
Maintaining existing partner 
confidence 

 
Continuing communications process for the 
delivery of transformation programme 
 

 
Programme 
Delivery 

 
Delays in implementation of 
efficiency savings 

 
Effective governance arrangements in place 
to monitor plans.  
 
Executive Directors and Senior Managers 
own delivery of efficiencies.  
 
Executive Director (Transformation) 
appointed as programme director.  
 

 
Programme 
Delivery 

 
A number of the efficiency / 
rationalisation initiatives are 
not achieved 

 
Structured project management approach is 
in place for delivery including effective 
exception reporting 
 
The strategy is kept under constant review 
 
Identification of further efficiency / 
rationalisation opportunities through 
benchmarking / effective member working 
groups 
   

 
Political Support 

 
Lack of Members support for 
Plan. 

 
Regular reporting and member briefings 
including effective scrutiny arrangements 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 97



6.48 
 

ANNEX D 
 

Proposed Revenue Projections (2017/18 to 2020/21) – General Fund 
 

Budget Heading 
2017/18 

Projection 
2018/19 

Projection 
2019/20  

Projection 
2020/21  

Projection 
  £ £ £ £ 
Employees 12,260,830 12,625,930 12,996,740 13,363,240 
Premises 3,672,960 3,583,110 3,648,110 3,718,110 
Transport 694,690 698,540 707,220 716,020 
Supplies & Services 9,929,330 10,053,920 10,178,550 10,309,870 
Benefits          82,460          82,460          82,460         82,460 
Borrowing 1,430,910 1,558,780 1,626,650 1,724,390 
Parish Grant re Council Tax Support 51,320 51,320 51,320 51,320 
Financing Costs 191,000 191,000 191,000 191,000 
          
Total Expenditure 28,313,500 28,845,060 29,482,050 30,156,410 
          

Fees and Charges / Other Income 
 

(11,084,340) 
 

(11,310,340) 
 

(11,538,340) (11,708,340) 

Interest Receipts         (56,250)        (75,310) 
      

(143,760)      (212,170) 

HRA Recharges 
   

(6,519,460)   (6,491,540) 
   

(6,616,380)   (6,736,760) 

Capital Recharges 
      

(231,240)      (231,240) 
      

(231,240)      (231,240) 
          
Net Expenditure 10,422,210 10,736,630 10,952,330 11,267,900 
          

Council Tax 
   

(5,422,460)   (5,576,610) 
   

(5,732,640)   (5,891,630) 
Council Tax - Compensation Grant                  0                  0                  0                 0 

Revenue Support Grant 
      

(580,100)      (245,760)                  0                 0 

Business Rates Retention 
   

(3,050,510)   (3,082,450) 
   

(3,107,430)   (3,131,860) 

New Homes Bonus 
      

(730,270)      (531,080) 
      

(476,080)      (417,440) 
Contribution to / (use of) Reserves          (6,550)          (6,550)          (6,550)         (6,550) 

Collection Fund 
      

(136,580)        (57,500)        (58,850)       (60,200) 
          

Total Financing 
   

(9,926,470)   (9,499,950) 
   

(9,381,550)   (9,507,680) 
          

Cumulative Deficit / (Surplus) 
        

495,740     1,236,680 
     

1,570,780     1,760,220 
          

In-Year Deficit / (Surplus) 
        

495,740        740,940 
        

334,100        189,440 
          

 

Page 98



6.49 
 

ANNEX D 
 
 

Proposed Revenue Projections (2017/18 to 2020/21) – Housing Revenue Account 
 

Budget Heading 
2017/18 

Projection 
2018/19  

Projection 
2019/20  

Projection 
2020/21  

Projection 
  £ £ £ £ 
 
Repairs & Maintenance  3,788,520 3,717,400 3,797,610 3,876,610 
Supervision & Management  2,695,930 2,739,130 2,783,760 2,825,140 
Rates, Rents, Taxes, Charges  115,320 115,320 115,320 115,320 
Other Operating Expenditure 1,428,190 1,493,010 1,562,570 1,631,250 
Depreciation & Impairment Charges 1,550,000 1,550,000 1,550,000 1,550,000 
Interest & Debt Management Charges 3,381,630 3,244,060 3,157,770 3,099,750 
HRA Contribution to Capital Programme 2,676,000 2,757,640 3,004,000 3,065,000 
          
Total Expenditure 15,635,590 15,616,560 15,971,030 16,163,070 
          
Dwellings Rents (14,495,540) (14,277,940) (14,334,290) (14,202,380) 
Non - Dwelling Rents & Other Income (617,730) (622,750) (627,820) (638,530) 
          
Total Income (15,113,270) (14,900,690) (14,962,110) (14,840,910) 
      
(Surplus) / Deficit for year 522,320 715,870 1,008,920 1,322,160 
     
Cumulative Deficit 522,320 1,238,190 2,247,110 3,569,270 
     

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 99



6.50 
 

ANNEX E 
 

Efficiency Plan Submission –                                                         
High Peak Borough Council 

 

4 Year Local Government Finance Settlement - Background  
 
As part of the 2016/17 Local Government Finance Settlement, the Government 
offered Local Authorities a four-year funding settlement up to and including 2019/20 
covering Revenue Support Grant, transitional funding and Rural Service Delivery 
Grant. 
 
The aim of which was to increase certainty and confidence in terms of the funding 
position and encourage Local Authorities to strengthen financial management and 
work collaboratively with local partners when considering the way services are 
provided in the future. 
 
In order to take advantage of this offer High Peak B.C. is required to submit an 
efficiency plan setting out what the Council intends to do to address the challenge of 
financial sustainability. 
 
If the four year offer is not accepted the Council would be subject to the existing 
annual process for determining the local government finance settlement.  Allocations 
could be subject to additional reductions dependent on the fiscal climate and the need 
to make further savings to reduce the deficit.  
 
High Peak Borough Council recognises the benefit of a 4 year settlement to support 
financial planning and provide funding certainty and will therefore be accepting the 
offer. 
 
The Council’s Medium Term Financial Plan  
 
The Council’s Medium Term Financial Plan (MTFP) has clear links to the Corporate 
Plan, details the Strategic Alliance with High Peak Borough Council, and focuses on 
the ongoing and planned transformation projects that will enable the Council to reduce 
its costs or generate additional income locally – with the efficiency programme forming 
an integral part.  The MTFP was presented and approved at Full Council on 25th 
February 2016.  The full MTFP can be found on the Council’s website:- 
http://www.highpeak.gov.uk/sites/default/files/meetings/papers/papers-
947316724/6%2520%2520Recommendations%2520from%2520The%2520Executive%2520meeting%2520held%2
520on%252018%2520February%25202016.pdf 
 
The MTFP incorporates the 4 year Local Government finance settlement into the 
funding position – see section 6.4.  This identifies the efficiencies required to be 
achieved over the 4 year period – which are considered in section 4 of the MTFP (and 
discussed as part of this document). 
 
 
 

Page 100

http://www.highpeak.gov.uk/sites/default/files/meetings/papers/papers-947316724/6%2520%2520Recommendations%2520from%2520The%2520Executive%2520meeting%2520held%2520on%252018%2520February%25202016.pdf
http://www.highpeak.gov.uk/sites/default/files/meetings/papers/papers-947316724/6%2520%2520Recommendations%2520from%2520The%2520Executive%2520meeting%2520held%2520on%252018%2520February%25202016.pdf
http://www.highpeak.gov.uk/sites/default/files/meetings/papers/papers-947316724/6%2520%2520Recommendations%2520from%2520The%2520Executive%2520meeting%2520held%2520on%252018%2520February%25202016.pdf


6.51 
 

The Corporate Plan 
 
The Corporate Plan sets out the Authority’s vision for the duration of the current 
council (2015-2019).  The full version is published on the Council’s website:- 
http://www.highpeak.gov.uk/hp/your-council/our-priorities-and-how-we-are-doing/corporate-plan-2015-2019 
 
Aim 2 of the corporate plan acknowledges the need to meet the Council’s financial 
challenges and provide value for money, with key priorities focusing on:- 

• Effective use of financial and other resources to ensure value for money 
• Ensure our services are easily available to all our residents in the appropriate 

channels and provided “right first time” 
• A high performing and well motivated workforce 
• More effective use of Council assets 

 
In order to achieve the key priorities and effectively meet our financial challenges, the 
Council will:- 

• Continually review and implement an efficiency and rationalisation programme 
• Improve customer service 
• Communicate more effectively with residents 

 
This is to be undertaken whilst protecting front-line customer facing services and 
prioritising financial resources on the achievement of the other 3 aims:- 

• To help create a safer and healthier environment for our communities to live 
and work 

• To support economic development and regeneration 
• To protect and improve the environment 

 
Strategic Alliance with Staffordshire Moorlands District Council 
 
In 2008 High Peak Borough Council and Staffordshire Moorlands District Council 
entered into a strategic alliance between the two Councils with the following agreed 
vision: 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

“Under the management of a single Chief Executive, to establish joint working 
arrangements and a shared approach to the delivery of key services that will improve 
the quality of people’s lives in the two authorities and deliver greater value for money” 
This vision to be realised by delivery of the agreed set of general aims for the strategic 
alliance, to:- 

 

• Increase the levels of customer satisfaction through the improvement of 
services. 

• Produce realistic cash savings in order to deliver improved services and limit 
Council Tax increases. 

• Strengthen and share skills, expertise and leaning in order to deliver better 
services. 

• Preserve and enhance the special and distinctive characteristics within each 
local authority area. 

• Increase our influence locally, regionally and nationally in order to secure a 
‘better deal’ for all our communities. 

 
Page 101

http://www.highpeak.gov.uk/hp/your-council/our-priorities-and-how-we-are-doing/corporate-plan-2015-2019


6.52 
 

The Strategic Alliance was formed around the principle of shared services in the 
pursuit of efficiency and realisation of savings.  2016 sees the Alliance operating with a 
fully integrated shared management structure, workforce and IT systems.  These 
secure economy without impairing the ability of each authority to maintain its unique 
identity and address its individual issues.  The Council intends to continue to drive 
savings and service improvements through collaboration with its Alliance partner, 
Staffordshire Moorlands District Council. 
The Alliance Management Structure sets out the fully integrated, shared operational 
and management structure of the Alliance partners and is published on the Council’s 
website: http://www.highpeak.gov.uk/sm/your-council/transparency/management-team-and-structure 
 
 
Transformation Programme 
 
In order to support the achievement of the Corporate Plan aims and address financial 
challenges, the Council has established a Transformation Programme.    
 
The Council’s ‘transformation programme’ incorporates all major projects which meet 
the strategic priorities of the authority and have significant financial implications, 
including:- 

• The capital programme 
• The efficiency and rationalisation strategy 
• Service reviews 
• Member priority projects 
• Other large scale projects 

 
The delivery of transformation programme projects is monitored by the Transformation 
Board made up of Directors, Heads of Service along with key Corporate Service 
Managers and officers. A Director is allocated as ‘project executive’ and a full 
business case appraisal is completed for each project. 
 
 
The Efficiency Plan 
 
The MTFP approved in February identified a cumulative deficit position by the end of 
2019/20 of £1.9million: 
 

 2016/17       
(£) 

2017/18        
(£) 

2018/19       
(£) 

2019/20   
(£) 

Total Net Expenditure 10,845,850 10,805,040 11,034,030 11,322,800 
Total Financing (10,185,940) (10,117,130) (9,470,890) (9,353,210) 
Cumulative Deficit 659,910 687,910 1,563,140 1,969,590 

 
Of the total cumulative deficit, £659,910 is to be achieved as part of the current 3-year 
efficiency programme, with the remaining £1,309,680 to be achieved through savings 
made from the implementation of future projects.  
 
Current 3 year Efficiency Plan 
 

Page 102

http://www.highpeak.gov.uk/sm/your-council/transparency/management-team-and-structure


6.53 
 

The Authority’s current efficiency plan was approved in April 2014 and aimed to 
achieve £2.5m over a three year period 2014/15 – 2016/17.  The programme included 
a number of specific project areas under 5 headings:- 
 

Efficiency Programme Target (£) 

Enhancing Income and Improving Trading 
Focussed upon increasing the income generated from Council 
Services including, by identifying and generating new income streams, 
improving the effectiveness of services that compete with other service 
providers, and improving the yield from fees and charges through 
increased activity. 

356,000 

Extending Shared Services 
Looking at new partners and other neighbouring Councils 125,000 

Corporate Efficiency Projects 
Targeting savings that do not directly impact on front line service 
provision including; implementation of the procurement strategy, 
further development of the Asset Management Plan, a review of 
administrative support, a comprehensive review of the ICT strategy, 
more cost effective arrangements around utilisation of the third sector 
and development of alternative service delivery models. 

1,384,000 

Service Reviews 
Structured and comprehensive review of all of the Council’s services – 
removing service silos in order to realise savings from new approaches 
to delivery including exploiting channel shift, combining similar 
functions such as enforcement, and taking a joined up approach to 
corporate support services.  

485,000 

Innovation and Growth 
Creation of a Development Fund on an “invest to save” basis focusing 
on growth projects which result in financial benefits to the Authority in 
terms of income generation   

150,000 

TOTAL 2,500,000 
 
The Authority has achieved the 2014/15 and 2015/16 targets and will be reviewing 
progress on the outstanding projects within the next MTFP update to review if there is 
a requirement to re-profile and/or focus on substitute savings in the interim.  The 
Council has established an Efficiency Programme earmarked reserve to support with 
implementation. 
 
Future Efficiency Projects 
 
The Council considered within the MTFP approved in February 2016, other large scale 
projects that are already or will be progressing over the next 4 years, of which one of 
the aims is to generate efficiencies.  These projects are detailed below:- 
 
Channel Shift 
 

The Council is progressing the ‘channel shift’ project, which focuses on changing the 
way in which our customers interact with the Council with the enhanced use of 
technology. The aim of which is not only to achieve financial savings but also to 

Page 103



6.54 
 

improve the customer experience and streamline internal processes.  This project will 
potentially impact on the capital programme investment as part of the ICT Strategy) 
with the savings generated from the project covering the cost of borrowing and 
supporting the efficiency programme. 
 
The business case for this project has been developed, with a timeline for 
implementation in place. The first phase concentrates on the use of e-forms to 
channel applications for Housing Benefit and Council Tax discounts and exemptions, 
and the use of credit information to apply risk-based verification and assist with the 
review of eligibility for discounts and exemptions.    
 
Waste and Streets Service Delivery 
 
The Council is currently developing the business case for a joint delivery model for the 
provision of Waste and Street services.  The service is currently outsourced with the 
contract expiring during 2017/18 -, whilst the Council’s Alliance partner Staffordshire 
Moorlands D.C. have an internally delivered service.    Therefore, the two Authorities 
will be focusing on the delivery of a jointly operated service in order to avoid 
duplication and realise efficiencies. 
 
Leisure Centre Operation 
 
Both High Peak B.C. and Staffordshire Moorlands D.C. outsource the operation of 
Leisure Centres to a private sector contractor.   Both contracts expire during 2018/19, 
therefore similar to the delivery of Waste and Streets, the Authorities will be looking to 
potentially work together on the future operation of the Leisure Centres.  
Consideration will also be given to the future asset management costs of maintaining 
the buildings and the delivery models going forward in order to achieve value for 
money.  
 
Asset Management Plan & Facilities Management 
 
Efficiencies have already been made as a result of rationalising assets, sharing 
buildings with partner organisations and reducing revenue costs as a result of capital 
investment.  The Council has now undertaken a 30 year stock condition review to 
inform the level of investment required to maintain the assets and assess the revenue 
implications of doing so.  As a result, a report has been written which sets out the 
actions identified to ensure the efficient use of Alliance property resources and reduce 
the impact on revenue.  
 
The Council has a joint contract with Staffordshire Moorlands D.C. for the facilities 
management of the buildings – currently undertaken by Derbyshire County Council.  
The contract has delivered savings to each Authority and is due to expire at the end of 
2016/17.  The two Authorities, working together, will aim to drive further savings from 
the re-procurement of the contract.  
 

Page 104



6.6 
 

 
APPENDIX A 

 
 

HIGH PEAK BOROUGH COUNCIL 
 
 
 
 
 
MEDIUM TERM FINANCIAL PLAN 2017/18 to 2020/21 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
November 2016 

Page 105



6.7 
 

INDEX 
 
 
1 Introduction 

 
2 Strategic Priorities 
 
3      Current Spending Levels  
 
4 Transformation Programme 
 4.1 Introduction 
 4.2 Capital Programme 
 4.3 Housing Revenue Account Review  
 4.4 Efficiency and Rationalisation Strategy 

4.5 Service Reviews  
4.6 Member Priority Projects 
4.7 Other Projects 

 
5 Financial Forecasts 

5.1 Interest Rates 
5.2 Inflationary Projections 
5.3 Budgetary Demand 
5.4 Budget Growth 
5.5 Pensions 
5.6 HRA - Other Operating Expenditure 

 
6 Funding & Income Generation 

6.1 Council Tax  
6.2 Business Rates Retention  

        6.3    Collection Fund 
6.4 Income from Government Grants 
6.5 Fees & Charges 

 
7  Risks, Contingencies & Use of Reserves  
 
8 Revenue Financial Projections  

8.1 General Fund Revenue Position 
8.2 HRA Revenue Position 

 
9 Consultation 
 
 
Annex A Proposed Capital Programme 
Annex B Efficiency & Rationalisation Strategy   
Annex C  MTFP Principal Risks 
Annex D Proposed Revenue Budget (General Fund & HRA) 
Annex E Efficiency Plan Submission (4 Year Settlement)   

Page 106



6.8 
 

1. INTRODUCTION 
 

1.1. The Medium Term Financial Plan (MTFP) is a key element of the Council’s 
budget and policy frameworks. It aims to ensure that resources are directed 
effectively and efficiently towards delivery of the Council’s Corporate Plan. It 
describes the financial direction of the Council for planning purposes and 
outlines the financial pressures the Council is likely to experience over the next 
4 years.   
 

1.2. The medium-term financial planning process establishes how available 
resources will be allocated to services in line with the Council’s priorities which 
have been determined following consultation with residents, councillors and 
other stakeholders. The process facilitates the Council in planning the prudent 
management of its finances, in building resilience and in providing for the needs 
of residents over the long term.   
 

1.3. The MTFP is updated regularly to fit in with the budget cycle. This review of the 
MTFP builds on the existing plan and updates assumptions to reflect known 
changes to income, costs and funding. The plan incorporates revenue and 
capital financial projections over the four years 2017/18 to 2020/21.  It also 
includes an assessment of key risks and a presentation of longer-term financial 
issues which have the potential to impact on the Council.  
 

1.4. The Council will demonstrate economy, efficiency and effectiveness in the 
application of its resources. Value for Money (VFM) is maximised when there is 
an optimum balance between economy, efficiency and effectiveness. 

 
• Economy: the price the Council pays for providing its services  
• Efficiency: how much the Council gets out of what’s put in (productivity)  
• Effectiveness: value of the impact achieved (quantitative or qualitative)  
 
 

2. STRATEGIC PRIORITIES 
 

2.1. The Medium Term Financial Plan is driven by local priorities. The Council’s 
spending strategy is set out in the Corporate Plan formally adopted by 
members of the Council. 
 

2.2. Following the elections in May 2015, there was a fundamental review of the 
Corporate Plan focussing on the period 2015-2019 (up to the end of the current 
political administration). 
 

2.3. The purpose of a Corporate Plan is to establish the Council’s vision, corporate 
objectives and key priorities for the medium term.  It in effect determines the 
Council’s commitments in the delivery of services and community leadership to 
the citizens of High Peak. 

 
 
 

Page 107



6.9 
 

2.4. The Council’s Corporate Plan has been developed after taking into account the 
views and aspirations of High Peak citizens and having come to a clear 
understanding of empirical evidence. The plan has taken due recognition of the 
national and regional policy framework.  It has taken on board learning from the 
progress made by the Council and has benefitted from input from Members at a 
priority setting event which was held in July 2015. 
 

2.5. The Council’s vision is expressed as:    
 

“Delivering excellent services to High Peak residents and demonstrating value 
for money” 

 
 This vision is articulated further by four aims: 

 
• Help create a safer and healthier environment for our residents to live and 

work 
• Meet financial challenges & provide value for money 
• Support economic development & regeneration 
• Protect and improve the environment 

 
2.6. These aims are supported by a number of objectives which also provide the 

framework for the delivery of service plans. The Council’s objectives are 
summarised below:  

 

 Aim Objectives 
 

1 
 
Help create a safer and 
healthier environment 
for our residents to live 
and work 
 

• Effective relationship with strategic partners 
• Fit for purpose housing stock that meets the needs of 

tenants 
• Effective support of community safety arrangements 
• Provision of high quality leisure facilities 

 
2 

 
Meet its financial 
challenges and provide 
value for money 
 
 
 

• Effective use of financial and other resources to ensure 
value for money 

• Ensure our services are easily available to all our 
residents in the appropriate channels and provided ‘right 
first time’ 

• A high performing and highly motivated workforce 
• More effective use of Council assets 

 
3 

 
Support economic 
development and 
regeneration 
 

• Encourage business start-ups and enterprises 
• Flourishing town centres that support the local economy 
• Promote tourism 
• High quality development and building control with an 

‘open for business approach’ 
 
4 

 
Protect and improve 
the environment  
 

• Effective recycling and waste management 
• Provision of high quality public amenities, clean streets 

and environmental health 
• Provision of quality parks and open spaces 
• Car parking arrangements that meet the needs of 

residents, businesses and visitors 
 

Page 108



6.10 
 

 
2.7. The Council is committed to playing the lead role in championing the local area. 

In so doing the Council recognises its community leadership role. Fulfilling this 
role effectively means influencing partners in a number of key areas in order to 
ensure that services are shaped and delivered around the needs and 
aspirations of citizens. The priorities for the Council’s influencing role will be 
focused in the following areas: 

 
• Work with the private sector on regeneration schemes including: The 

Crescent, Woods Mill and Torr Vale Mill 
• Press for more regular and faster rail links and road infrastructure 
• Provision of accessible health and social care 
• Effective snow clearance 
• Support the police in dealing with anti social behaviour 
• Work with partners to bring additional funding into the borough 

 
2.8. The Plan identifies key priority outcomes, which will be the highest priority in the 

development of performance targets and key actions.  A significant proportion 
of the Council’s resources will be directed towards achieving them:  

 

 Aim Priority Outcomes 
 

1 
 
Help create a safer and 
healthier environment for our 
residents to live and work 

• Good quality social housing provision 
• Improved health 

 
2 

 
Meet financial challenges and 
provide value for money 
 
 

• Balanced and sustainable medium 
term financial position 

• Council services provide value for 
money 

• High level of resident and customer 
satisfaction 

 
3 

 
Support economic 
development and 
regeneration 
 

• Sustainable towns and rural 
communities 

• Increased economic growth 

 
4 

 
Protect and improve the 
environment  
 

• High recycling rates 
• Quality parks and open spaces and 

clean streets 

 
2.9. The Council maintains a Strategic Alliance with Staffordshire Moorlands District 

Council, formed around the principle of shared services in the pursuit of 
efficiency and realisation of savings. The Strategic Alliance has enabled the 
implementation and transformation of a joint management structure and 
services, consequently realising significant efficiency savings.  
 

2.10. The Council intends to continue to drive savings and service improvements 
through collaboration with its Alliance partner. 
 

Page 109



6.11 
 

3. CURRENT SPENDING LEVELS 
 

3.1. The starting point for the development of the MTFP is the current level of 
spending and the approved capital expenditure commitments. 

 
General Fund Revenue Budget   

 
3.2. The Council’s current year (2016/17) General Fund budget can be summarised 

as follows: 
 

Income and Expenditure 2016/17 
Budget 

  £ 
Employees 11,783,380 
Premises 3,432,170 
Transport 696,310 
Supplies & Services 9,831,890 
Benefits 28,960 
Borrowing 1,547,970 
Parish Grant 51,320 
Financing Costs 191,000 
  
Total Expenditure 27,563,000 
   
Fees and Charges / Other Income (10,817,340) 
Interest Receipts (130,660) 
Capital Recharges (231,240) 
HRA Recharges (6,197,820) 
   
Net Expenditure 10,185,940 
   

 
3.3. The net expenditure is financed as follows:  

 

Financing 2016/17 
Budget 

  £ 
Council Tax (5,270,520) 
Government Funding (1,124,580) 
New Homes Bonus (773,320) 
Business Rates Retention (2,851,190) 
Collection Fund Deficit 529,570 
Contribution to / (from) Reserves & Balances (695,900) 
  
Total Financing (10,185,940) 
   

  
 
 
 

 

Page 110



6.12 
 

Housing Revenue Account Budget   
 

3.4. The Housing Revenue Account (HRA) is a ‘ring-fenced’ account that ensures 
the management and maintenance of the Council’s housing stock is funded 
from the income generated by rents and other related sources.  
 

3.5. The Council’s current year (2016/17) Housing Revenue Account budget can be 
summarised as follows:  

 
Budget Heading 2016/17 

Budget 
  £ 
Repairs & Maintenance 3,096,290 
Supervision & Management 3,001,070 
Rates, Rents, Taxes, Charges 130,770 
Other Operating Expenditure 1,435,860 
Depreciation & Impairment Charges 1,432,000 
Interest & Debt Management Charges 3,416,430 
HRA Contribution to Capital Programme 2,744,570 
Total Expenditure 15,256,990 
  Dwellings Rents (14,642,120) 
Non - Dwelling Rents & Other Income (614,870) 
Total Income (15,256,990) 
  (Surplus) / Deficit for year - 

 
General Fund Capital Budget 

 
3.6. The medium-term projection for General Fund capital commitments approved 

by Council in February 2016 is detailed below: 
 

Service Area  2015/16 2016/17 2017/18 2018/19 2019/20 Total  
  £ £ £ £ £ £ 
Housing  241,960 - - - - 241,960 
Asset Management Plan 313,060 1,474,350 2,215,460 2,970,130 1,104,000  8,077,000 
Growth Fund - - - - - - 
Housing Grants 250,000 238,000 238,000    238,000     238,000  1,202,000 
ICT Strategy 124,710 100,000 100,000    100,000     100,000  524,710 
Other Schemes 569,250 275,600    244,130  - - 1,088,980 
Total Programme  1,498,980 2,087,950 2,797,590 3,308,130 1,442,000 11,134,650 
Financed by:             
External Contributions  305,360 284,250 238,000 238,000 238,000 1,303,610 
Capital Receipts  -    679,000     138,000     845,000     240,000  1,902,000 
Capital Reserve    750,000  - - - - 750,000 
S106 Planning Obligations    291,960       25,000  - - - 316,960 
Borrowing 151,660 1,099,700 2,421,590 2,225,130 964,000 6,862,080 
Total  Financing  1,498,980 2,087,950 2,797,590 3,308,130 1,442,000 11,134,650 

Page 111



6.13 
 

 
Housing Revenue Account Capital Budget 

 
3.7. The medium-term projection for Housing Revenue Account capital 

commitments approved by Council in February 2016 was as follows: 
 
  

2015/16 2016/17 2017/18 2018/19 2019/20 Total 

  £ £ £ £ £ £ 
Planned Maintenance 2,967,180 3,121,000 3,220,000 3,220,000 3,220,000 15,748,180 
Responsive Works 815,750 1,340,000 1,290,000 1,290,000 1,290,000 6,025,750 
Aids & Adaptations 319,230 380,000 300,000 300,000 300,000 1,599,230 
Environmental Improvements 150,000 - - - - 150,000 
New Build Projects - 194,000 142,000 287,410 200,000 823,410 
Commissioning Costs 155,000 155,000 155,000 155,000 155,000 775,000 
Efficiency Programme - (504,430) - - - (504,430) 
Total Programme 4,407,160 4,685,570 5,107,000 5,252,410 5,165,000 24,617,140 
             
HRA Contribution 2,218,850 2,246,570 3,144,000 3,212,000 3,218,000 14,039,420 
Major Repairs Reserve 1,421,000 1,432,000 1,432,000 1,432,000 1,432,000 7,149,000 
Capital Receipts 30,000 509,000 531,000 608,410 515,000 2,193,410 
Capital Investment Fund 737,310 498,000 - - - 1,235,310 
Total Financing 4,407,160 4,685,570 5,107,000 5,252,410 5,165,000 24,617,140 
              

 

 
4. TRANSFORMATION PROGRAMME 
 
4.1. Introduction 

 
4.1.1. The Council’s ‘transformation programme’ incorporates all major projects 

which meet the strategic priorities of the Authority and have significant 
financial implications, including: 

 

• The capital programme 
• Housing Revenue Account review 
• The efficiency and rationalisation strategy 
• Service reviews 
• Member priority projects 
• Other large scale projects 

 
4.1.2. The delivery of transformation programme projects is monitored by a 

Transformation Board made up of Directors, Heads of Service along with key 
Corporate Service Managers and officers. A director is allocated as ‘project 
executive’ and a full business case appraisal is completed for each project. 
 

4.1.3. The progress and current financial projections of the transformation 
programme is explored below along with any potential revenue 
consequences.  Any further work required to identify the financial implications 
of the programme are discussed and will feed into the 2017/18 budget setting 
process. 

Page 112



6.14 
 

 
4.2. General Fund Capital Programme  

 
4.2.1. The General Fund Capital Programme approved by members in February 

2016 has been reviewed, re-profiled and updated to reflect the latest position 
in terms of capital projections to 31st March 2021.  
 

4.2.2. The latest capital projections, specifically identifying the major schemes, are 
summarised in the table below. Full detail is attached in Annex A. 

  

Service Area  2016/17 201718 2018/19 2019/20 2020/20 Total  
  £ £ £ £ £ £ 
Housing  241,960 - - - - 241,960 
Asset Management Plan 1,582,190 2,215,460 2,970,130 1,104,000 254,870 8,126,650 
Housing Grants 438,840 238,000 238,000    238,000     238,000  1,390,840 
ICT Strategy 318,000 50,000 50,000    50,000     41,520  509,520 
Other Schemes 426,630 254,130    45,000  45,000 45,000 815,760 
Total Programme  3,007,620 2,757,590 3,303,130 1,437,000 579,390 11,084,730 
Financed by:             
External Contributions  544,880 238,000 238,000 238,000 238,000 1,496,880 
Capital Receipts  679,000    138,000  845,000     240,000  - 1,902,000 
Capital Reserve - - - - - - 
S106 Planning Obligations    308,080       10,000  - - - 318,080 
Borrowing 1,475,660 2,371,590 2,220,130 959,000 341,390 7,367,770 
Total  Financing  3,007,620 2,757,590 3,303,130 1,437,000 579,390 11,084,730 

 
4.2.3. The capital projections above include the carry forward of £523,770 capital 

budgets from 2015/16 as approved by Members. 
 
Housing Revenue Account Capital Programme 
 

4.2.4. The Housing Revenue Account Capital Programme approved by members in 
February 2016 is largely unchanged at this stage with further work to be 
undertaken prior to February 2017.  However, an additional year has been 
added based on the current HRA business plan and the allocation of capital 
receipts has been updated. 

  

Page 113



6.15 
 

 
  

2016/17 2017/18 2018/19 2019/20 2020/21 Total 

  £ £ £ £ £ £ 
Planned Maintenance 2,908,300 3,220,000 3,220,000 3,220,000 3,220,000 15,788,300 
Responsive Works 445,000 940,000 940,000 940,000 940,000 4,205,000 
Aids & Adaptations 435,670 300,000 300,000 300,000 300,000 1,685,670 
New Build Projects 194,000 142,000 301,050 454,000 454,000 1,545,050 
Commissioning Costs 155,000 155,000 155,000 155,000 155,000 775,000 
Total Programme 4,137,970 4,757,000 4,916,050 5,069,000 5,069,000 23,949,020 
             
HRA Contribution 1,580,970 2,676,000 2,757,640 3,004,000 3,065,000 13,083,610 
Major Repairs Reserve 1,550,000 1,550,000 1,550,000 1,550,000 1,550,000 7,750,000 
Capital Receipts 509,000 531,000 608,410 515,000 454,000 1,860,050 
Capital Investment Fund 498,000 - - - - 498,000 
Total Financing 4,137,970 4,757,000 4,916,050 5,069,000 5,069,000 23,949,020 
              
 
4.2.5. The capital projections above include a £547,600 reduction to the 2016/17 

programme relating to a transfer to revenue for specific items of expenditure 
which should be classified as revenue expenditure rather than capital as per 
accounting regulations (as reported to the HRA Member working group in 
September). This has also been applied to any planned expenditure in 
2017/18 – 2020/21 which should be classed as revenue. 

 
  Asset Management Plan (AMP) – General Fund 

 
4.2.6 It is essential that the Council maintains an asset base, which delivers the 

ambitions of the Corporate Plan – however, this needs to be affordable.  This 
is becoming increasingly difficult due to the age of a number of the Council’s 
key buildings and the shrinking amount of financial resources available to 
support service delivery. 

 
4.2.7 A stock condition survey has been undertaken on the Council’s property 

assets.  A report detailing the outcomes and actions emerging was presented 
to Executive in July 2016. This includes the potential capital and revenue 
financial implications of maintaining the Council’s current property assets over 
a 30-year period.   

 
4.2.8 The surveys have confirmed that a number of the Council’s operational assets 

are dated in appearance, have structural issues or urgent health and safety 
work requirements or the electrical and mechanical infrastructure require 
updating.  The investment required to ensure the assets remain fit for purpose 
is significant over the 30 year period and would consequently impact on future 
revenue budgets.   

 
4.2.9 Therefore, the report discusses the options to either reduce the amount of 

capital expenditure or reduce the impact on revenue of the necessary capital 
spending: 

 

Page 114



6.16 
 

• Asset rationalisation 
• Shared use of assets 
• Reduction in specification and functionality 
• Generate additional capital receipts 
• Identify grants to support investment 
• Generate additional revenue from asset holdings  

 
4.2.10 Additionally, it also recommended the review of: 
  

• Public conveniences and car parks provision, with a view to disposal of 
assets that are surplus to requirements. 

• Leisure asset portfolio in the context of the expiry of the existing leisure 
management contract with a view to reducing the on-going assets and 
operating costs 

• Operational depot asset portfolio in the context of a potential new 
operating model with a view to reducing overall costs 

• Strategic land holdings with a view to developing options to either 
generate additional capital receipts or opportunities to generate ongoing 
financial returns 

 
4.2.11 The current capital programme costs of the AMP include approved carry 

forwards from 2015/16, and the additional estimated costs of maintaining the 
asset portfolio in 2020/21. The 2017/18 – 2019/20 AMP remains as approved 
in February 2016 in this iteration. The current programme includes significant 
early investment in key public buildings: Pavilion Gardens, Buxton Town Hall 
and Glossop Halls  

 
4.2.12  In preparation for the MTFP to be presented in February, the Council will 

assess and confirm the approach for asset investment in key buildings over 
the period 2017/18 – 2020/21. Any positive revenue implications of the asset 
management plan, for example, reduced annual maintenance and utility costs 
due to fewer and/or more efficient buildings and income receipts from shared 
accommodation partners will be taken towards the efficiency programme. 

  
Asset Management Plan (AMP) - Housing 

 
4.2.13 The Executive has agreed to complete a full condition survey on the Council’s 

portfolio of housing properties by March 2019.  The last stock condition survey 
was undertaken in 2012 and was based on a 20% sample of properties.  It is 
recognised that reliable and up-to-date stock condition data is critical for 
investment planning and consequently it was agreed to undertake a phased 
prioritised approach to assessing the condition of the stock to validate the data 
currently held.  This will be based on property type and phased in the following 
way: 
• Phase 1 – Non Traditional properties (to be completed during 2016/17) 
• Phase 2 – Sheltered Accommodation (to be completed during 2016/17) 
• Phase 3 – Large town concentrations of stock (to be completed during 

2017/18) 
• Phase 4 – Rural Stock (to be completed by 2018/19) 

Page 115



6.17 
 

 
4.2.14 Stock condition requirements will then be considered in line with the 

affordability of the HRA Business Plan. The results of the stock condition 
surveys will emerge during 2017, which will then feed into the 2018/19-
2021/22 MTFP. The HRA capital programme proposed within this update is 
based on existing stock condition information.  The 2017/18 programme will 
be reviewed prior to the February report, using existing internal data and 
prioritising schemes pending the stock condition information being completed.     

 
Buxton Crescent 

 
4.2.15  The Buxton Crescent Hotel and Thermal Spa has made a step change since 

the last report given that both construction contracts have now started.  The 
smaller contract to refurbish the Pump Room is now virtually complete.  This 
will eventually become the hub for the proposed visitor centre.  The main 
contract to convert the Crescent and the Natural Baths into the hotel and spa 
is progressing well with a programmed completion in 2018. 
 

4.2.16 Funding arrangements are in place for the project.  It is, however, still 
necessary to identify the potential financial risks to the Council if the project 
failed to complete. The corresponding financial risks relate to mothballing 
costs and ongoing maintenance requirements of the building over a 5-year 
period (the estimated time to end the current project, procure a new partner, 
design and develop to the point of starting on site). Estimated costs are shown 
below: 

 

Costs 
HPBC Liability 

Cost over 5 
years 

 £ 
Mothballing costs (security, insurance, utilities) 257,500 
Work to the Nestle pipe* 200,000 
Maintenance Costs 1,600,000 
  
TOTAL 2,057,500 
  *Work to Nestle pipe, as part of phase one. The water pipe from the natural baths running to George 

Street is suspended on steel girders. This is a temporary measure pending phase 2 construction works. 
If the project was cancelled an immediate measure would be to relay the water pipe underground 

 
4.2.17  The above costs are not included in the MTFP at this stage, but flagged as a 

risk. 
 
  Housing Grants 

 
4.2.18. The Borough Council is the duty holder under the Housing Grants, 

Construction and Regeneration Act 1996 for the mandatory Disabled Facilities 
Grant and this status remains despite changes to funding arrangements. All 
eligible applicants are entitled to receive mandatory funding for certain major 
adaptations to their properties. The funding for these adaptations has 
previously been given directly to the Council but from 2015/16, the funding 
was incorporated into the Better Care Fund and paid to the County Council.  

Page 116



6.18 
 

 
4.2.19 The Better Care Fund is a single pooled fund for all health and social care 

provision and covers the whole range of services including public health, 
social care services and clinical commissioning groups. The 2015/16 provision 
for Disabled Facilities Grants was ring-fenced within the Better Care Fund, 
and was received from the County Council.  

 
4.2.20  It is not clear however what the level of funding or the payment mechanism 

might be for future years. The County Council has launched a review of DFG 
provision in partnership with the district authorities which intends to re-
engineer the delivery of adaptation services and this will subsequently inform 
the allocation of funding and the performance and delivery targets. There is a 
risk that High Peak will need to increase its level of funding contribution in 
future years depending on levels of demand and any revised funding 
regime.  - Further updates will be provided as this becomes clear. 

 
  ICT Strategy 
 

4.6.21. The framework for a new 3 year ICT Strategy was established in 2014/15.  
The key drivers of which are to support delivery of the Efficiency and 
Rationalisation Plan (£100,000 revenue saving targeted), provide the 
infrastructure to support joint working, support new ways of working and 
improve access to services for our customers. 

 
4.6.22. Implementation of the Strategy has commenced, involving discussions with 

service areas to ascertain requirements and with a view to finding an Alliance 
wide solution in regard to IT provision. The aim of which is to reduce the 
number of applications and software and consequently pressure on server 
space. The capital provision for this project has been reprofiled to account for 
the acceleration of the infrastructure and Microsoft compliancy phase of the 
project resulting in higher than originally anticipated expenditure in 2016/17.  
An additional £100,000 has been added to the ICT capital programme overall 
to account for an additional years expenditure.  

 
4.2.23  Capital investment is required to establish the infrastructure required to meet 

the key drivers. This in turn will identify the revenue consequences of capital 
purchases – increased costs including maintenance, updates and annual 
licence purchases, offset by savings resulting from better usage and 
consolidation of the Council's suite of systems. 

 
   Funding the Capital Programme 
 
4.2.24  The capital programme can be funded from a number of options which include 

external grants and contributions from third parties, comprising of Government 
and lottery funding streams; capital receipts from asset sales as part of the 
asset management plan and sale of council dwellings; earmarked revenue 
reserves and a planned annual contribution from the Housing Revenue 
Account to finance construction of and improvements to council dwellings. 
 

Page 117



6.19 
 

4.2.25  Borrowing is undertaken to fund the shortfall after the other capital resources 
have been used. The current programme includes estimates of external 
funding of £1.497m towards General Fund projects; capital receipts of 
£3.762m (£1.902m General Fund + £1.860m HRA); Housing Revenue 
Reserves of £3.629m are forecast to be applied in full in 2016/17 and a further 
£18.460m of Housing Revenue Reserves over the following four years 
(subject to review – see 4.3). Borrowing is the main funding option for the 
General Fund programme at £7.368m. The Treasury Management Strategy 
then considers whether this is funded externally or internally - both options 
have a consequence on revenue either through reduced investment income or 
increased external interest liability as highlighted in the table below. 

 
4.2.26  The capital receipts applied to the HRA include the one-for-one right-to-buy 

element used to fund capital expenditure on new housing properties.  Under 
Government guidelines, these receipts can only represent 30% of overall 
expenditure, with a further 70% being required to be allocated.  The current 
strategy is to fund this via a third party, i.e. a social housing landlord or 
developer, with the third party organisation providing the additional 70% 
expenditure. The HRA can also apply capital receipts which are not subject to 
the same restrictions to the overall capital programme.  A review will be 
undertaken prior to February as to the allocation of these receipts; whether to 
wait for the stock condition information or apply in the interim.    

 
4.2.27 There remains a balance of £100,000 within the general fund earmarked 

reserve established specifically to fund capital projects.  It is proposed to use 
this fund where an options appraisal on the acquisition of vehicles, plant and 
equipment has been carried out and suggests that the most financially viable 
option is to outright purchase.  Similarly, an increase in the contribution to 
capital is proposed where it is best value to do so for the HRA.       

 
  Revenue Consequences of the Capital Programme 
 

4.2.28 The capital investment proposals above will result in estimated revenue 
consequences as follows: 

 
 

Revenue Consequences 
 

 
2017/18 

 
2018/19 

 
2019/20 

 
2020/21 

 £ £ £ £ 
Borrowing Costs 27,180 52,910 57,450 39,790 
Other (Income)/Expenditure - - - - 
General Fund 27,180 52,910 57,450 39,790 
     
HRA contribution to Capital (68,570) 81,640 246,360 61,000 
Borrowing Costs (88,660) (124,120) (63,870) (35,600) 
Housing Revenue Account (157,230) (42,480) 182,490 25,400 
     
Total (130,050) 10,430 239,940 65,190 
      
 
 

Page 118



6.20 
 

4.3.  Housing Revenue Account review 
 
 The Reforms 

 
4.3.1. The Government announced in July 2015 far reaching legislative and financial 

changes for the social housing sector, which will have significant implications 
for High Peak Borough Council and in particular a negative impact on the 
Housing Revenue Account. 
 

4.3.2. The July 2015 Budget announcement included: 
 

• Social housing rents to reduce by 1% per annum from April 2016 for 4 
years. 

• Included a provision for high-income (£30k household income) tenants to 
be charged a market or near market rent (‘Pay to Stay’) with the additional 
rent raised by local authorities to be returned to the Treasury. 

• A review of lifetime tenancies in social housing to limit their use and 
ensure tenancies match household needs and make better use of the 
stock. 

 
4.3.3. In October, the Government outlined within the Housing Bill that local 

authorities will have to make a fixed payment to government each year, based 
on an estimate for the income from selling high-value vacant homes. The bill 
requires Councils to consider selling all high-value property as it becomes 
vacant.  There is no definition of high value at this stage, the Bill proposes that 
this will be done by ministers through regulation and for which it says could 
vary for different areas. 

 
  Impact on the HRA Income Streams 

 
4.3.4. The reductions in rental income have had a significant impact on the Council’s 

Housing Revenue Account (HRA) and the resources available to deliver 
services, property improvements and development plans. 
 

4.3.5. The announced reduction in rents by 1% per year for four years resulted in a 
decrease of £2.4m by 2019/20 (compared to the 3% increase the business 
plan was assuming)  

 
4.3.6. It has recently been announced that the proposed pay-to-stay scheme will not 

be mandatory for individual authorities to implement. At this stage there is no 
detail as to whether there will be any remaining obligations for the Council.  

 
  Impact on Development Plans 

4.3.7. The current HRA provides for:  
 
• An annual Repairs & Maintenance budget of £3 million; and 
• An annual capital programme of approximately £5 million the majority of 

which is financed directly from revenue 
 

Page 119



6.21 
 

4.3.8. The 30-year HRA business plan is based upon capital expenditure that is 
derived from the existing stock condition information.  The plan also currently 
makes provision to repay outstanding debt at £1.2 million per annum.   

 
4.3.9. The financial implications of the recent reforms have resulted in the need to 

fundamentally review all of the current assumptions. The current annual 
repairs and capital programme budget are not sustainable going forward as 
this level of expenditure would create an annual deficit, requiring reserves to 
be applied and in time creating a borrowing requirement which would exceed 
the debt cap. In addition there will be no headroom available for the 
development of new stock in the future.   

 
4.3.10. Therefore, a full stock condition survey has been commissioned to assess the 

level of expenditure required to maintain the housing stock over the life of the 
business plan.  The MTFP reflects the current repairs and capital programme 
budget, the 2017/18 budget allocation will be reviewed prior to February using 
existing sources of information and prioritising schemes, then stock condition 
information will feed into the 2018/19 budget setting process.       

 

  HRA Review 

4.3.11. The introduction of Housing Revenue Account (HRA) self-financing means 
that it is vital that local authorities have effective governance and financial 
management frameworks in place. In order to support local authorities in 
assessing and developing these frameworks, the Chartered Institute of Public 
Finance Accountancy and Chartered Institute of Housing have worked 
together to produce a voluntary code of practice for the sector. The principles 
and provisions of this voluntary code are intended to:  

 
• Assist housing authorities in ensuring effective governance, finance and 

business planning;   
• Provide transparency to tenants, members and officers on how the housing 

business is being managed. The code will give tenants and members a 
framework against which to hold the authority to account;   

• Allow housing authorities to assess where they may need further support 
and assistance. 

 
4.3.12. The Council has used the Code to formulate an agenda for the review and 

development of the HRA.  A member-working group has been established and 
has begun to review proposals for the devlopment of the HRA Business Plan. 

 
4.3.13. Given the significance of the financial position there has been an early focus 

on areas where reductions in financial provisions in the HRA can be made or 
additional income can be generated in order to ensure that the longer term 
financial position can be brought into balance.  

 
4.3.14. The HRA review schedule is illustrated below: 
  

Page 120



6.22 
 

 
Meeting 

Date 
Agenda Items Actions 

June 2016 Stock Condition • Full stock condition survey 
underway 

• Option to vary annual debt 
repayment – further 
comparative work to be 
carried out 

Financing Transactions 
Housing & Planning Bill 
Implications 

August 
2016 

Capital Programme • 2017/18 capital programme 
under review with schemes to 
be included on a priority basis 
pending stock data 

• Rent Policy currently being 
written, focus on additional 
income streams  

Rent Policy 
Carelink / Other Support 

October 
2016 

Lettings • Review of voids/tenancies 
underway to reduce loss of 
income and streamline 
processes 

• Options analysis for the 
operation of sheltered 
accommodation to ensure 
service is affordable 

Voids 
Sheltered Accommodation 

December 
2016 

Tenancy & Neighbourhood 
Management 

 

Repairs 
Other Policy Changes 

February 
2017 

Revised HRA Business 
Plan 

 

Tenant Engagement 
April 2017 Housing Need & Supply  

Future Development 
 

 
4.4.   Efficiency & Rationalisation Programme  

 
4.4.1. The current Efficiency and Rationalisation Strategy was approved by 

Members in April 2014, which identified a programme of £2.8million in savings 
to be made over the period 2014/15 – 2016/17, of which £300,000 relates to 
the HRA.   
 

4.4.2. In establishing the current Efficiency & Rationalisation plan, importance was 
placed on ensuring the programme of savings was well focussed and 
recognised the capacity constraints on the organisation following the 
departure of a significant number of staff under voluntary redundancy. 
Therefore, external challenge work was commissioned to assist in identifying 
areas which have the greatest potential for further savings. 

 

Page 121



6.23 
 

4.4.3. A number of principles were developed in order to ensure that the plans are 
focussed in the right areas and are deliverable. These are: 

 
• Service reviews will be completed on a structured basis  
• Individual service structures will be properly combined across the Alliance 
• There will be continued protection of front-line services 
• Non-priorities will be identified in discretionary services and targeted for 

savings if possible 
• Mandatory services will be developed to ensure that they are efficient when 

compared with the best local authorities 
• Transactional services to be delivered around the needs of customers and 

development of “channel shift”  
• There will be strong focus on corporate efficiencies e.g. procurement, asset 

management to minimise the impact on staffing levels  
 

4.4.4. After taking into account these principles a framework was developed to 
inform the finalisation of the Efficiency and Rationalisation Strategy. The 
programme is focused upon six areas: 

 

1. Enhancing Income and Improving Trading  
Focussed upon increasing the income generated from Council Services 
including, by identifying and generating new income streams, improving the 
effectiveness of services that compete with other service providers, and 
improving the yield from fees and charges through increased activity. 
 

2. Extending Shared Services 
Looking at new partners such as Staffordshire County Council, Peak National 
Park and other neighbouring Councils 
 

3. Corporate Efficiency Projects 
Targeting savings that do not directly impact on front line service provision 
including; implementation of the procurement strategy, further development of 
the Asset Management Plan, a review of administrative support, agreement of 
a longer term approach to workforce pay and benefits, a comprehensive review 
of the ICT strategy, finalisation of the current management review, more cost 
effective arrangements around utilisation of the third sector and development of 
alternative service delivery models. 

 

4. Service Reviews 
Structured and comprehensive review of all of the Council’s services – 
removing service silos in order to realise savings from new approaches to 
delivery including exploiting channel shift, combining similar functions such as 
enforcement, and taking a joined up approach to corporate support services.   

 
5. Innovation and Growth 
Creation of a Development Fund on an “invest to save” basis 
 

 

6. Housing Revenue Account 
           Saving from the integration of the housing management function 
 
 
 

Page 122



6.24 
 

4.4.5. The current profile of the financial savings proposed in the Strategy are 
summarised below (see ANNEX B for more detail on the current plan).  The 
below table illustrates progress to date and re-profiles the outstanding target 
efficiencies where required.  It also identifies new efficiencies required over 
the next four years. 

 
Efficiency Strategy 2014/15 2015/16 2016/17 2017/18 2018/19 2019/20 2020/21 TOTAL 

  £ £ £ £ £ £  £ 
ORIGINAL PROGRAMME: 1,078,560 1,061,530 659,910 - - -  2,800,000 

Enhancing Income & Improving Trading 93,560 141,530 120,910 - - -  356,000 

Extending Shared Services 25,000 50,000 50,000 - - -  125,000 

Corporate Efficiency Projects 510,000 540,000 334,000 - - -  1,384,000 

Service Reviews 150,000 230,000 105,000 - - -  485,000 

Innovation & Growth 50,000 50,000 50,000 - - -  150,000 

General Fund Efficiency Plan 828,560 1,011,530 659,910 - - -  2,500,000 

HRA Efficiency Plan 250,000 50,000 - - - -  300,000 

Total 1,078,560 1,061,530 659,910 - - -  2,800,000 

         REPROFILED PROGRAMME:         
Existing Programme - General Fund 482,980 361,330 1,655,690 - -   2,500,000 
Existing Programme - HRA 250,000 50,000 - - -   300,000 
         
Shortfall – General Fund* - - - 495,740 740,940 334,100 189,440 1,760,220 
Shortfall – HRA    522,320 715,870 1,008,920 1,322,160 3,569,270 
         
Total 732,980 411,330 1,655,690 1,018,060 1,456,810 1,343,020 1,511,600 8,129,490 
         *Incorporates the saving assumed from Pavilion Gardens to offset additional cost of capital as a result 

of increased expenditure on the Octagon works.   
 
4.4.6. £995,780 in unachieved efficiencies in 2014/15 and 2015/16 have been rolled 

forward into 2016/17. The shortfall is primarily as a consequence of the short-
term and one-off costs of the implementation of the service review process. The 
2015/16 shortfall was met by service underspends and additional income 
(partly by utilisation of the earmarked reserve set up specifically for this 
purpose). 
 

4.4.7. As the service review process has been completed (with the exception of some 
outstanding mini-reviews currently taking place within Housing and Benefits) 
the majority of the £485,000 targeted savings will be achieved in 2016/17.  
Additionally, £408,000 in Procurement related savings (reduced spend as a 
result of procurement activity being challenged/increased on contract spend 
etc) were identified as part of the 2016/17 budget setting process.  These will 
be offset against the efficiency programme in 2016/17. 
 

4.4.8. This would leave approximately £763,000 to be achieved – with focus then 
turning to other efficiency projects for example income generation, asset 
management, growth projects and further sharing of services to deliver the 
remaining savings.  A review of these remaining projects and the viability of the 
savings targets will be assessed prior to the February Budget and MTFP, with 
consideration to reprofiling or reallocation of efficiency targets. 

 

Page 123



6.25 
 

4.4.9. In addition to the existing efficiency programme, in order to balance the general 
fund budget in 2017/18, 2018/19, 2019/20 and 2020/21, there is a new savings 
requirement of £1,760,220.   

 
4.4.10. A proportion of this will potentially be met from the new localised Business 

Rates retention system (see paragraph 6.2). However there is uncertainly 
around what impact this will have on the Council at present and the new system 
is unlikely to be in place until 2019-20 / 2020-21.  There are also potential 
savings that will generate from the significant projects taking place over the life 
of the MTFP relating to Channel Shift, and the procurement and review of the 
current provision of Waste Collection, Leisure Centre Management and 
Facilities Management (see paragraph 4.7). 
 

4.4.11. There is also a saving requirement of £3,569,270 over the four years in respect 
of the HRA. This will be met from savings and additional income identified from 
the HRA review and service review outcomes. 
 

4.4.12. A further exercise reviewing the revenue underspends of recent years will also 
take place during the 2017/18 budget setting process. The review will identify 
areas, which have consistently underspent against the base budget, with a view 
to removing the excess provision. Any budget adjustments will be used to 
support the Efficiency & Rationalisation Strategy. 

 
4.5. Service Reviews  

 
4.5.1. In agreeing the Efficiency Strategy, members approved the principle of 

conducting a programme of service reviews. These reviews ensure the services 
provided by the Council can be operated with a reduced level of financial 
resources.  
 

4.5.2. The programme began during 2014/15, when all staff were given the 
opportunity to put forward their ideas on service improvement and efficiencies 
via ‘Hearts and Minds’ sessions.  The service reviews progressed in line with 
the SHAPE Review methodology and have now reached the implementation 
stage. 
 

4.5.3. A report was presented to Corporate Select in September 2015, which 
summarised the service review outcomes, the financial and staffing implications 
that result from the proposals, and details of the implementation process. 
 

4.5.4. The achievement of efficiency savings in respect of the service review process 
have been deferred as a result of the one off costs associated with 
implementation for example, the cost of redundancy, pay protection and 
temporary staff arrangements.  However, it is anticipated that the majority of the 
£485,000 targeted efficiency will be achieved during 2016/17 
 

4.5.5. The salary estimates are currently being updated in line with service review 
structures, the savings will then be realised against the Efficiency Programme 
and reported in the February MTFP and Quarter 3 financial update report.     
 

Page 124



6.26 
 

4.6. Member Priority Projects  
 

4.6.1. During the development of the Corporate Plan a number of priority actions have 
been identified and prioritised by members. These are as follows:  

 

 
 

Financial Implications 

Member Priority Projects (y/n) Firm - in 
plans 

Costs 
understood - 
not in plans 

Costs not 
known 

Leader       

Adopt an approved Local Plan which will be kept under review  Y    

Communicate more effectively with residents  N    
Review and improve our relationships with Strategic Partners  N    
Work with our Combined Authority partners and the Local 
Enterprise Partnership to bring funding to High Peak  Y    
Use our influence to secure better health and care services 
through commissioners and from providers  N    

Parks, Leisure & Recycling       

Establish a developer open space contributions plan   Y    
Work with local residents to improve our parks   N    
Take steps to reduce dog fouling and littering  Y    
Finance & Corporate Services       
Continually review and implement an efficiency and 
rationalisation programme   Y    

Improve customer service   Y    
Review car parking provision and extend resident concessionary 
parking   Y    

Tourism, Regeneration & Licensing       
Review TIC and tourism service   Y    
Together with partners work for the delivery of the Crescent 
development   Y    

Support the development of the Woods Mill area, Glossop Halls 
and Torr Vale Mill   Y    

Create an “Open for Business” environment in High Peak  N     

       
Housing       
Complete and implement a Housing Management and Revenue 
Plan  Y    

 
4.6.2. Any costs or revenue associated with these actions will need to be included in 

the MTFP. The impact of a number of them is already included in this iteration 
of the plan but additional work will need to be undertaken to develop a number 
of the actions further and at the same time identify any financial implications. 

 
 
 
 
 

Page 125



6.27 
 

4.7. Other Projects 
 

Channel Shift 
 
4.7.1. In addition to the above, the Council is progressing the ‘channel shift’ project, 

which focuses on changing the way in which our customers interact with the 
Council with the enhanced use of technology.  The aim of which is not only to 
achieve financial savings but also to improve the customer experience and 
streamline internal processes. 
 

4.7.2. This project will potentially impact on the capital programme (investment as part 
of the ICT Strategy) with the savings generated from the project covering the 
cost of borrowing and supporting the efficiency programme.   
 

4.7.3. The business case for this project has been developed, with a timeline for 
implementation in place. The first phase concentrates on the update of the 
website and the use of e-forms to channel applications for Housing Benefit and 
Council Tax discounts and exemptions, and the use of credit information to 
apply risk-based verification and assist with the review of eligibility for discounts 
and exemptions.    

   
 Significant Procurement Activity 
 
4.7.4. During the life of the MTFP, there will be a number of large scale procurement 

projects that will either be completed or the initial review work will be 
commenced.  These exercises will potentially have a significant financial impact 
on the Authority, and therefore further updates will be provided as the projects 
progress: 
 

• Waste and Streets Service Delivery - The Council is currently developing the 
business case for a joint delivery model for the provision of Waste and Street 
services.  The service is currently outsourced with the contract expiring during 
2017/18 -, whilst the Council’s Alliance partner Staffordshire Moorlands D.C. 
have an internally delivered service. Therefore, the two Authorities will be 
focusing on the delivery of a jointly operated service in order to avoid 
duplication and realise efficiencies. 
 

• Leisure Centre Operation - Both High Peak B.C. and Staffordshire Moorlands 
D.C. outsource the operation of Leisure Centres to a private sector contractor.   
Both contracts expire during 2018/19, therefore similar to the delivery of Waste 
and Streets, the Authorities will be looking to potentially work together on the 
future operation of the Leisure Centres.  Consideration will also be given to the 
future asset management costs of maintaining the buildings and the delivery 
models going forward in order to achieve value for money.  
 

• Asset Management Plan & Facilities Management - The Council has a joint 
contract with Staffordshire Moorlands D.C. for the facilities management of the 
buildings – currently undertaken by Derbyshire County Council.  The contract 
has delivered savings to each Authority and is due to expire at the end of 
2016/17.  The two Authorities, working together, will aim to drive further savings 
from the re-procurement of the contract.  

Page 126



6.28 
 

 
5. FINANCIAL FORECASTS 
 
5.1. Interest Rates  

 
5.1.1. The Bank of England Base Rate was cut from 0.50% to 0.25% following the 

Monetary Policy Committee (MPC) meeting of 4th August 2016. Latest interest 
rate forecasts (from the Council’s treasury advisors, Capita) include the 
likelihood that a further cut to near zero at 0.10% will take place if data comes 
in as forecast, but do not project the possibility of negative rates. 
 

5.1.2. The tentative forecast is for increases in Bank Rate in May 2018 to 0.25% and 
to 0.50% in May 2019, but these will very much depend on how strongly, and 
how soon, the UK economy makes a gradual recovery and so start a process 
of very gradual increases in Bank Rate over a prolonged period. The mix of 
extreme political and economic uncertainties over this time period continue to 
make it very likely that these forecasts will be subject to significant updating as 
events evolve. 
 

5.1.3. Borrowing commentary reports that yields are at historic lows and borrowing 
should be considered where appropriate to the strategy. The general 
expectation for an eventual trend of gently rising gilt yields and PWLB rates 
remains. 
 

5.1.4. Based on the current forecasts, changes in investment income and borrowing 
costs are highlighted below: 

 
 
 2017/18 2018/19 2019/20 2020//21 

 £ £ £ £ 
Changes in Investment Income 74,410 (19,060) (68,450) (68,410) 
Changes in Borrowing Costs (144,240) 74,960 10,420 57,950 

     
 
 
5.2. Inflationary Projections 

 
5.2.1. The Retail Price Index (RPI) and Consumer Price Index (CPI) 12 month rate, 

as at August 2016, stood at 1.8% and 0.6% respectively. Inflation forecasts 
are made reflecting the composition of the Council’s expenditure, resulting in 
an inflation rate specific to the Council. 
 

5.2.2. The MTFP presented to members in February 2016 was premised on inflation 
assumptions at that time. Those inflationary assumptions have now been 
rolled forward a further 12 months to incorporate the 2020/21 financial year 
and have been updated to reflect the latest available information from 
authoritative sources such as the Office for National Statistics (ONS). The 
additional costs to the Council arising from inflation are forecast in the table 
below. 

  

Page 127



6.29 
 

 
          

Inflationary Changes 2017/18 2018/19 2019/20 2020/21 
          
  £ £ £ £ 

Employee Costs 427,450 365,100 370,810 366,500 
Premises Costs 50,270 57,750 65,000 70,000 
Transport 1,540 3,850 8,680 8,800 
Supplies and Services 93,660 122,090 127,130 128,820 
In-Year Inflation Pressure 572,920 548,790 571,620 574,120 
          
General Fund 443,400 429,110 446,780 453,740 
Housing Revenue Account 129,520 119,680 124,840 120,380 
  572,920 548,790 571,620 574,120 

 
5.3. Budgetary Demand 

 
5.3.1. The Medium Term Financial Plan presented to Council in February 2016 

analysed and projected forward both income and expenditure.  This has been 
revised to reflect known increases and decreases in budgetary demand. 
 

5.3.2. The current known changes in budgetary demand are highlighted below:-  
 

Increased / (Reduced) Budget Demand 2017/18 2018/19 2019/20 2020/21 

  £ £ £ £ 

Cemetery wall and paths backlog maintenance (20,000) - - - 
HRA pension past service deficit costs (67,000) (67,000) (69,000) (70,000) 
Uniforms – Customer Services (cyclical) (2,500) 2,500 (2,500) 2,500 
Supported Housing – subsidy loss arising out of increase 75,000 - - - 
Pavilion Gardens – Octagon closure (50,000) (59,000) (59,000) - 
Internal Audit – 5 yearly external review (2,500) - - - 
MMI Second levy (funded from earmarked reserve) (61,700) - - - 
Pension Fund Deficit Repair – budget adjustment                          50,000 - - - 
Hathersage Pool – Access grant increase 2,220    
Building Control – service change 90,000 - - - 
Recharge to HRA re: Buxton Town Hall (50,000) - - - 
     
 Total – General Fund (36,480) (123,500) (130,500) (67,500) 
     
Major works transfer to revenue from capital* 300,000 - - - 
Survey and related minor works transfer to revenue 147,600 (147,600) - - 
Vacating of Furness Vale (90,310) - - - 
Reduction in mobile phone costs (15,410)    
Radon Monitoring Programme (funded by HRA savings) (149,760) - - - 
Recharge to HRA re: Buxton Town Hall 50,000 - - - 
     
Total – Housing Revenue Account 242,120 (147,600) - - 
        

*offset by reduction in revenue contribution to capital 

Page 128



6.30 
 

5.4. Budget Growth 
 

5.4.1. In previous years, few additions in respect of budget growth have been 
included in the MTFP. It was assumed in light of the financial pressures faced 
by the Council, that any local issues that necessitate budget growth will be 
financed by internal spending reductions elsewhere.  
 

5.4.2. No new items of budget growth have been included in this version of the 
Medium Term Financial Plan. 

 
5.5. Pensions 

 
5.5.1. The Derbyshire Pension Fund underwent a triennial actuarial valuation in 

2016 to determine the level of future contributions necessary to achieve a 
balanced position. The final outcome is expected later in November, 
whereupon contribution rates will be agreed covering the next 3 years 
commencing in 2017/18. 
 

5.5.2. At the last valuation, the Derbyshire Fund had a funding level (the ratio of 
assets to liabilities) of 82.5% and a scheme deficit of £663 million. The revised 
position, as at 2016, will be confirmed later in November 
 

5.5.3. The High Peak Borough Council portion of the Fund had a funding level of 
69% at the 2013 valuation and a deficit of £25.9 million. Since this valuation 
the Council has budgeted to make contributions into the Fund of £2.51 million 
in 2014/15, £2.61 million in 2015/16, and £2.67 million in 2016/17.  The 
updated position as at 31st March 2016 will again be confirmed later in 
November. 

 
5.5.4. The outcome of the 2016 revaluation will set contributions to be made in 

2017/18, 2018/19 and 2019/20. In anticipation of the outcome of the actuary’s 
revaluation; allowance for an increase in contributions of £375,000 has been 
included in the Medium Term Financial Plan to cover these years. 

 
5.5.5. In year 4 of the MTFP (2020/21) the contributions necessary will be 

determined by a further revaluation scheduled to take place in 2019. Provision 
for an increase in contributions of £125,000 has been included in this iteration. 

 
5.5.6. These additional pension costs are included in the employee inflation element 

of the Plan. 
 

5.6. Housing Revenue Account – Other Operating Expenditure  
 

5.6.1. There are a number of items that relate only to the HRA. They include some 
direct elements of income and expenditure as well as notional charges for 
asset depreciation and debt impairment. 
 

5.6.2. Increase in Other Operating Expenditure - The updated HRA plan provides for 
a number of changes to operating expenditure as set out in the table below: 

 

Page 129



6.31 
 

 

         
Expenditure / (Income) 2017/18 2018/19 2019/20 2020/21 

          
  £ £ £ £ 

Provision for Irrecoverable Debts (74,670) (2,180) 560 (1,320) 

Charges for Depreciation 118,000                    
-    

                   
-    

                      
-    

Interest Receipts 53,860 (13,450) (22,420) (22,420) 
Past Service Pension Deficit Contribution 67,000 67,000 69,000 70,000 
          
Increased / (Reduced) Other Operating 
Expenditure 164,190 51,370 47,140 46,260 

          
 

6.   FUNDING & INCOME GENERATION 
  

6.1. Council Tax 
 

6.1.1. The 2010 settlement heralded the introduction of 0% Council Tax increases, 
restricting the capacity of Local Authorities to raise council tax to meet budget 
pressures and cuts in Central Government funding. Government initially 
provided funding to mitigate the shortfall in local authority income between 
2011/12 and 2015/16. 
 

6.1.2. The Council has the capacity to vary Council Tax levels, following the abolition 
of capping.  However the Council’s ability to increase Council Tax by more 
than 1.99% is subject to referendum. In 2016/17 the Council raised the 
Council Tax applying a 1.9% increase. 

 
6.1.3. At this stage it is assumed the Authority will increase its share of Council Tax 

by 1.9% in each year of the 4 years covered by this Plan. 
 

6.1.4. Provision for tax base growth remains unchanged from the levels assumed in 
February. Further work will be carried out in the course of the next few months 
to recalculate likely changes in the tax base. Updated figures will be included 
in the February iteration of the MTFP..  

 
6.1.5. The table below sets out the additional yield from Council Tax as assumed in 

the Medium Term Financial Plan:  
 

Increased Council Tax Income 2017/18 2018/19 2019/20 2020/21 

 £ £ £ £ 
Revenue from increased Council Tax (100,140) (103,030) (105,960) (107,970) 
Revenue from Tax Base growth (51,800) (51,120) (50,070) (51,020) 
     
Total (151,940) (154,150) (156,030) (158,990) 
 
 
 
 

     
 
 
 

Page 130



6.32 
 

6.2.   Business Rates Retention  
 

6.2.1. The 2013/14 Local Government Finance Settlement saw the introduction of 
the new business rates retention system, replacing the previous system of 
financing with a system based on the retention of business rates.  
 

6.2.2. Under the current system, the Authority retains 40% of Business Rates less a 
tariff that is payable in to a pool of Derbyshire Authorities. This amount is then 
compared to a Funding Baseline (estimated at £2,209,510 for 2017/18): any 
amount in excess of this Baseline is subject to levy, or conversely if the 
amount of retained Business Rates is below this Baseline, the loss is capped 
by a safety net payment. The MTFP does not anticipate the Council falling 
below the Baseline. 

 
6.2.3. As part of the Derbyshire Pool, the levy is made to the Pool instead of Central 

Government. If the Council was not in the Derbyshire Pool it would have to 
pay 50p in the £1 to the Government as a levy, effectively limiting the income 
the Council can gain from business rates growth. However, as part of the 
Pool, the Council is able to retain some of this levy. Under the Pool 
agreement, this amount will depend on the amount all members of the Pool 
pay in at the end of the year, and the proportional success of the Council 
against its own baseline. 

 
6.2.4. In October 2015, the Government announced a forthcoming package of 

reforms to the Business Rates Retention System including a move to local 
government retaining 100% of the rates that they received with an end to 
RSG. 

 
6.2.5. In outline the proposals for reform are as follows:  
 

• Local authorities will retain 100% of BR to fund local spending on services;  
• The new system will be in place by the end of the current Parliament 
• Local authorities with be able to retain income from growth – i.e. there will 

be no levy;  
• The reform will be fiscally neutral and local authorities will have new 

responsibilities and / or central government grants will be phased out;  
• Local authorities will have the ability to reduce rates – there will be the 

ability to increase for combined authority mayors; and  
• The new system will retain a system of tariffs and top ups subject to a 

fundamental review of needs.  
 

6.2.6. In July 2016 the Department for Communities and Local Government (DCLG) 
published two consultation papers:  

 
• Self-sufficient local government: 100% BR Retention; and  
• BR Reform - Fair Funding Review: Call for evidence on Needs and 

Redistribution.  
 

6.2.7. The Council responded to the consultation documents, detail of which was 
reported to Executive on 22nd September 2016. 

Page 131



6.33 
 

 
6.2.8. There remains uncertainly surrounding how the new system will be phased in 

and in what form. Further updates will be presented as more information is 
released.  For the purpose of the MTFP, no financial assumptions have been 
included based on the proposed new system, these will be fed into the plans 
once we have more certainty around how the new system will operate. 

 
6.2.9. The MTFP anticipates that Business Rates retention will be above the 

baseline, but is somewhat suppressed due to the extension of reliefs including 
increased small business rate relief, multiplier cap relief, re-occupied long-
term empty property relief, and newly built empty relief.  To compensate for 
the loss of business rates income resulting from the reliefs, funding has to 
date  been made available to Councils under Section 31 of the Local 
Government Act 2003. The MTFP assumes both the extension of reliefs and 
Section 31 grants will continue. 

 
6.2.10. Changes in the level of the Council’s business rates will be impacted by a 

range of factors, including the Staffordshire Pool’s success in generating new 
and retaining existing business within its area. At this stage, predicted levels 
of business rates income are based on known and expected changes to the 
business rates listing.  

 

Business Rates Retention 2017/18 2018/19 2019/20 2020/21 

 £ £ £ £ 
In year:     
      Baseline Funding (2,209,510) (2,274,700) (2,347,400) (2,422,430) 
      Achievement against Baseline (223,830) (179,240) (120,250) (58,200) 
      Section 31 Grant (617,170) (628,510) (639,780) (651,230) 
 (3,050,510) (3,082,450) (3,107,430) (3,131,860) 
Change between years:     
      Business Rates retained  (178,748) (20,600) (13,710) (12,980) 
      Section 31 Grant (20,572) (11,340) (11,270) (11,450) 
 (199,320) (31,940) (24,980) (24,430) 
      
6.3. Collection Fund 

 
6.3.1. The Council maintains a Collection Fund to record the receipt of Council Tax 

and Business Rates and their distribution to precepting authorities. Any 
surplus or deficit generated is distributed or recovered from the preceptors in 
subsequent years. 
 

6.3.2. The collection fund assumptions regarding Council Tax remain unaltered from 
the previous version of the MTFP presented in February 2016. Further work 
will be carried out over the next few months to update these assumptions and 
revised figures will be included in the February 2017 MTFP. At this stage, it is 
expected that the High Peak’s share of a deficit, in respect of Council Tax, will 
be £1,030 in 2017/18. 

Page 132



6.34 
 

 
6.3.3. It is assumed that a surplus, after providing for appeals, of £80,410 will be 

distributed in 2017/18 in respect of retained Business Rates generated in the 
current and previous years. It is assumed the Business Rates element of the 
collection fund will break even in future years, leaving no surplus or deficit for 
distribution. 

 
6.3.4. These and future year movements are set out in the table below: 

 
 

Changes in Collection Fund Income 
 

 
2017/18 

 
2018/19 

 
2019/20 

 
2020/21 

 £ £ £ £ 
Council Tax  1,030 (1,330) (1,350) (1,350) 
Business Rates  (667,180) 80,410 - - 
     
Total (666,150) 79,080 (1,350) (1,350) 
     

 
6.4.   Income from Government Grants 
 
   Revenue Support Grant 
 
6.4.1. The current MTFP, reported to Council in February 2016, includes the phased 

elimination of Revenue Support Grant (RSG) announced by the Government 
in October 2015. 
 

6.4.2. This revision of the MTFP maintains the profile of RSG reduction proposed by 
the Government as part of the 4 year settlement in February 2016. Reductions 
of £544,480 (33%), £334,340 (21%) and £245,760 (15%) in 2017/18, 2018/19 
and 2019/20 respectively are included. This results in no RSG being included 
in the Authority’s funding by 2019/20. 

 
6.4.3. Local Authorities were required to submit an efficiency plan to Government by 

14th October 2016 if they wanted to accept the 4 year settlement.  The plan 
should set out what the Council intends to do in order to address the 
challenge of financial sustainability.  If the four-year offer is not accepted the 
Council would be subject to the existing annual process for determining the 
local government finance settlement. Allocations could be subject to additional 
reductions dependent on the fiscal climate and the need to make further 
savings to reduce the deficit.  

 
6.4.4. The Council accepted the 4 year settlement and submitted an efficiency plan – 

this is attached as ANNEX E. 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 133



6.35 
 

  New Homes Bonus 
 

6.4.5. New Homes Bonus (NHB) is aimed at encouraging local authorities to grant 
planning permission for the building of new houses, in return for additional 
revenue. 
 

6.4.6. Consultation on the future format of New Homes Bonus was carried out earlier 
in the year with a closing date of March 2016. Details on the outcome have yet 
to emerge, but proposed changes being consulted  on included  the following:- 

 
• Proposals for reductions in the number of years for which the Bonus is paid 

from the current 6 years to 4 years;  
• Withholding the Bonus from areas where an authority does not have a Local 

Plan in place;  
• Abating the Bonus in circumstances where planning permission for a new 

development has only been granted on appeal;  
• Potentially adjusting the Bonus to reflect estimates of deadweight (expected 

development) 
 

6.4.7. New Homes Bonus continues to represent a significant element of the 
Authority’s funding. Historically, the Council has been awarded £0 (2011/12), 
£147,410 (2012/13), £170,950 (2013/14), £132,600 (2014/15), £159,360 
(2015/16) and £163,000 (2016/17) in New Homes Bonus.  
 

6.4.8. The changes are proposed for 2017/18 onwards and would have a significant 
impact on the amount of grant received by the Authority. The MTFP presented 
in February 2016, assumed the scheme would reduce to a 4 year format with 
effect from 2018/19 and included the financial consequences of this change. 

 
6.4.9. This MTFP brings forward the impact of this change to 2017/18, but in line 

with the consultation, assumes that the reduction would be to a 5 year scheme 
initially, followed by a change to a 4 year format in 2018/19. 

 
6.4.10. New Homes Bonus receipts of £104,000 have been anticipated in the MTFP 

for 2017/18; 2018/19; 2019/20 and 2020/21. Further liaison with Regeneration 
will take place to ensure the forecasts included in the MTFP are as robust as 
possible, with an update included in February. 

 
6.4.11. The building of new homes also has the effect of generating additional 

revenue from an increase in the council tax base. However, increased costs 
are also incurred in servicing the needs of the additional properties. 

 
  Local Council Tax Support Scheme 

 
6.4.12. The Council operates a scheme whereby funding received from central 

Government in respect of Local Council Tax Support is passed onto the 
parishes by means of an annual grant. The allocation of this grant is based on 
the eligibility of parish residents for council tax discounts.  
 

Page 134



6.36 
 

6.4.13. The level of resources made available for this grant has remained constant in 
spite of reductions in overall Government funding. The MTFP assumes that 
this approach will continue. This comes at a cost to the Council, which in 
2017/18 equates to £16,930. 

 
  Summary of Income from Government Grants 

 
6.4.14. The table below summarises the assumed level of and movement in 

Government funding:  
 

Government Grant 2014/15 
(baseline) 

2015/16 
(actual) 

2016/17 
(actual) 

2017/18 
(forecast) 

2018/19 
(forecast) 

2019/20 
(forecast) 

2020/21 
(forecast) 

  £ £ £ £ £ £ £ 
Revenue Support 
Grant 

(2,371,010) 738,550 507,880 544,480 334,340 245,760 - 

Council Tax Freeze (113,630) (62,040) 175,670 - - - - 
New Homes Bonus (450,960) (159,360) (163,000) 43,050 199,190 55,000 58,640 
        
Change in Govt 
Funding  

(2,935,600) 517,150 520,550 587,530 533,530 300,760 58,640 

 
6.5.  Fees and Charges 

 
 General Fees and Charges 

 
6.5.1. Charging for local services makes a significant contribution to the Council’s 

finances. The Council also uses charging to influence individual choices and 
behaviour, and to bring other benefits to local communities.  The Council’s 
Charging Policy sets out the following principles for establishing the level of 
fees and charges:   

 
• The cost of providing services should be fully met by income 
• There is a standard approach to concessions for those on low incomes 
• Where a subsidy is agreed, this should be used to support the 

development of Council services in accordance with priorities 
• Subsidies should be reconfirmed annually 

 
6.5.2. The annual revision of the Council’s fees and charges will take place over the 

next few months, which will also incorporate some of the work undertaken as 
part of the Income Generation project.  The outcome of which will be reported 
in February. 

 
6.5.3. The Medium Term Financial Plan currently projects that the Council will 

increase fees and charges (and other income) broadly in line with inflation.  
However, it is also recognised that certain income streams (such as car 
parking, planning receipts) may not increase each year and that other income 
streams (such as grants and rental income) are fixed or subject to periodic 
review. 

Page 135



6.37 
 

 
6.5.4. The projected revenue from increased fees and charges (and other income) is 

summarised in the table below: 
 

Increased Fees and Changes 2017/18 2018/19 2019/20 2020/21 

 £ £ £ £ 
Revenue from increased Fees and Charges (100,000) (100,000) (100,000) (100,000) 
     
Total (100,000) (100,000) (100,000) (100,000) 
     
  
   Housing Revenue Account – Rent Charges  
 
6.5.5. As detailed in section 4.3, the Government announced in July 2015 far 

reaching legislative and financial changes for the social housing sector, the 
most significant financially being the announcement to reduce by 1% per 
annum from April 2016 for 4 years. 
 

6.5.6. Therefore, the HRA Plan projects an average rent decrease on dwellings 
1.0% in 2017/18 – 2019/20, with a 1.5% increase assumed from 2020/21.  It is 
also assumes that ‘Other Charges’, including garages and sheltered housing 
service, will increase in 2017/18.  However, the rent policy review currently 
being undertaken will potentially update these assumptions and will feed into 
the February MTFP.    

 
 

Reduced Rental Income 
 

2017/18 
 

 
2018/19 

 

 
2019/20* 

 

 
2020/21 

 
 £ £ £ £ 
Reduced revenue from Rental Income and 
Other Charges 143,720 212,580 (61,420) 121,200 

     
*53 week rent year 

 
 
7. RISKS, CONTINGENCIES & USE OF RESERVES 

 
7.1. Risks and Contingencies 

 
7.1.1. The early identification and management of risks is critical to the Medium 

Term Financial Planning process. Risks to the MTFP are assessed, mitigated 
and actively managed to ensure that the Council delivers its services 
effectively within the funding at its disposal. The principal risks to the Medium 
Term Financial Plan are summarised in ANNEX C. 
 

7.1.2. The table below highlights specific financial risks that are embedded within 
this Medium Term Financial Plan:  

 
 

Page 136



6.38 
 

 
Revenue Risks 

 
Capital Risks 

 

• Inflationary assumptions 
• Interest rates 
• Housing benefits 
• Fees and charges 
• Universal Credit 
• Business Rates  
• Council Tax collection 
• Housing Rent levels (HRA 

affordability) 
• Government grants 
• Financial benefits from partnerships 

/ shared services 
• Pension costs 
• Outsourced waste contract 
• Outsourced leisure contract 

• Interest rates  
• External funding 
• Capital receipts 
• Capacity to deliver capital 

programme 
• Project overspend 
• Project overrun 
• External factors (e.g. planning 

objections, judicial reviews etc. 
leading to project delay) 

• Housing finance  
• Weather  
 

 
 
7.2.   Contingencies 

 
7.2.1. The Medium Term Financial Plan is underpinned by a number of assumptions. 

These assumptions have been made in the light of currently available 
information. New information, when it emerges, may require the Council to 
alter its assumptions with a consequential effect on the Council’s financial 
position. 
 

7.2.2. Key risk areas will be closely monitored and reviewed on an ongoing basis 
and remedial action taken.  Members will receive quarterly updates on 
performance against the budget. The Council will carry adequate reserves as 
a contingency against risks that cannot be fully mitigated. 

 
7.2.3. The Council carries reserves as a contingency for situations where risks 

cannot be fully mitigated. Section 25 of the Local Government Act 2003 
requires the Chief Finance Officer (CFO) to report on the robustness of the 
estimates included in the budget and the adequacy of the reserves that the 
budget provides. The Council is currently required to hold a general 
(contingency) reserve of £1,300,000 to meet unforeseen expenditure. 

 
7.3.   Use of Reserves and Balances    

 
  General Fund Reserves and Balances 
 

7.3.1. The February Medium Term Financial Plan included a £68,250 contribution 
from General Fund Reserves in 2016/17. This reflected usage of the Section 
106 (Commuted Sum) Reserve (£6,550) and usage of the Insurance Fund to 
meet the costs of the Council’s obligations under the Municipal Mutual 
Insurance (MMI) scheme of arrangement (£61,700). The MMI obligation is a 
one-off payment, at this stage, affecting 2016/17 only. The level of Section 
106 reserve usage is assumed to continue throughout the life of this Plan.  

Page 137



6.39 
 

 
7.3.2. The February MTFP also included a contribution of £627,650 from General 

Fund contingency reserve in 2016/17, made possible by the anticipated levels 
of Business Rates Retention. 

 
7.3.3. At this stage no movement to or from balances has been included in the 

financial projections for 2017/18, 2018/19, 2019/20 and 2020/21 apart from 
the £26,200 which is planned to be drawn from the S106 reserve over the 4 
years. This position will be reviewed in preparation for the February iteration of 
the MTFP. 

 
  HRA Reserves and Balances 

 
7.3.4. The HRA balance is made up of surpluses that have accumulated over a 

number of years.  The Council retains a minimum of £1 million (approximately 
£250 per property) in order to cover unexpected events that could - if realised 
– trigger financial pressures. 
 

7.3.5. Due to the strict ring-fencing rules that apply to the HRA, any funds set aside 
form part of HRA reserves. The table below summarises the projected HRA 
reserves position for the duration of this MTFP. 

 
• HRA Working Balance – this reserve is the excess of income after 

expenditure in any given year and is set aside to provide for capital 
expenditure demands in the future and to provide a contingency against 
unforeseen costs. 

• Housing Reform / contingency reserve – this reserve was set aside to fund 
potential additional unforeseen costs of housing reform and self-financing.  

• Stock Condition Reserve – this reserve has been set aside to fund the cost 
of providing a stock condition survey. 

• Major Void Reserve – this reserve is a contingency against the costs of 
Void properties requiring external or structural major works. 

• Capital Investment Fund – this reserve is used to smooth the cost of 
borrowing required to fund any capital expenditure.   

  2016/17 2017/18 2018/19 2019/20 2020/21 
  £ £ £ £ £ 
HRA Reserves Brought Forward 7,490,742 7,849,005 7,326,685 6,610,815 5,601,895 
Surplus/(Loss) for the year  260,263 (522,320) (715,870) (1,008,920) (1,322,160) 
Transfers to / from reserves 98,000 - - - - 

HRA Working Balance 7,849,005 7,326,685 6,610,815 5,601,895 4,279,735 
Housing Reform / Contingency 
Reserves 457,560 457,560 457,560 457,560 457,560 

Stock Condition Reserve 300,000 300,000 300,000 300,000 300,000 
Major Void Reserve 100,000 100,000 100,000 100,000 100,000 

Total Working Balance carried forward 8,706,565 8,184,245 7,468,375 6,459,455 5,137,295 
Capital Investment Fund carried forward  446,872     446,872       446,872       446,872       446,872  
Total HRA Reserves carried forward 9,153,437 8,631,117 7,915,247 6,906,327 5,584,167 

 

Page 138



6.40 
 

7.3.6. It can be seen from the table above that the HRA balance is projected to 
exceed its £1 million contingency minimum over the next four years.  
However, due to the 1% reduction in rental income per annum over the next 
four years, the HRA balances are significantly reducing based on current 
expenditure assumptions.   

 
8.   MTFP REVENUE POSITION 

 
8.1.   General Fund Revenue Position 

 
8.1.1. The medium term General Fund revenue position is as set out in the table 

below: 
 

          
Summary Revenue Position 2017/18 2018/19 2019/20 2020/21 

          
  £ £ £ £ 

Revenue Consequences of Capital Spend (section 4.2) 27,180 
        

52,910      57,450 39,790 

Interest Rate Changes (section 5.1)     74,410 
    

(19,060)    (68,450) (68,410) 

Borrowing Costs (section 5.1) 
    

(144,240)      74,960      10,420 57,950 

Inflation Pressures (section 5.2) 
     

443,400 
     

429,110 
    

446,780 453,740 

Increased / (Reduced) Budget Demand (section 5.3)    (36,480) 
   

(123,500) 
   

(130,500) (67,500) 
     
Budget Growth (section 5.4) - - - - 

Increased Council Tax Income (section 6.1) 
   

(151,940) 
   

(154,150) 
  

(156,030) (158,990) 

Business Rates Retention (section 6.2) 
           

(199,320) 
    

(31,940)    (24,980) (24,430) 

Changes in Collection Fund (section 6.3) 
   

(666,150) 
      

79,080      (1,350) (1,350) 

Reduction in Government Grant (section 6.4) 
     

587,530 
     

533,530 
    

300,760 58,640 

Additional Fees and Charges (section 6.5) 
   

(100,000) 
   

(100,000) 
  

(100,000) (100,000) 

Contribution to Reserves & Balances (section 7) 
     

689,350               - - - 
         
In Year Change in Position 523,740 740,940 334,100 189,440 
     
Efficiency & Rationalisation Plan (section 4.3) (28,000)    
Shortfall to be Identified (Section 4.3)     
         
Budget (Surplus) / Deficit 495,740 740,940 334,100 189,440 
Cumulative (Surplus) / Deficit 495,740 1,236,680 1,570,780 1,760,220 

 
8.1.2. Annex D shows the projected General Fund revenue position in detail. 

 
 
 

Page 139



6.41 
 

8.2.   Housing Revenue Account Revenue Position 
 

8.2.1. The medium term Housing Revenue Account revenue position is as set out in 
the table below. 
 

 

Summary Revenue Position 2017/18 2018/19 2019/20 2020/21 
  £ £ £ £ 

Budget deficit brought forward                   -    522,320 715,870 1,008,920 
     
Revenue consequence of Capital spend (section 4.2) (157,230) (42,480) 182,490 25,400 
     
Inflation pressures (section 5.2) 129,520 119,680 124,840 120,380 
     
Increased / reduced budget demand  (section 5.3) 242,120 (147,600)               -                 -    
     
Increased / reduced budget growth  (section 5.4)                  -    -   -  - 
     
Increase in Other Operating Expenditure (section 
5.6) 164,190 51,370 47,140 46,260 

     
Reduction in Rent and Other Charges  (section 6.5) 143,720 212,580 (61,420) 121,200 
         
In Year Change in Position 522,320 715,870 1,008,920 1,322,160 
     
Budget (Surplus) / Deficit 522,320 1,238,190 2,247,110 3,569,270 
     

 
8.2.2. Annex D shows the projected Housing Revenue Account revenue position in 

detail. 
 

9.   CONSULTATION 
 

9.1. The Council is committed to consulting with residents and other stakeholders 
to help inform the budget setting process and spending priorities/non-priorities. 
A variety of techniques have been used and the approaches have been 
iterative, building year on year on what has gone before. The Council already 
holds comprehensive information gathered about residents’ spending priorities. 
Much of this information was gathered in times of rising expenditure. The 
financial challenges for the Council are now very different.  
 

9.2. The consultation process for 2017/18 will be undertaken via an online 
communication available on the Council’s website, which summarises the 
financial challenges and invites comment on the plan.   There will also be 
reference included within the next e-newsletter issued by Regeneration to local 
businesses.  There will also be tenant consultation undertaken in respect of 
changes to the Rent Policy. 

 
9.3. It will be particularly important that the Council, as it makes difficult budgetary 

decisions, is able to evidence that it has considered the impact of its decisions 
on groups with ‘protected characteristics’. 

Page 140



6.42 
 

 
9.4. Going forward, the Council will be developing a timetable of consultation, 

which will focus on specific emerging issues that will potentially have a 
significant impact on the Council’s finances over the medium term. 

 

Page 141



6.43 
 

ANNEX A 
 

Proposed Capital Projections (2016/17 to 2020/21) – General Fund  
 

 

Capital Schemes 2016/17 2017/18 2018/19 2019/20 2020/21 Total 
  £ £ £ £ £ £ 

Asset Management Plan(AMP)             

Council Offices/Public Buildings  
 

1,442,560  
 

1,696,500  
 

2,449,000  
    

454,000  
    

129,870   6,171,930  

Car Parks  
    

135,000  
    

135,000  
    

150,000  
    

350,000              -        770,000  

Infrastructure         1,690  
      

18,960  
    

271,130  
    

300,000  
    

125,000      716,780  

Leisure Centres         2,940  
    

365,000  
    

100,000              -                -        467,940  

  1,582,190 2,215,460 2,970,130 1,104,000 
    

254,870  8,126,650 

              

Affordable Housing Projects 
    

241,960              -                -                -                -        241,960  

              

Private Sector Housing Grants 438,840 238,000 238,000 238,000 
    

238,000  1,390,840 
              
ICT 318,000 50,000 50,000 

      
50,000  

      
41,520  509,520 

Other Schemes              

Play Facilities 
    

110,370  
      

10,000              -                -                -        120,370  

Country Parks & Allotments 
    

100,550              -                -                -                -        100,550  

Conservation/Heritage 54,650 45,000 
      

45,000  
      

45,000  
      

45,000      234,650  

Market Town Regeneration  161,060 
    

199,130              -                -                -        360,190  

  426,630 254,130 
      

45,000  
      

45,000  
      

45,000  815,760 

              

Total Programme  3,007,620 2,757,590 3,303,130 1,437,000 579,390 11,084,730 

Funding of Programme              

External Contributions 544,880 238,000 238,000 238,000 
    

238,000  1,496,880 

Planning Obligations 
    

308,080  
      

10,000              -                -                -    318,080 

Capital Receipts 
    

679,000  
    

138,000  
    

845,000  
    

240,000              -    1,902,000 

Borrowing  1,475,660 2,371,590 2,220,130 959,000 
    

341,390  7,367,770 

  3,007,620 2,757,590 3,303,130 1,437,000 579,390 11,084,730 
 

Page 142



6.44 
 

ANNEX A 
 

Proposed Capital Projections (2016/17 to 2020/21) – Council Dwellings (HRA) 
 

Capital Schemes  2016/17 2017/18 2018/19 2019/20 2020/21 Total 
  £ £ £ £ £ £ 
ASSET MANAGEMENT WORKS:            
Roofing & External Works 672,280 475,000 475,000 475,000 475,000 2,572,280 
Kitchens Programme 233,670 290,000 290,000 290,000 290,000 1,393,670 
Bathroom Programme 77,240 580,000 580,000 580,000 580,000 2,397,240 
Central Heating Programme 987,180 605,000 605,000 605,000 605,000 3,407,180 
Electrical Works 401,610 165,000 165,000 165,000 165,000 1,061,610 
Health & Safety Works 132,820 150,000 150,000 150,000 150,000 732,820 
Aids & Adaptations  435,670 300,000 300,000 300,000 300,000 1,635,670 
HRA Shop Works 76,000             -                -                -                -    76,000 
Sheltered Schemes Various Works 132,500             -                -                -                -    132,500 
External & Structural Works 70,000             -                -                -                -    70,000 
General Insulation Works           -    75,000 75,000 75,000 75,000 300,000 
Replacement Windows & Doors           -    550,000 550,000 550,000 550,000 2,200,000 
Work to Communal Areas           -    150,000 150,000 150,000 150,000 600,000 
REPAIRS TEAM CAPITAL WORKS             
Void Rewires  35,000 35,000 35,000 35,000 35,000 175,000 
Void Kitchens  350,000 350,000 350,000 350,000 350,000 1,750,000 
Void Bathrooms  60,000 60,000 60,000 60,000 60,000 300,000 
Void Central Heating           -    495,000 495,000 495,000 495,000 1,980,000 
OTHER CAPITAL WORKS:            
Professional Fees 125,000 180,000 180,000 180,000 180,000 845,000 
Commissioning Costs 155,000 155,000 155,000 155,000 155,000 775,000 
New Build Project 194,000 142,000 301,050 454,000 454,000 1,545,050 

  4,137,970 4,757,000 4,916,050 5,069,000 5,069,000 23,949,020 
Funding:              
Major Repairs Reserve 1,550,000 1,550,000 1,550,000 1,550,000 1,550,000 7,750,000 
Capital Receipts 509,000 531,000 608,410 515,000 454,000 2,617,410 
HRA Contribution 1,580,970 2,676,000 2,757,640 3,004,000 3,065,000 13,083,610 
Capital Investment Fund 498,000           -              -                -                -    498,000 
  4,137,970 4,757,000 4,916,050 5,069,000 5,069,000 23,949,020 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

Page 143



6.45 
 

 ANNEX B 
 

Efficiency and Rationalisation Strategy (April 2014) 
 

Efficiency Strategy 2014/15 2015/16 2016/17 TOTAL 
  £ £ £ £ 
ENHANCING INCOME & IMPROVING TRADING         
Income Generation 18,000 75,000 57,000 150,000 
Trading Effectiveness 50,000 50,000 50,000 150,000 
Improving Yield from Fees and Charges 25,560 16,530 13,910 56,000 
  93,560 141,530 120,910 356,000 
EXTENDING SHARED SERVICES         
Further Sharing with Local Authorities & Partners 25,000 50,000 50,000 125,000 
  25,000 50,000 50,000 125,000 
CORPORATE EFFICIENCY PROJECTS         
Procurement 160,000 200,000 90,000 450,000 
Asset Management 130,000 130,000 125,000 385,000 
Workforce Planning, Pay & Other Benefits 10,000 20,000 20,000 50,000 
Administration 20,000 30,000 - 50,000 
ICT Strategy 20,000 50,000 30,000 100,000 
Management Savings 100,000 - - 100,000 
Third Sector Commissioning - 20,000 30,000 50,000 
Development of Trusts / Social Enterprises 70,000 60,000 20,000 150,000 
Development of Alternative Service Delivery Models - 30,000 19,000 49,000 
  510,000 540,000 334,000 1,384,000 
SERVICE REVIEWS         
Customer Services 30,000 65,000 40,000 135,000 
Regulatory Services 40,000 75,000 35,000 150,000 
Operational Services 30,000 40,000 30,000 100,000 
Corporate Services 50,000 50,000 - 100,000 
  150,000 230,000 105,000 485,000 
INNOVATION & GROWTH         
Growth Fund 50,000 50,000 50,000 150,000 
  50,000 50,000 50,000 150,000 
HOUSING REVENUE ACCOUNT     
 HRA  250,000 50,000   -  300,000 
 250,000 50,000 - 300,000 
     
TOTAL 1,078,560 1,061,530 659,910 2,800,000 
          

 

Page 144



6.46 
 

ANNEX C 
 

Medium Term Financial Plan – Principal Risks 
 
Risk Category Risk Mitigation and Controls 

 
Financial 
Implications 

 
Robustness of financial 
assumptions within Efficiency 
and Rationalisation Strategy 
 

 
Structured project management 
arrangements have been put in place with 
detailed business cases for each initiative – 
these will be strengthened in the service 
review process 
 

 
Financial 
Implications 

 
Additional financial pressures 
emerge – cost & income  

 
The strategy is kept under constant review 
and adjustments will be made where 
necessary 
 

 
Service 
Continuity 

 
Interruptions to key services or 
performance standards 
 

 
Resource implications and impact are 
identified as part of the business case 
process. Service continuity and 
maintenance of standards of service are 
key requirements of any new proposals 
 

 
Corporate 
Governance 

 
Maintaining stakeholder 
confidence; lack of clarity on 
accountability 

 
Ongoing review of standards of internal 
control (e.g. Financial Procedure Rules 
reviewed and updated). Internal Audit Plan 
will be reviewed to account for the new 
approach proposed in the efficiency & 
Rationalisation Strategy 
 

 
Management of 
Change 

 
Management of corporate and 
local, cultural change; 
behavioural risks; residual 
effects of aggregation; 
proposed changes to 
organisational structure, roles 
& responsibilities 
 

 
Progress with achievement of aims will be 
monitored through an effective performance 
management structure. Investment has 
been made in a new approach to 
Organisational Development. 
 

 
People Risks 

 
Impact of cultural changes; 
assessment of skills; 
recruitment & retention; 
capacity issues 
 

 
Continuing communications process for the 
delivery of transformation programme 
 

 
Key Projects & 
Partnerships 

 
Managing changes to shared 
service delivery arrangements 
 

 
The project management methodology 
provides for an adequate transition where 
there are changes in service delivery 
   

Page 145



6.47 
 

Risk Category Risk Mitigation and Controls 
 
Performance 
Management 

 
Adequacy of framework to 
monitor transition 

 
Risk management processes are 
embedded 
 

 
Reputation and 
Relationship 
Risks 
 

 
Maintaining existing partner 
confidence 

 
Continuing communications process for the 
delivery of transformation programme 
 

 
Programme 
Delivery 

 
Delays in implementation of 
efficiency savings 

 
Effective governance arrangements in place 
to monitor plans.  
 
Executive Directors and Senior Managers 
own delivery of efficiencies.  
 
Executive Director (Transformation) 
appointed as programme director.  
 

 
Programme 
Delivery 

 
A number of the efficiency / 
rationalisation initiatives are 
not achieved 

 
Structured project management approach is 
in place for delivery including effective 
exception reporting 
 
The strategy is kept under constant review 
 
Identification of further efficiency / 
rationalisation opportunities through 
benchmarking / effective member working 
groups 
   

 
Political Support 

 
Lack of Members support for 
Plan. 

 
Regular reporting and member briefings 
including effective scrutiny arrangements 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 146



6.48 
 

ANNEX D 
 

Proposed Revenue Projections (2017/18 to 2020/21) – General Fund 
 

Budget Heading 
2017/18 

Projection 
2018/19 

Projection 
2019/20  

Projection 
2020/21  

Projection 
  £ £ £ £ 
Employees 12,260,830 12,625,930 12,996,740 13,363,240 
Premises 3,672,960 3,583,110 3,648,110 3,718,110 
Transport 694,690 698,540 707,220 716,020 
Supplies & Services 9,929,330 10,053,920 10,178,550 10,309,870 
Benefits          82,460          82,460          82,460         82,460 
Borrowing 1,430,910 1,558,780 1,626,650 1,724,390 
Parish Grant re Council Tax Support 51,320 51,320 51,320 51,320 
Financing Costs 191,000 191,000 191,000 191,000 
          
Total Expenditure 28,313,500 28,845,060 29,482,050 30,156,410 
          

Fees and Charges / Other Income 
 

(11,084,340) 
 

(11,310,340) 
 

(11,538,340) (11,708,340) 

Interest Receipts         (56,250)        (75,310) 
      

(143,760)      (212,170) 

HRA Recharges 
   

(6,519,460)   (6,491,540) 
   

(6,616,380)   (6,736,760) 

Capital Recharges 
      

(231,240)      (231,240) 
      

(231,240)      (231,240) 
          
Net Expenditure 10,422,210 10,736,630 10,952,330 11,267,900 
          

Council Tax 
   

(5,422,460)   (5,576,610) 
   

(5,732,640)   (5,891,630) 
Council Tax - Compensation Grant                  0                  0                  0                 0 

Revenue Support Grant 
      

(580,100)      (245,760)                  0                 0 

Business Rates Retention 
   

(3,050,510)   (3,082,450) 
   

(3,107,430)   (3,131,860) 

New Homes Bonus 
      

(730,270)      (531,080) 
      

(476,080)      (417,440) 
Contribution to / (use of) Reserves          (6,550)          (6,550)          (6,550)         (6,550) 

Collection Fund 
      

(136,580)        (57,500)        (58,850)       (60,200) 
          

Total Financing 
   

(9,926,470)   (9,499,950) 
   

(9,381,550)   (9,507,680) 
          

Cumulative Deficit / (Surplus) 
        

495,740     1,236,680 
     

1,570,780     1,760,220 
          

In-Year Deficit / (Surplus) 
        

495,740        740,940 
        

334,100        189,440 
          

 

Page 147



6.49 
 

ANNEX D 
 
 

Proposed Revenue Projections (2017/18 to 2020/21) – Housing Revenue Account 
 

Budget Heading 
2017/18 

Projection 
2018/19  

Projection 
2019/20  

Projection 
2020/21  

Projection 
  £ £ £ £ 
 
Repairs & Maintenance  3,788,520 3,717,400 3,797,610 3,876,610 
Supervision & Management  2,695,930 2,739,130 2,783,760 2,825,140 
Rates, Rents, Taxes, Charges  115,320 115,320 115,320 115,320 
Other Operating Expenditure 1,428,190 1,493,010 1,562,570 1,631,250 
Depreciation & Impairment Charges 1,550,000 1,550,000 1,550,000 1,550,000 
Interest & Debt Management Charges 3,381,630 3,244,060 3,157,770 3,099,750 
HRA Contribution to Capital Programme 2,676,000 2,757,640 3,004,000 3,065,000 
          
Total Expenditure 15,635,590 15,616,560 15,971,030 16,163,070 
          
Dwellings Rents (14,495,540) (14,277,940) (14,334,290) (14,202,380) 
Non - Dwelling Rents & Other Income (617,730) (622,750) (627,820) (638,530) 
          
Total Income (15,113,270) (14,900,690) (14,962,110) (14,840,910) 
      
(Surplus) / Deficit for year 522,320 715,870 1,008,920 1,322,160 
     
Cumulative Deficit 522,320 1,238,190 2,247,110 3,569,270 
     

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 148



6.50 
 

ANNEX E 
 

Efficiency Plan Submission –                                                         
High Peak Borough Council 

 

4 Year Local Government Finance Settlement - Background  
 
As part of the 2016/17 Local Government Finance Settlement, the Government 
offered Local Authorities a four-year funding settlement up to and including 2019/20 
covering Revenue Support Grant, transitional funding and Rural Service Delivery 
Grant. 
 
The aim of which was to increase certainty and confidence in terms of the funding 
position and encourage Local Authorities to strengthen financial management and 
work collaboratively with local partners when considering the way services are 
provided in the future. 
 
In order to take advantage of this offer High Peak B.C. is required to submit an 
efficiency plan setting out what the Council intends to do to address the challenge of 
financial sustainability. 
 
If the four year offer is not accepted the Council would be subject to the existing 
annual process for determining the local government finance settlement.  Allocations 
could be subject to additional reductions dependent on the fiscal climate and the need 
to make further savings to reduce the deficit.  
 
High Peak Borough Council recognises the benefit of a 4 year settlement to support 
financial planning and provide funding certainty and will therefore be accepting the 
offer. 
 
The Council’s Medium Term Financial Plan  
 
The Council’s Medium Term Financial Plan (MTFP) has clear links to the Corporate 
Plan, details the Strategic Alliance with High Peak Borough Council, and focuses on 
the ongoing and planned transformation projects that will enable the Council to reduce 
its costs or generate additional income locally – with the efficiency programme forming 
an integral part.  The MTFP was presented and approved at Full Council on 25th 
February 2016.  The full MTFP can be found on the Council’s website:- 
http://www.highpeak.gov.uk/sites/default/files/meetings/papers/papers-
947316724/6%2520%2520Recommendations%2520from%2520The%2520Executive%2520meeting%2520held%2
520on%252018%2520February%25202016.pdf 
 
The MTFP incorporates the 4 year Local Government finance settlement into the 
funding position – see section 6.4.  This identifies the efficiencies required to be 
achieved over the 4 year period – which are considered in section 4 of the MTFP (and 
discussed as part of this document). 
 
 
 

Page 149

http://www.highpeak.gov.uk/sites/default/files/meetings/papers/papers-947316724/6%2520%2520Recommendations%2520from%2520The%2520Executive%2520meeting%2520held%2520on%252018%2520February%25202016.pdf
http://www.highpeak.gov.uk/sites/default/files/meetings/papers/papers-947316724/6%2520%2520Recommendations%2520from%2520The%2520Executive%2520meeting%2520held%2520on%252018%2520February%25202016.pdf
http://www.highpeak.gov.uk/sites/default/files/meetings/papers/papers-947316724/6%2520%2520Recommendations%2520from%2520The%2520Executive%2520meeting%2520held%2520on%252018%2520February%25202016.pdf


6.51 
 

The Corporate Plan 
 
The Corporate Plan sets out the Authority’s vision for the duration of the current 
council (2015-2019).  The full version is published on the Council’s website:- 
http://www.highpeak.gov.uk/hp/your-council/our-priorities-and-how-we-are-doing/corporate-plan-2015-2019 
 
Aim 2 of the corporate plan acknowledges the need to meet the Council’s financial 
challenges and provide value for money, with key priorities focusing on:- 

• Effective use of financial and other resources to ensure value for money 
• Ensure our services are easily available to all our residents in the appropriate 

channels and provided “right first time” 
• A high performing and well motivated workforce 
• More effective use of Council assets 

 
In order to achieve the key priorities and effectively meet our financial challenges, the 
Council will:- 

• Continually review and implement an efficiency and rationalisation programme 
• Improve customer service 
• Communicate more effectively with residents 

 
This is to be undertaken whilst protecting front-line customer facing services and 
prioritising financial resources on the achievement of the other 3 aims:- 

• To help create a safer and healthier environment for our communities to live 
and work 

• To support economic development and regeneration 
• To protect and improve the environment 

 
Strategic Alliance with Staffordshire Moorlands District Council 
 
In 2008 High Peak Borough Council and Staffordshire Moorlands District Council 
entered into a strategic alliance between the two Councils with the following agreed 
vision: 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

“Under the management of a single Chief Executive, to establish joint working 
arrangements and a shared approach to the delivery of key services that will improve 
the quality of people’s lives in the two authorities and deliver greater value for money” 
This vision to be realised by delivery of the agreed set of general aims for the strategic 
alliance, to:- 

 

• Increase the levels of customer satisfaction through the improvement of 
services. 

• Produce realistic cash savings in order to deliver improved services and limit 
Council Tax increases. 

• Strengthen and share skills, expertise and leaning in order to deliver better 
services. 

• Preserve and enhance the special and distinctive characteristics within each 
local authority area. 

• Increase our influence locally, regionally and nationally in order to secure a 
‘better deal’ for all our communities. 

 
Page 150

http://www.highpeak.gov.uk/hp/your-council/our-priorities-and-how-we-are-doing/corporate-plan-2015-2019


6.52 
 

The Strategic Alliance was formed around the principle of shared services in the 
pursuit of efficiency and realisation of savings.  2016 sees the Alliance operating with a 
fully integrated shared management structure, workforce and IT systems.  These 
secure economy without impairing the ability of each authority to maintain its unique 
identity and address its individual issues.  The Council intends to continue to drive 
savings and service improvements through collaboration with its Alliance partner, 
Staffordshire Moorlands District Council. 
The Alliance Management Structure sets out the fully integrated, shared operational 
and management structure of the Alliance partners and is published on the Council’s 
website: http://www.highpeak.gov.uk/sm/your-council/transparency/management-team-and-structure 
 
 
Transformation Programme 
 
In order to support the achievement of the Corporate Plan aims and address financial 
challenges, the Council has established a Transformation Programme.    
 
The Council’s ‘transformation programme’ incorporates all major projects which meet 
the strategic priorities of the authority and have significant financial implications, 
including:- 

• The capital programme 
• The efficiency and rationalisation strategy 
• Service reviews 
• Member priority projects 
• Other large scale projects 

 
The delivery of transformation programme projects is monitored by the Transformation 
Board made up of Directors, Heads of Service along with key Corporate Service 
Managers and officers. A Director is allocated as ‘project executive’ and a full 
business case appraisal is completed for each project. 
 
 
The Efficiency Plan 
 
The MTFP approved in February identified a cumulative deficit position by the end of 
2019/20 of £1.9million: 
 

 2016/17       
(£) 

2017/18        
(£) 

2018/19       
(£) 

2019/20   
(£) 

Total Net Expenditure 10,845,850 10,805,040 11,034,030 11,322,800 
Total Financing (10,185,940) (10,117,130) (9,470,890) (9,353,210) 
Cumulative Deficit 659,910 687,910 1,563,140 1,969,590 

 
Of the total cumulative deficit, £659,910 is to be achieved as part of the current 3-year 
efficiency programme, with the remaining £1,309,680 to be achieved through savings 
made from the implementation of future projects.  
 
Current 3 year Efficiency Plan 
 

Page 151

http://www.highpeak.gov.uk/sm/your-council/transparency/management-team-and-structure


6.53 
 

The Authority’s current efficiency plan was approved in April 2014 and aimed to 
achieve £2.5m over a three year period 2014/15 – 2016/17.  The programme included 
a number of specific project areas under 5 headings:- 
 

Efficiency Programme Target (£) 

Enhancing Income and Improving Trading 
Focussed upon increasing the income generated from Council 
Services including, by identifying and generating new income streams, 
improving the effectiveness of services that compete with other service 
providers, and improving the yield from fees and charges through 
increased activity. 

356,000 

Extending Shared Services 
Looking at new partners and other neighbouring Councils 125,000 

Corporate Efficiency Projects 
Targeting savings that do not directly impact on front line service 
provision including; implementation of the procurement strategy, 
further development of the Asset Management Plan, a review of 
administrative support, a comprehensive review of the ICT strategy, 
more cost effective arrangements around utilisation of the third sector 
and development of alternative service delivery models. 

1,384,000 

Service Reviews 
Structured and comprehensive review of all of the Council’s services – 
removing service silos in order to realise savings from new approaches 
to delivery including exploiting channel shift, combining similar 
functions such as enforcement, and taking a joined up approach to 
corporate support services.  

485,000 

Innovation and Growth 
Creation of a Development Fund on an “invest to save” basis focusing 
on growth projects which result in financial benefits to the Authority in 
terms of income generation   

150,000 

TOTAL 2,500,000 
 
The Authority has achieved the 2014/15 and 2015/16 targets and will be reviewing 
progress on the outstanding projects within the next MTFP update to review if there is 
a requirement to re-profile and/or focus on substitute savings in the interim.  The 
Council has established an Efficiency Programme earmarked reserve to support with 
implementation. 
 
Future Efficiency Projects 
 
The Council considered within the MTFP approved in February 2016, other large scale 
projects that are already or will be progressing over the next 4 years, of which one of 
the aims is to generate efficiencies.  These projects are detailed below:- 
 
Channel Shift 
 

The Council is progressing the ‘channel shift’ project, which focuses on changing the 
way in which our customers interact with the Council with the enhanced use of 
technology. The aim of which is not only to achieve financial savings but also to 

Page 152



6.54 
 

improve the customer experience and streamline internal processes.  This project will 
potentially impact on the capital programme investment as part of the ICT Strategy) 
with the savings generated from the project covering the cost of borrowing and 
supporting the efficiency programme. 
 
The business case for this project has been developed, with a timeline for 
implementation in place. The first phase concentrates on the use of e-forms to 
channel applications for Housing Benefit and Council Tax discounts and exemptions, 
and the use of credit information to apply risk-based verification and assist with the 
review of eligibility for discounts and exemptions.    
 
Waste and Streets Service Delivery 
 
The Council is currently developing the business case for a joint delivery model for the 
provision of Waste and Street services.  The service is currently outsourced with the 
contract expiring during 2017/18 -, whilst the Council’s Alliance partner Staffordshire 
Moorlands D.C. have an internally delivered service.    Therefore, the two Authorities 
will be focusing on the delivery of a jointly operated service in order to avoid 
duplication and realise efficiencies. 
 
Leisure Centre Operation 
 
Both High Peak B.C. and Staffordshire Moorlands D.C. outsource the operation of 
Leisure Centres to a private sector contractor.   Both contracts expire during 2018/19, 
therefore similar to the delivery of Waste and Streets, the Authorities will be looking to 
potentially work together on the future operation of the Leisure Centres.  
Consideration will also be given to the future asset management costs of maintaining 
the buildings and the delivery models going forward in order to achieve value for 
money.  
 
Asset Management Plan & Facilities Management 
 
Efficiencies have already been made as a result of rationalising assets, sharing 
buildings with partner organisations and reducing revenue costs as a result of capital 
investment.  The Council has now undertaken a 30 year stock condition review to 
inform the level of investment required to maintain the assets and assess the revenue 
implications of doing so.  As a result, a report has been written which sets out the 
actions identified to ensure the efficient use of Alliance property resources and reduce 
the impact on revenue.  
 
The Council has a joint contract with Staffordshire Moorlands D.C. for the facilities 
management of the buildings – currently undertaken by Derbyshire County Council.  
The contract has delivered savings to each Authority and is due to expire at the end of 
2016/17.  The two Authorities, working together, will aim to drive further savings from 
the re-procurement of the contract.  
 

Page 153



This page is intentionally left blank



7.1 
 

 AGENDA ITEM 7 
        

HIGH PEAK BOROUGH COUNCIL 
 
 

Report to Corporate Select Committee 

 
28 November 2016 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Appendices: None 

 
 
 
1. Reason for the Report: To update the committee on the government’s 

implementation of Universal Credit insofar as it affects residents of High Peak 
Borough Council. 

  
  

2. Recommendation 

2.1 That the committee notes the content of the report and approves the 
approach to Universal Credit taken to date and proposed by officers. 

 
  

3. Executive Summary 
 

3.1 Universal Credit implementation started in 2013 and is planned to 
complete in 2020/21. 

3.2 Universal Credit is payable to working age people and replaces six 
existing benefits, including Housing Benefit (HB) assessed and paid by 
the council.   It doesn’t replace Council Tax Support administered by the 
council.     

3.3 Local authorities have a key role to play in supporting customers 
claiming Universal Credit, including helping them make claims and 
report changes online. 

3.4 As Universal Credit is implemented the council will progressively lose 
workload.  This is because most working age people will receive help 

TITLE:   Universal Credit update 
 
EXECUTIVE COUNCILLOR: Cllr Emily Thrane  – Executive Councillor for 

Finance & Corporate Services 
 
OFFICER:  Roger Burnett – Head of customer services 
   
WARDS:   All 
 

Page 155

Agenda Item 7



7.2 
 

with their housing costs through UC in place of Housing Benefit 
administered by the council. 

3.5 The council will keep responsibility for HB claims for pensioners, for 
Discretionary Housing payments (an emergency top up in cases of 
priority need) and for means–tested Council Tax Support under our own 
local scheme.  A small number of HB claims don’t fit the Universal 
Credit model and will stay with the council.    

3.6 About 35-40% of the council’s Housing Benefit workload will transfer to 
the DWP by 2021.     

3.7 The DWP do not see this requiring a transfer of staff under the Transfer 
of Undertaking Protection of Employment (TUPE) regulations.   
However they will reimburse any redundancy costs to councils in the 
event they are not able to manage the anticipated reduction in staffing 
levels.  
  

 
 
4. How this report links to Corporate Priorities  
 

4.1 A constructive engagement with Universal Credit helps the Council in its 
corporate aim (under Aim 2) to “improve customer service”. 

 
 
 
5. Options and Analysis 
 

5.1 It would be possible for the council not to assist the DWP but Universal 
Credit is a national government programme and will be implemented 
with or without support from a local council.     

5.2 In the event we declined to assist the DWP, local residents would be 
placed at a disadvantage.    It’s also likely that people who will still be 
our customers for Council Tax Support would seek our help, even if we 
declined to work in partnership with the DWP. 

 
 

6. Implications 
 

   
6.1 Workforce 

 
None at this stage.  The expectation is that the reducing workloads 
through to 2022 can be managed through natural turnover in the 
housing benefit team and, if necessary, potential redeployment into 
other roles within the Alliance staffing structure. 
 

6.2 Equality and Diversity/Equality Impact Assessment 
 
None – Universal Credit is a national government programme.   
 

6.3 Financial Considerations 
 

Page 156



7.3 
 

The DWP have allocated a grant of £20,335 to cover our costs in 
providing a support service for Universal Credit customers in 
2016/17. 
 
To date the DWP grant covers the costs of our support.  In the 
event that the grant failed to cover costs Members would be 
advised and a specific decision on the level of support to be 
provided would be sought. 
 

6.4 Legal 
 
None. 
 

6.5 Sustainability 
 
None. 
 

6.6 
 
 
 

Internal and External Consultation 
 
None. 
 

6.7 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Risk Assessment 
 
Not applicable. 
 
 
 

7.  Detailed considerations 
 
 7.1 Universal Credit (UC) is the government’s flagship welfare reform, 
replacing six existing benefits for working age people:- 
 
 
Jobseeker’s Allowance administered by DWP 
Income Support DWP 
Employment & Support 
Allowance 

DWP 

Working Tax Credits DWP 
Child Tax Credits DWP 
Housing Benefit administered by LAs 
 
 

• Localised means-tested council tax support schemes (CTS) are outside of 
UC and will stay with local authorities. 

• Councils will keep responsibility for discretionary housing payments (DHP) 
– related to housing benefits but intended to provide emergency short-term 

Universal 
Credit, 

administered 
by DWP 

Page 157



7.4 
 

top-ups where benefit payments don’t cover the full rent and severe 
hardship would result without intervention.  

• Housing benefit (HB) for pension-age people, about half the HB caseload, 
will stay with LAs. 

 
 7.2 The key differences between UC and the benefits it replaces are:- 
 

• The claiming process will generally be online. 
• There are no break points between benefits, for instance, where the 

number of hours worked means someone has to cease one benefit and 
claim another.  These can act as a disincentive to work and also create 
hardship through delays in a new benefit being assessed. 

• Payments will be made monthly by a BACS payment into a bank account 
• Help with rent is included in the single payment – and not generally be paid 

direct to landlord. 
• UC has 7 waiting days, meaning that no benefit is generally payable for the 

first 7 days of any claim.    There are some exceptions, for instance in 
cases of terminal illness. 

• UC has a strong behavioural element in that people are required, more 
than previously, to seek employment and to increase their earnings and 
hours worked if they have a job.   Their claims can be “sanctioned” 
(reduced or suspended) through missing appointments or failing to comply 
with their “claimant commitment”. 

 
 
 7.3 The implementation of UC was announced in 2010 and began on a 
pilot basis in 2013.   
  

• The original plan was for full national implementation by 2018 but there have 
been 6 revisions and “resets” of the timetable to allow more time.     The 
DWP/Office of Budget Responsibility now estimate full implementation during 
2020/21:-  

   

0

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

2014-15 2015-16 2016-17 2017-18 2018-19 2019-20 2020-21

Av
er

ag
e 

ca
se

lo
ad

 (m
ill

io
ns

 )

November 2015 OBR November 2015 DWP July 2015 assumption

December 2014 OBR December 2014 DWP December 2013 assumption

March 2013 assumption

Source: DWP, OBR

This is the latest 
plan. 338k claims 

live, 6m to go. 

Page 158



7.5 
 

 
• In July 2016, the DWP announced a further allowance for contingency, taking 

the date for 100% migration of existing claims up to March 2022. 

 
 7.4 The DWP will rely on LAs to provide the support infrastructure for 
customers.   The council’s current position is that we support agreements in place 
for :- 

2016/17 assumptions – number of customers the 
DWP expect us to help with UC claims 

HPBC 
expected 
transactions 

Advice & assistance for customers with online access 
to their UC claim or to make a claim 31 

Personal budgeting support – to help people cope 
with monthly payments. 27 

To compensate us for changes in how a council tax 
support claim is now received from a Job Centre/UC 
customer  (no longer automated) 

160 

Advising DWP UC officers on a case-by-case basis on 
eligible housing costs to be paid within UC 8 

For context, the number of HB claims in payment 3,710 
 

 
7.5 The process for national rollout of UC is as follows:- 
 

Phase Description  HPBC Status 
National 
expansion 

 

UC available in every  Job 
Centre in the UK – but 
single people claiming 
JobSeeker’s Allowance only 
and numbers treated as UC 
claims limited .  (as at 1st 
November 2016) 

• 29 cases HPBC where we 
pay council tax support but 
no housing costs because 
these are met by UC.     

• 0.1% of HPBC housing 
benefit caseload. 

• We have DWP support 
agreement in place giving 
advice & assistance where 
required. 

Rollout of the 
Digital Service 

The customer-facing IT 
system will be available and 
used by all new claimants 
on a phased basis nationally 
beginning in 2016, complete 
by Sep 2018. 

Planned from 2016 to 2018.  
Dates have been published for 
150 Job Centres out of 740 
adopting the digital service up to 
Dec 2016.  No dates affecting 
HPBC residents.    DWP say we’ll 
get 12 months notice. 

No new claims 
for legacy 
benefits 

Progressively, from 2016 to 
2019 no new claims for the 
legacy benefits, including 
housing benefit, will be 
made 

No details as yet. 

Managed Existing claims for the No details as yet. 

Page 159

https://www.gov.uk/government/news/rollout-of-flagship-welfare-reform-universal-credit-reaches-historic-milestone
https://www.gov.uk/government/news/rollout-of-flagship-welfare-reform-universal-credit-reaches-historic-milestone
https://www.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/499726/transition-rollout-schedule-phase-1-to-2-2016.pdf


7.6 
 

migration of 
legacy benefit 
claims 

legacy benefits, including 
housing benefit, will be 
converted into UC payments 
from 2016 to March 2022. 

 
 
7.6 The DWP’s implementation plan means we should expect:- 
 
• A continuation of low numbers of UC claims – essentially system testing -  

until April 2017 or later. 
• Digital rollout, at the earliest from mid-2017 – resulting in an increase in 

customers needing support and assistance. 
• At the same time as digital rollout, a steady reduction in the HB caseload 

as new claims are no longer made for HB but for UC.   This will reduce 
workload from new HB claims and changes of circumstance within the 
caseload. 

• Caseload migration, the organised transfer of working age HB claims into 
UC, will follow the cut-off of new HB claims – say from April 2018 at the 
earliest. 

• A residual HB workload of pension-age claims and UC “exempt 
accommodation” – basically hostels and supported projects that don’t fit 
with UC – will stay with us. 

 
• The government has said that TUPE won’t apply to the transfer of workload.  

This means that staff will not be transferred as the workload migrates. They 
will compensate councils for compulsory redundancy costs in the event the 
necessary staffing reductions can’t be managed through turnover or 
redeployment. 
 

• A key factor to consider is that HB and CTax support claims from the same 
customer are processed concurrently using the same claim form and data.    
Taking the HB claims out of the process still leaves us collecting data from 
customers on their income and household composition and processing the 
details through a council benefit system. 

 
7.7 Using a DWP workload formula, officers estimate that 35-40% of the 

workload of the housing benefit team will transfer to UC administered by the DWP.   
In the other direction, we will be providing support to UC customers we have never 
previously dealt with – people currently claiming tax credits for instance. 

 
7.8  Given the timescales and the relatively small number of staff affected 

the plan at this stage is to handle the workload reduction through the natural turnover 
of staff and, if necessary, redeployment into other roles in the Alliance staffing 
structure.    In the unlikely event that redundancies were necessary – around 2021/22 
– the DWP have committed to meeting the costs incurred by local authorities. 
 

Roger Burnett 
Head of Customer Services  

 

Page 160

http://www.parliament.uk/business/publications/written-questions-answers-statements/written-statement/Commons/2015-12-10/HCWS377/


 
 
 

9.1 
 

 CORPORATE 
Chairman: Councillor Barrow 

Vice Chairman: Councillor Douglas 
Lead Officer: A Stokes 

Date Items Contact Officer Purpose/Method of 
Consideration 

28-Nov-16 Medium Term Financial Plan Update A Stokes  
Universal Credit Update R Burnett  
2nd Quarter Performance and Financial Review 2016/17 A Stokes  
Housing and Planning Act – Service Delivery R Weaver  
Select Committee Work Programme   
   

16-Jan-17 Facilities Management Performance Arrangement  A Stokes  
Equalities Update M Forrester  
Consultation Strategy  M Forrester  
Select Committee Work Programme   
   

13-Feb-17 Third Quarter Performance and Financial Review 2016/17 A Stokes  
Budget and Medium Term Financial Plan 2017/18   A Stokes  
Measuring the Economic Impact of Development P Parikh  
Select Committee Work Programme   
   

20-Mar-17 Performance Targets 2017/18 V Higgins  
Housing Capital Programme 2017/18 (Part 2) Paul Hare Report 
Select Committee Work Programme   
   

Jun-17 Appointment of Chairman & Vice-Chairman   
Select Committee Work Programme   

P
age 161

A
genda Item

 8



 
 
 

9.2 
 

 CORPORATE 
   

July-17 Fourth Quarter Performance and Financial Review 
(Outturn) 2016/17  

A Stokes  

Select Committee Work Programme   
   

Sep-17 1st Quarter Performance and Financial Review 2017/18 A Stokes  
Select Committee Work Programme   
   

Oct-17 Select Committee Work Programme   
   
   

To add in Temporary Agency Services A Stokes  
  Safeguarding Annual Report M Trillo  
Character Appraisals – Chapel en le Frith Town End and 
Howard Park, Glossop Conservation Areas  

J Brookes  

Health and Safety Annual Report  D Owen  
High Peak Design Guide  Richard Tuffrey / 

Jo Brookes 
 

Riverbank works to River Wye & Serpentine Park, Buxton 
& Warm Brook, Chapel en le Frith – further report on 
completion of the design phase 

P Hare  

 Impact of the closure of Buxton Court M Trillo  
HRA Business Plan Sub-Committee   

 

P
age 162



 
 
 

9.3 
 

COMMUNITY 
Chairman: Councillor Young 

Vice Chairman: Councillor Siddall 
Lead Officer: M Trillo 

Date Items Contact Officer Purpose/Method of 
Consideration 

30-Nov-2016 Environmental Enforcement Update R Weaver  
HPBC Sports and Physical Activity Strategy – Oral 
update 

K Parker  

Public Spaces Protection Order at Pavilion Gardens D Smith  
Mountain Rescue Team R Bennett Presentation 
Work Programme   
   

15-Feb-2017 
Invite to all 
Cllrs 

HPBC Sports and Physical Activity Strategy  K Parker  
Councillor Support Scheme M Forrester  
Waste Collection and Street Cleansing Options A Stokes P2 
Work Programme   
   

29-Mar-2017 Work Programme   
   

Jun-2017 Appointment of Chairman and Vice Chairman   
Work Programme   
   

July-2017 Places for People – Summer Activities Programme A Hall  
Work Programme   
   
   

P
age 163



 
 
 

9.4 
 

COMMUNITY 
Oct-2017 Work Programme   

   
   

To add 
in/current 
and planned 
Sub-
Committees: 

Update on Glossop Household Recycling Centre  C Brailsford DCC 
Review of Places for People Contract K Parker 2016/17 
Community Rights M Forrester  
Update from EMAS  EMAS   
Update from Waste Working Group K Parker As required 
Blythe House   
North Derbyshire CCG – Update on results of “Better 
Care Closer to Home” consultation 

  

Social Services Adult Care   
   

HOUSING  
Chairman: Councillor A McKeown 
Vice Chairman: Councillor Robins 

Lead Officer: Dai Larner 

Date Items Contact Officer Purpose/Method of 
Consideration 

9-Feb-17 Review of Tenancy Agreement Helen Core/Roger 
Burnett 

Report 

HRA Capital Contracts 2017/18 Elaine Hallworth P2 
Work Programme   
   

23-Mar-17 Work Programme   
   

Jun-17 Appointment of Chairman & Vice-Chairman   

P
age 164



 
 
 

       21 November 2016 

HOUSING  
Work Programme   
   

Jul-17 Work Programme   
   

Octl-17 Work Programme   
   

To add in Green Deals   
Community Work   
Sheltered Housing Mark Trillo  
Procurement reports Paul Hare As required 
Update on review of Disabled Facilities Grant DCC  
Chartered Institute of Housing Review of Sheltered 
Accommodation 

Roger Burnett  

Non-financial update from Housing Revenue Account 
Business Plan 

Roger Burnett  

Update on Housing and Planning Act Roger Burnett  
   
   
   
   
   
   

 
 
 
 
 

P
age 165



T
his page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 167

Agenda Item 11
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3, 4, 7 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	4 To approve the minutes of the last meeting
	CORPORATE SELECT COMMITTEE

	5 2nd Quarter Financial, Procurement and Performance Review 2016/17
	5. Quarter 2 report
	Appendix A
	APPENDIX A
	1. Background and Introduction
	4. Efficiency and Rationalisation Programme
	8. Treasury Management

	Apepndix B
	APPENDIX B
	2016/17
	Second Quarter  Procurement
	Review

	Appendix C

	6 Medium Term Financial Plan Update
	6. Medium Term Financial Plan Update
	Appendix
	Appendix


	7 Universal Credit Update
	HIGH PEAK BOROUGH COUNCIL
	Workforce
	Equality and Diversity/Equality Impact Assessment
	Financial Considerations
	Legal
	Sustainability
	Internal and External Consultation
	Risk Assessment
	Head of Customer Services

	8 Select Committee Work Programme
	 CORPORATE
	Vice Chairman: Councillor Douglas

	COMMUNITY
	Chairman: Councillor Young

	HOUSING 
	Vice Chairman: Councillor Robins
	Lead Officer: Dai Larner


	11 Exempt Minutes of the meeting held on 17 October 2016

